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I am pleased to present to you our 2021 Annual Report.

Beginning in early 2020, the Covid-19 pandemic dramatically
impacted the operating environment in each of our markets.
The pandemic-related reduction in travel and tourism
spending continued to impact our results throughout 2021.
Importantly, we have confidence that travel and tourism
spending in each of our markets will recover over time as the
impact of the pandemic abates.

Since the onset of the pandemic and throughout the last
year, we have invested in initiatives designed to deliver future
growth as the recovery in travel and tourism spending takes
place. We have also maintained our focus on the safety and
well-being of our team members and guests, and on
providing support to those most impacted in our host
communities of Macao, Singapore and Las Vegas. While we
implemented a wide range of cost control measures during
the year, we continued to maintain our commitments to our
employees, avoid mass workforce reductions and protect
jobs and health care benefits for our team members.

Our focus on the well-being of our people and our communities
directly reflects the values of our visionary founder, Mr.
Sheldon G. Adelson, who passed away in early 2021. The
company suffered a tremendous loss with his passing. We are
all deeply committed to continuing to execute his vision for the
company while building upon his legacy.

Nowhere is that legacy more evident than in our market-
leading investments in Macao. Sands China has now invested
more than $15 billion to deliver on our promise to help Macao
in its economic diversification and its continued evolution
into Asia’s leading leisure and business tourism destination.
The company remains deeply committed to making
additional investments in Macao in support of Macao’s
tourism and diversification objectives.

Due to the impact of the pandemic, our properties in
Macao continued to operate in a challenging environment
during the year, with reduced travel in the region and visa
restrictions meaningfully limiting the ability for visitors
from mainland China and elsewhere to visit Macao.

Despite these challenges, our scale and financial strength
allowed us to accelerate our capital investment programs in
support of Macao’s diversification and long-term development
objectives. These expansion programs included the addition of
luxurious new suite product at the Grand Suites at Four
Seasons, as well as the expansion and transformation of
Sands Cotai Central into a new destination Integrated Resort,
The Londoner Macao. The first phase of The Londoner
debuted in February of 2021, and additional phases were
introduced throughout the year. We believe these new
offerings, together with the unrivaled scale of our additional
Integrated Resort offerings in Macao, position us exceedingly
well to benefit from the travel and tourism recovery that will
take place as the impact of the pandemic subsides.

We reached an agreement in March of 2021 to sell our Las
Vegas operations and assets for approximately $6.25
billion and completed the sale in the first quarter of 2022.
The proceeds from the sale enhanced our financial
strength and liquidity and will enable us to invest in future
growth opportunities in both Macao and Singapore and
pursue additional growth opportunities in new markets.

Looking ahead, our operations in Asia will remain the
centerpiece of the company. We look forward to future
investment in our properties and communities in both
Macao and Singapore. In addition, we believe there are
meaningful potential development opportunities in
emerging jurisdictions in both the US and elsewhere where
capital investment could provide a substantial economic
benefit to those jurisdictions while delivering strong
returns on invested capital for the company.

We remain deeply committed to our mission of enhancing
the leisure and business tourism appeal of our host markets,
creating local employment opportunities, investing in our
people and our communities, and providing growth
opportunities for local businesses while protecting our
environment. Our success in these areas is only possible
through the contributions of our team members. They have
responded with optimism, energy, creativity, and resilience
to the challenges and opportunities presented during the
year. I am deeply grateful for their efforts.

Thank you for the confidence you have placed in our
company. We look forward to sharing our ongoing success
with you in the years ahead.

Robert G. Goldstein
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
March 30, 2022

Fellow Shareholders,

We also continued to invest in our existing facilities at Marina 
Bay Sands and began an important renovation project 
that will meaningfully enhance our suite product offerings 
and the appeal of our market-leading Integrated Resort 
in Singapore to premium customers seeking immersive 
travel experiences.  In addition, we remain enthusiastic
about our plans for the expansion of Marina Bay Sands. 
While disruption to Singapore’s international visitation and
tourism continued to impact the resort during 2021, we have
confidence in an eventual recovery in travel and tourism 
spending in Singapore and we look forward to continuing to 
contribute to the success of Singapore as a leading leisure 
and business tourism destination.





























There are significant risks associated with our construction projects.









































Risks Related to Stock Ownership and Stockholder Matters

The interests of our principal stockholders in our business may be different from yours.

Dr. Adelson (the wife of Mr. Adelson), her family members and trusts and other entities established for the
benefit of Dr. Adelson‘s family members (collectively our "Principal Stockholders") beneficially owned
approximately 57% of our outstanding common stock as of December 31, 2021. (Mr. Adelson was also a Principal
Stockholder prior to his death.) Accordingly, our Principal Stockholders exercise significant influence over our
business policies and affairs, including the composition of our Board of Directors and any action requiring the
approval of our stockholders, including the adoption of amendments to our articles of incorporation and the approval
of a merger or sale of substantially all of our assets. The concentration of ownership may also delay, defer or even
prevent a change in control of our company and may make some transactions more difficult or impossible without
the support of our Principal Stockholders. The interests of our Principal Stockholders may differ from your interests.

Conflicts of interest may arise because certain of our directors and officers are also directors of SCL.

In November 2009, our subsidiary, SCL, listed its ordinary shares on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "SCL Offering"). We currently own 69.9% of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares
of SCL. As a result of SCL having stockholders who are not affiliated with us, we and certain of our officers and
directors who also serve as officers and/or directors of SCL may have conflicting fiduciary obligations to our
stockholders and to the minority stockholders of SCL. Decisions that could have different implications for us and
SCL, including contractual arrangements we have entered into or may in the future enter into with SCL, may give
rise to the appearance of a potential conflict of interest.

Certain Nevada gaming regulations apply to beneficial owners of our voting securities.

Any person who acquires beneficial ownership of more than 10% of our voting securities will be required to
apply to the Nevada Commission for a finding of suitability within 30 days after the Chair of the Nevada Board
mails a written notice requiring the filing. Under certain circumstances, an "institutional investor" as defined under
the regulations of the Nevada Commission, which acquires beneficial ownership of more than 10%, but not more
than 25%, of our voting securities (subject to certain additional holdings as a result of certain debt restructurings or
stock repurchase programs under the Nevada Act), may apply to the Nevada Commission for a waiver of such
finding of suitability requirement if the institutional investor holds our voting securities only for investment
purposes. In addition, any beneficial owner of our voting securities, regardless of the number of shares beneficially
owned, may be required at the discretion of the Nevada Commission to file an application for a finding of suitability
as such. In either case, a finding of suitability is comparable to licensing and the applicant must pay all costs of
investigation incurred by the Nevada Gaming Authorities in conducting the investigation.

Any person who fails or refuses to apply for a finding of suitability or a license within 30 days after being
ordered to do so by the Nevada Gaming Authorities may be found unsuitable. The same restrictions apply to a
record owner if the record owner, after request, fails to identify the beneficial owner. Any stockholder found
unsuitable who holds, directly or indirectly, any ownership of the common stock of a registered corporation beyond
such period of time as may be prescribed by the Nevada Commission may be guilty of a criminal offense. We are
subject to disciplinary action if, after we receive notice a person is unsuitable to be a stockholder or to have any
other relationship with us or a licensed subsidiary, we, or any of the licensed subsidiaries:

• pay that person any dividend or interest upon any voting securities;
• allow that person to exercise, directly or indirectly, any voting right conferred through securities held by

that person;
• pay remuneration in any form to that person for services rendered or otherwise; or
• fail to pursue all lawful efforts to require such unsuitable person to relinquish his or her voting securities

including, if necessary, purchasing them for cash at fair market value.

Human Capital Related Risk Factors

We depend on the continued services of key officers.

Our historical success was principally dependent on our founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Sheldon G. Adelson. On January 12, 2021, we announced the passing of Mr. Adelson. On January 26, 2021, we
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announced obert G. Goldstein was appointed Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Patrick Dumont was
appointed President and Chief Operating Officer. Our ability to maintain our competitive position is dependent to a
large degree on the services of our senior management team, including Messrs. Goldstein and Dumont. The loss of
their services or the services of our other senior managers, or the inability to attract and retain additional senior
management personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our success depends in large part upon our ability to attract, retain, train, manage and motivate skilled
managers and employees at our properties. The Macao government requires we only hire Macao residents in our
casinos for certain employee roles, including as dealers. In addition, we are required in Macao to obtain visas and
work permits for managers and employees we seek to employ from other countries. There is significant competition
in Macao and Singapore for managers and employees with the skills required to perform the services we offer and
competition for these individuals in Macao is likely to increase as other competitors expand their operations. Such
competition has intensified recently as certain skilled managers have elected to return to their home countries due to
the impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic.

We may have to recruit managers and employees from other countries to adequately staff and manage our
properties and certain Macao government policies affect our ability to hire non resident managers and employees in
certain job classifications. Despite our coordination with the Macao labor and immigration authorities to ensure our
management and labor needs are satisfied, we may not be able to recruit and retain a sufficient number of qualified
managers or employees for our operations or the Macao labor and immigration authorities may not grant us the
necessary visas or work permits. or example, due to the impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic, the government in
Singapore is increasingly trying to protect jobs for the local population, which could make it more difficult to obtain
and renew visas or work permits for our foreign staff members.

If we are unable to obtain, attract, retain and train skilled managers and employees, and obtain any required
visas or work permits for our skilled managers and employees, our ability to adequately manage and staff our
existing properties and planned development projects could be impaired, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

rom time to time, we have experienced attempts by labor organi ations to organi e certain of our non union
employees. We cannot provide any assurance we will not experience additional and successful union activity in the
future. The impact of any union activity is undetermined and could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We endeavor to establish, protect and enforce our IP, including our trademarks, copyrights, patents, domain
names, trade secrets and other confidential and proprietary information. There can be no assurance, however, the
steps we take to protect our IP will be sufficient. If a third party successfully challenges our trademarks, we could
have difficulty maintaining exclusive rights. If a third party claims we have infringed, currently infringe or could in
the future infringe upon its IP rights, we may need to cease use of such IP, defend our rights or take other steps. In
addition, if third parties violate their obligations to us to maintain the confidentiality of our proprietary information
or there is a security breach or lapse, or if third parties misappropriate or infringe upon our IP, our business may be
affected. Our inability to adequately obtain, maintain or defend our IP rights for any reason could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We have comprehensive property and liability insurance policies for our properties in operation, as well as
those in the course of construction, with coverage features and insured limits we believe are customary in their
breadth and scope. Market forces beyond our control may nonetheless limit the scope of the insurance coverage we
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can obtain or our ability to obtain coverage at reasonable rates. Certain types of losses, generally of a pandemic or
catastrophic nature, such as infectious disease, such as the CO ID 19 Pandemic, earthquakes, hurricanes and floods,
or terrorist acts, or certain liabilities may be, or are, uninsurable or too expensive to justify obtaining insurance. As a
result, we may not be successful in obtaining insurance without increases in cost or decreases in coverage levels. In
addition, in the event of a substantial loss, the insurance coverage we carry may not be sufficient to pay the full
market value or replacement cost of our lost investment or in some cases could result in certain losses being totally
uninsured. As a result, we could lose some or all of the capital we have invested in a property, as well as the
anticipated future revenue from the property, and we could remain obligated for debt or other financial obligations
related to the property.

Certain of our debt instruments and other material agreements require us to maintain a certain minimum level
of insurance. ailure to satisfy these requirements could result in an event of default under these debt instruments or
material agreements.

We are subject to taxation and regulation by various government agencies, primarily in Macao, Singapore and
the U.S. (federal, state and local levels). rom time to time, U.S. federal, state, local and foreign governments make
substantive changes to income tax, indirect tax and gaming tax rules and the application of these rules, which could
result in higher taxes than would be incurred under existing tax law or interpretation, such as the casino tax rates in
Singapore that will increase and move to a tiered structure on March 1, 2022. In particular, government agencies
may make changes that could reduce the profits we can effectively reali e from our non U.S. operations. Like most
U.S. companies, our effective income tax rate reflects the fact that income earned and reinvested outside the U.S. is
taxed at local rates, which are often lower than U.S. tax rates.

If changes in tax laws and regulations were to significantly increase the tax rates on gaming revenues or
income, these changes could increase our tax expense and liability, and therefore, could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our business requires the collection and retention of large volumes of data and non electronic information,
including credit card numbers and other information in various information systems we maintain and in those
maintained by third parties with whom we contract and may share data. We also maintain internal information about
our employees and information relating to our operations. The integrity and protection of that information are
important to us. Our collection of such information is subject to extensive private and governmental regulation.

Privacy and cybersecurity laws and regulations are developing and changing frequently, and vary significantly
by jurisdiction. We may incur significant costs in our efforts to comply with the various applicable privacy and
cybersecurity laws and regulations as they emerge and change. Compliance with applicable privacy laws and
regulations also may adversely impact our ability to market our products, properties, and services to our guests and
patrons. Non compliance by us, or potentially by third parties with which we share information, with any applicable
privacy and cybersecurity law or regulation, including accidental loss, inadvertent disclosure, unauthori ed access or
dissemination, or breach of security may result in damage to our reputation and could subject us to fines, penalties,
required corrective actions, lawsuits, payment of damages, or restrictions on our use or transfer of data.

We have experienced a sophisticated criminal cybersecurity attack in the past and may experience with more
frequency global cybersecurity and information security threats, which may range from uncoordinated individual
attempts to sophisticated and targeted measures directed at us. There has been an increase in criminal cybersecurity
attacks against companies where customer and company information has been compromised and company data has
been destroyed. Our information systems and records, including those we maintain with third party service
providers, may be subject to cyber attacks and information security breaches. Cyber attacks and information
security breaches may include attempts to access information, computer malware such as viruses, denial of service,
ransomware attacks that encrypt, exfiltrate, or otherwise render data unusable or unavailable in an effort to extort
money or other consideration as a condition to purportedly returning the data to a usable form, operator errors or
misuse, or inadvertent releases of data or documents, and other forms of electronic and non electronic information
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security breaches. Our data security measures are reviewed regularly and we rely on proprietary and commercially
available systems, software, tools, and monitoring to provide security for processing, transmission, and storage of
customer and employee information. We also rely extensively on computer systems to process transactions, maintain
information, and manage our businesses. Our third party information system service providers and other third parties
that share data with us pursuant to contractual agreements also face risks relating to cybersecurity and privacy, and
we do not directly control any of such parties information security or privacy operations. or example, the systems
currently used for the transmission and approval of payment card transactions, and the technology utili ed in
payment cards themselves, are determined and controlled by the payment card industry, not us. Our gaming
operations rely heavily on technology services provided by third parties. In the event there is an interruption of these
services to us, it may have an adverse effect on our operations and financial condition. Disruptions in the availability
of our computer systems, or those of third parties we engage to provide gaming operating systems for the facilities
we operate, through cybersecurity attacks or otherwise, could impact our ability to service our customers and
adversely affect our sales and the results of operations.

A significant theft, destruction, loss or fraudulent use of information maintained by us or by a third party
service provider could have an adverse effect on our reputation, cause a material disruption to our operations and
management team and result in remediation expenses (including liability for stolen assets or information, repairing
system damage and offering incentives to customers or business partners to maintain their relationships after an
attack) and regulatory fines, penalties and corrective actions, or lawsuits by regulators, third party service providers,
third parties that share data with us pursuant to contractual agreements and/or people whose data is or may be
impacted. Such theft, destruction, loss or fraudulent use could also result in litigation by stockholders. Advances in
computer software capabilities and encryption technology, new tools, and other developments, including
continuously evolving attack methods that may exploit vulnerabilities based on these advances, may increase the
risk of a security breach or other intrusion. In addition, we may incur increased cybersecurity and privacy protection
costs that may include organi ational changes, deploying additional personnel and protection technologies, training
employees and engaging third party experts and consultants. There can be no assurance the insurance we have in
place relating to cybersecurity and privacy risks will be sufficient in the event of a major cybersecurity or privacy
event. Any of these events could interrupt our operations, adversely impact our reputation and brand and expose us
to increased risks of governmental investigation, litigation, fines and other liability, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We have incurred and will continue to incur costs to comply with environmental requirements, such as those
relating to discharges into the air, water and land, the handling and disposal of solid and ha ardous waste and the
cleanup of properties affected by ha ardous substances. Under these and other environmental requirements, we may
be required to investigate and clean up ha ardous or toxic substances or chemical releases at our properties and may
be held responsible to governmental entities or third parties, as an owner or operator, for property damage, personal
injury and investigation and cleanup costs incurred by them in connection with any contamination. These laws
typically impose cleanup responsibility and liability without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of or
caused the presence of the contaminants. The costs of investigation, remediation or removal of those substances may
be substantial, and the presence of those substances, or the failure to remediate a property properly, may impair our
ability to use our properties.

Our business is subject to various U.S. and international laws and regulations that could lead to enforcement
actions, fines, civil or criminal penalties or the assertion of litigation claims and damages. In addition, improper
conduct by our employees, agents or gaming promoters could damage our reputation and/or lead to litigation or legal
proceedings that could result in civil or criminal penalties, including substantial monetary fines. In certain
circumstances, it may not be economical to defend against such matters and/or our legal strategy may not ultimately
result in us prevailing in a matter. The investigations, litigation and other disputes may also lead to additional
scrutiny from regulators, which could lead to investigations relating to, and possibly negatively impact, our gaming
licenses and our ability to bid successfully for new gaming market opportunities. We cannot predict the outcome of
any pending or future proceedings and the impact they will have on our financial results, but any such impact may
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be material. While some of these claims are covered by insurance, we cannot be certain that all of them will be,
which could have an adverse impact on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Governments, investors, customers, employees and other stakeholders are increasingly focusing on corporate
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") practices and disclosures, and expectations in this area are rapidly
evolving and growing. The criteria by which our ESG practices are assessed may change due to the evolution of the
sustainability landscape, which could result in greater expectations of us and cause us to undertake costly initiatives
to satisfy such new criteria. If we are unable to satisfy such new criteria, stakeholders may conclude our policies
and/or actions with respect to ESG matters are inadequate and our reputation, business, financial condition and
results of operations could be adversely impacted.

None.

We have received concessions from the Macao government to build on a six acre land site for the Sands
Macao and the sites on which The enetian Macao, The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao, The Londoner
Macao and The Parisian Macao are located. We do not own these land sites in Macao; however, the land
concessions grant us exclusive use of the land. Land concessions in Macao generally have an initial term of 25
years with automatic extensions of 10 years thereafter in accordance with Macao law. As specified in the land
concessions, we are required to pay premiums, which are either payable in a single lump sum upon acceptance of
our land concessions by the Macao government or in seven semi annual installments, as well as annual rent for the
term of the land concession, which may be revised every five years by the Macao government. In October 200 , the
Macao government amended our land concession to separate the retail and hotel portions of The Pla a Macao and
our Seasons Macao parcel and allowed us to subdivide the parcel into four separate components, consisting of
retail; hotel/casino; an apart hotel tower; and parking areas. In consideration for the amendment, we paid an
additional land premium of approximately 1 million and will pay adjusted annual rent over the remaining term of
the concession, which increased slightly due to the revised allocation of parcel use.

Under the Development Agreement with the STB, we paid SGD 1.20 billion (approximately 756 million at
exchange rates in effect at the time of the transaction) in premium payments for the 60 year lease of the land on
which the Marina Bay Sands is located. In connection with the Second Development Agreement with the STB, we
paid 963 million in premium payments for the lease of the parcels of land underlying the proposed MBS Expansion
Project site, which will be effective until August 21, 2066.

We own an approximately 63 acre parcel of land on which our Las egas Operating Properties are located and
an approximately 19 acre parcel of land located to the east of the 63 acre parcel. We own these parcels of land in fee
simple, subject to certain easements, encroachments and other non monetary encumbrances.

In March 2004, we entered into a long term lease with a third party for the airspace over which a portion of
The Shoppes at The Pala o was constructed (the "Leased Airspace"). In January 200 , we acquired fee title from
the same third party to the airspace above the Leased Airspace (the "Acquired Airspace") in order to build the Las
egas Condo Tower, a high rise residential condominium tower that was being constructed on the Las egas Strip
within The enetian esort Las egas. In ebruary 200 , in connection with the sale of The Shoppes at The
Pala o, GGP acquired control of the Leased Airspace. We continue to retain fee title to the Acquired Airspace if
ever needed for further expansion.

or a discussion of legal proceedings, see "Part II Item inancial Statements and Supplementary Data
Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements Note 15 Commitments and Contingencies Litigation."
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Not applicable.
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The Company s common stock trades on the N SE under the symbol "L S." As of ebruary 1, 2022, there
were 763,9 9,752 shares of our common stock outstanding that were held by 292 stockholders of record.

We are authori ed to issue up to 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Our Board of Directors is authori ed,
subject to limitations prescribed by Nevada law and our articles of incorporation, to determine the terms and
conditions of the preferred stock, including whether the shares of preferred stock will be issued in one or more
series, the number of shares to be included in each series and the powers, designations, preferences and rights of the
shares. Our Board of Directors also is authori ed to designate any qualifications, limitations or restrictions on the
shares without any further vote or action by the stockholders. The issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our Company and may adversely affect the voting and other
rights of the holders of our common stock, which could have an adverse impact on the market price of our common
stock.

Our ability to declare and pay dividends on our common stock is subject to the requirements of Nevada law. In
addition, we are a parent company with limited business operations of our own. Accordingly, our primary sources of
cash are dividends and distributions with respect to our ownership interest in our subsidiaries derived from the
earnings and cash flow generated by our operating properties.

Our subsidiaries long term debt arrangements place restrictions on their ability to pay cash dividends to the
Company. This may restrict our ability to pay cash dividends other than from cash on hand. See "Item 7
Management s Discussion and Analysis of inancial Condition and esults of Operations estrictions on
Distributions" and "Item inancial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated inancial
Statements Note 10 Long Term Debt."

In April 2020, we suspended our quarterly dividend program due to the impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic.

There have not been any sales by the Company of equity securities in the last three fiscal years that have not
been registered under the Securities Act of 1933.

In June 201 , the Company s Board of Directors authori ed the repurchase of 2.50 billion of its outstanding
common stock, which was to expire in November 2020. In October 2020, the Company s Board of Directors
authori ed the extension of the expiration date of the remaining repurchase amount of 916 million to November
2022. During the year ended December 31, 2021, no shares of our common stock were repurchased under this
program. All repurchases under the stock repurchase program are made from time to time at our discretion in
accordance with applicable federal securities laws. All share repurchases of our common stock have been recorded
as treasury shares.
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The following performance graph compares the performance of our common stock with the performance of the
Standard Poor s 500 Index and the Dow Jones US Gambling Index, during the five years ended December 31,
2021. The graph plots the changes in value of an initial 100 investment over the indicated time period, assuming all
dividends are reinvested. The stock price performance in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price
performance.
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The following discussion should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the audited
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, and other financial information included in this orm 10 K.
Certain statements in this "Management s Discussion and Analysis of inancial Condition and esults of
Operations" are forward looking statements. See "Special Note egarding orward Looking Statements."

We view each of our Integrated esorts as an operating segment. Our operating segments in Macao consist of
The enetian Macao; The Londoner Macao; The Parisian Macao; The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao; and
the Sands Macao. Our operating segment in Singapore is Marina Bay Sands. Our operating segments in the U.S.
consist of the Las egas Operating Properties, which includes The enetian esort Las egas and the Sands Expo
Center.

During 2021, we achieved milestones in advancing several of our strategic objectives. We continued progress
on our key development projects in Macao for the conversion of Sands Cotai Central into The Londoner Macao, we
opened The Londoner Macao Hotel in January 2021, featuring 594 London themed suites, and we opened Londoner
Court in September 2021, featuring approximately 370 luxury suites. In Singapore, we initiated development
activities associated with the MBS Expansion Project. We continued to strengthen our balance sheet with the
issuance of SCL 2027, 2029 and 2031 Senior Notes with an aggregate principal amount of 1.95 billion. We used
the net proceeds from the issuance and cash on hand to redeem in full the outstanding principal amount of the 1. 0
billion 4.600% Senior Notes due 2023, and are prepared to complete the sale of the Las egas property.

On March 2, 2021, we entered into definitive agreements to sell our Las egas real property and operations,
including The enetian esort Las egas and the Sands Expo and Convention Center, for a total enterprise value of
6.25 billion to Pioneer OpCo, LLC, an affiliate of certain funds managed by affiliates of Apollo Global
Management, Inc., and ICI Properties L.P, a subsidiary of ICI Properties Inc. The closing of the transaction is
subject to regulatory review and other closing conditions and we anticipate the closing of the transaction in the first
quarter of 2022.

In early January 2020, an outbreak of a respiratory illness caused by a novel coronavirus ( CO ID 19 ) was
identified and the disease spread rapidly across the world causing the World Health Organi ation to declare the
outbreak of a pandemic on March 12, 2020 (the CO ID 19 Pandemic ). Governments around the world mandated
actions to contain the spread of the virus that included stay at home orders, quarantines, capacity limits, closures of
non essential businesses, including entertainment activities, and significant restrictions on travel. The government
actions varied based upon a number of factors, including the extent and severity of the CO ID 19 Pandemic within
their respective countries and jurisdictions.

isitation to the Macao Special Administrative egion ( Macao ) of the People s epublic of China ( China )
has remained substantially below pre CO ID 19 levels as a result of various government policies limiting or
discouraging travel. As of the date of this report, other than people from mainland China who in general may enter
Macao without quarantine subject to them holding the appropriate travel documents, a negative CO ID 19 test
result issued within a specified time period and a green health code, there remains in place a complete ban on entry
or a need to undergo various quarantine requirements depending on the person s residency and recent travel history.
Our operations in Macao will continue to be impacted and subject to changes in the government policies of Macao,
China, Hong Kong and other jurisdictions in Asia addressing travel and public health measures associated with
CO ID 19.

On March 3, 2021, the negative CO ID 19 test requirement to enter casinos was removed; however, various
other health safeguards implemented by the Macao government remain in place, including mandatory mask
protection, limitation on the number of seats per table game, slot machine spacing and temperature checks.
Management is currently unable to determine when the remaining measures will be eased or cease to be necessary.
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As of the date of this report, most businesses are allowed to remain open, subject to social distancing and
health code checking requirements as designated by the Macao government. In January 2022, the Macao
government commenced the roll out and trial of a non mandatory contact tracing code function at a range of
businesses including government buildings, restaurants, hotels and other public venues.

In support of the Macao government s initiatives to fight the CO ID 19 Pandemic, we provided one tower
(approximately 2,100 hotel rooms) at the Sheraton Grand Macao to the Macao government to house individuals who
returned to Macao for quarantine purposes. This tower has been utili ed for quarantine purposes on several
occasions during 2020 and 2021. rom October 4, 2021 to October 30, 2021, an additional tower (approximately
1, 00 hotel rooms) at the Sheraton Grand Macao was provided.

Our Macao gaming operations remained open during the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to the
same period in 2020 when our Macao gaming operations were suspended from ebruary 5, 2020 to ebruary 19,
2020 due to a government mandate, except for gaming operations at The Londoner Macao, which resumed on
ebruary 27, 2020. Some of our Macao hotel facilities were also closed during the casino suspension in response to
the decrease in visitation and were gradually reopened from ebruary 20, 2020, with the exception of the Conrad
Macao at The Londoner Macao (the Conrad hotel ), which reopened on June 13, 2020.

Operating hours at restaurants and other venues across our Macao properties are continuously being adjusted in
line with fluctuations in guest visitation. The majority of retail outlets in our various shopping malls are open with
reduced operating hours. The timing and manner in which these areas will return to full operation are currently
unknown.

Our ferry operations between Macao and Hong Kong remain suspended. The timing and manner in which our
ferry operations will be able to resume are currently unknown.

Our operations in Macao have been significantly impacted by the reduced visitation to Macao. The Macao
government announced total visitation from mainland China to Macao increased 4 .2% and decreased 74. % for
2021, as compared to 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Macao government also announced gross gaming revenue
increased by 43.7% and decreased by 70.3% for 2021, as compared to 2020 and 2019, respectively.

As of the date of this report, entry into Singapore is largely limited to Singapore citi ens and permanent
residents, with certain visitors allowed from specified countries on a quarantine free basis, subject to certain
requirements and health control measures. Additionally, there are no stay at home orders or curfews except for
certain individuals arriving into Singapore who are subject to quarantine and individuals who may be assessed to
have been exposed to CO ID 19 as a result of the government s contact tracing efforts. All operations are currently
subject to limited capacities and other social distancing measures. As of the date of this report, Marina Bays Sands
has implemented vaccination differentiated safe management measures (" DS"), allowing only fully vaccinated
individuals; individuals who have recovered from CO ID 19 within the past 1 0 days; or individuals medically
ineligible for CO ID 19 vaccination to enter the casino and other attractions.

accinated Travel Lanes ( TLs) (travel corridors for vaccinated visitors in receipt of a negative CO ID 19
test) were introduced for a number of key source markets in November and December of 2021, however, due to the
emergence of the Omicron variant, new ticket sales for the TLs were suspended on December 23, 2021 through
January 20, 2022.

Our operations at Marina Bay Sands will continue to be impacted and subject to changes in the government
policies of Singapore and other jurisdictions in Asia addressing travel and public health measures associated with
CO ID 19. These government policies will continue to impact (i) the number of people allowed at business to
business events, sporting events and live performances; (ii) closure or limited seating at food and beverage or
entertainment establishments; and (iii) casino capacity limits, among other restrictions. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, gaming operations at Marina Bay Sands were closed from May 17 until May 1 , and from July
22 until August 4 due to pandemic related measures in consultation with the Singapore government authorities.

As a result of the border closures, visitation to Marina Bay Sands continues to be impacted by the effects of the
CO ID 19 Pandemic. The Singapore Tourism Board ( STB ) announced for the 12 months ended December 31,
2021, total visitation to Singapore decreased approximately .0% and 9 .3%, as compared to the same period in
2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Effective June 1, 2021, pursuant to State of Nevada and Nevada Gaming Control Board decisions, all capacity
limits, restrictions on large gatherings and other restrictions, which had been implemented in response to the impact
of the CO ID 19 Pandemic, were lifted and our Las egas Operating Properties are operating under pre pandemic
guidelines.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, our Las egas Operating Properties were open subject to various
capacity limits in place at various times throughout the year. This compares to the same period in 2020 when our
Las egas Operating Properties operations were suspended on March 1 , 2020, due to a government mandate, and
on June 4, 2020, The enetian Tower, The Pala o Tower and select food and beverage outlets reopened, with
certain operations subject to reduced capacity. Convention, meeting and certain entertainment related operations
remained closed for a portion of the year ended December 31, 2020.

isitation to our Las egas Operating Properties continues to be impacted by the effects of the CO ID 19
Pandemic; however, visitation has increased since restrictions have been lifted. The Las egas Convention and
isitors Authority ("L C A") announced for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, total visitation to Las
egas increased 69.4% and decreased 24.2%, respectively, as compared to the same period in 2020 and 2019. The
L C A also announced for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, gross gaming revenue for the Las egas
Strip increased 9.9%, and 7.6%, as compared to the same period in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

At our Macao properties and Marina Bay Sands, we are adhering to social distancing requirements, which
include reduced seating at table games and a decreased number of active slot machines on the casino floor.
Additionally, there is uncertainty of the impact the CO ID 19 Pandemic will continue to have on operations in
future periods. If our Integrated esorts are not permitted to resume normal operations, travel restrictions such as
those related to inbound travel from other countries are not modified or eliminated, there is a resumption of the
suspension of the China Individual isit Scheme, or the global response to contain the CO ID 19 Pandemic
escalates or is unsuccessful, our operations, cash flows and financial condition will be further materially impacted.

While our Macao and Singapore properties were open and operating at reduced levels due to lower visitation
and the implementation of required safety measures as described above during the year ended December 31, 2021,
the current economic and regulatory environment on a global basis and in each of our jurisdictions continues to
evolve. We cannot predict the manner in which governments will react as the global and regional impact of the
CO ID 19 Pandemic changes over time, which could significantly alter our current operations.

We have a strong balance sheet and sufficient liquidity in place, including total cash and cash equivalents
balance, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents, of 1. 5 billion and access to 1.50 billion, 1.75 billion
and 43 million of available borrowing capacity from our L SC evolving acility, 201 SCL evolving acility
and the 2012 Singapore evolving acility, respectively, and SGD 3.69 billion (approximately 2.73 billion at
exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) under our Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility, exclusively for
capital expenditures for the MBS Expansion Project (subject to restrictions as described further in Part I Item 1
Business Development Projects), as of December 31, 2021. We believe we are able to support continuing

operations, complete the major construction projects that are underway and respond to the current CO ID 19
Pandemic challenges. We have taken various mitigating measures to manage through the current environment,
including a cost and capital expenditure reduction program to minimi e cash outflow of non essential items.

Gaming in Macao is administered by the government through concession agreements awarded to three
different concessionaires and three subconcessionaires, of which enetian Macau Limited ( ML, a subsidiary of
Sands China Ltd.) is one. These concession agreements expire on June 26, 2022. If ML s subconcession is not
extended or renewed, ML may be prohibited from conducting gaming operations in Macao, and ML could cease
to generate revenues from the gaming operations when the subconcession agreement expires on June 26, 2022. In
addition, all of ML s casino premises and gaming related equipment could be automatically transferred to the
Macao government without any compensation to ML.

On January 1 , 2022, the Macao Legislative Assembly published a draft bill entitled Amendment to Law No.
16/2001 to amend Macao s gaming Law 16/2002 (the Gaming Law ).
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Certain changes to the Gaming Law set out in the draft bill include a reduction in the term of future gaming
concessions to ten (10) years; authori ation of up to six (6) gaming concession contracts; an increase in the
minimum capital contribution of concessionaires to 5 billion patacas (approximately 622 million at exchange rates
in effect on December 31, 2021); and a prohibition of revenue sharing arrangements between gaming promoters and
concessionaires.

We are actively monitoring developments with respect to the Macao government s Gaming Law amendment
and concession renewal process and we continue to believe we will be successful in extending the term of our
subconcession and/or obtaining a new gaming concession when our current subconcession expires; however, it is
possible the Macao government could further change or interpret the associated gaming laws in a manner that could
negatively impact us.

Under our SCL senior notes indentures, upon the occurrence of any event resulting from any change in
Gaming Law (as defined in the indentures) after which none of Sands China Ltd. ( SCL ) or any of its subsidiaries
own or manage casino or gaming areas or operate casino games of fortune and chance in Macao in substantially the
same manner as they are owning or managing casino or gaming areas or operating casino games as of the issue date
of the SCL senior notes, for a period of 30 consecutive days or more, and such event has a material adverse effect on
the financial condition, business, properties or results of operations of SCL and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole,
each holder of the SCL senior notes would have the right to require us to repurchase all or any part of such holder s
SCL senior notes at par, plus any accrued and unpaid interest (the Investor Put Option ).

Additionally, under the 201 SCL Credit acility, the events that trigger an Investor Put Option under the SCL
senior notes (as described above) would be an event of default, which may result in commitments being immediately
cancelled, in whole or in part, and the related outstanding balances and accrued interest, if any, becoming
immediately due and payable.

The subconcession not being extended or renewed and the potential impact if holders of the notes and the
agent have the ability to, and make the election to, accelerate the repayment of our debt would have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. We intend to follow the
process for a concession renewal once the process and requirements are announced by the Macao government.

Operating revenues at The enetian Macao, The Londoner Macao, The Parisian Macao, The Pla a Macao and
our Seasons Macao, Marina Bay Sands and our Las egas Operating Properties are dependent upon the volume of
customers who stay at the hotel, which affects the price charged for hotel rooms and our gaming volume. Operating
revenues at Sands Macao are principally driven by casino customers who visit the property on a daily basis.

Management utili es the following volume and pricing measures in order to evaluate past performance and
assist in forecasting future revenues. The various volume measurements indicate our ability to attract customers to
our Integrated esorts. In casino operations, win and hold percentages indicate the amount of revenue to be expected
based on volume. In hotel operations, average daily rate and revenue per available room indicate the demand for
rooms and our ability to capture that demand. In mall operations, base rent per square foot indicates our ability to
attract and maintain profitable tenants for our leasable space.

The following are the key measurements we use to evaluate operating revenues:

Macao and Singapore table games are segregated
into two groups: olling Chip play (composed of IP players) and Non olling Chip play (mostly non IP
players). The volume measurement for olling Chip play is non negotiable gaming chips wagered and lost. The
volume measurement for Non olling Chip play is table games drop ("drop"), which is net markers issued (credit
instruments), cash deposited in the table drop boxes and gaming chips purchased and exchanged at the cage. olling
Chip and Non olling Chip volume measurements are not comparable as they are two distinct measures of volume.
The amounts wagered and lost for olling Chip play are substantially higher than the amounts dropped for Non
olling Chip play. Slot handle, also a volume measurement, is the gross amount wagered for the period cited.

We view olling Chip win as a percentage of olling Chip volume, Non olling Chip win as a percentage of
drop and slot hold (amount won by the casino) as a percentage of slot handle. Win or hold percentage represents the
percentage of olling Chip volume, Non olling Chip drop or slot handle that is won by the casino and recorded as
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casino revenue. Our win and hold percentages are calculated before discounts, commissions, deferring revenue
associated with our loyalty programs and allocating casino revenues related to goods and services provided to
patrons on a complimentary basis. Our olling Chip win percentage is expected to be 3.15% to 3.45% in Macao and
Singapore. Actual win percentage may vary from our expected win percentage and historical win and hold
percentages. Generally, slot machine play is conducted on a cash basis. In Macao and Singapore, 14.5% and 7.9%,
respectively, of our table games play was conducted on a credit basis for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The volume measurements in the U.S. are slot handle, as
previously described, and table games drop, which is the total amount of cash and net markers issued deposited in
the table drop box. We view table games win as a percentage of drop and slot hold as a percentage of slot handle.
Our win and hold percentages are calculated before discounts, commissions, deferring revenue associated with our
loyalty programs and allocating casino revenues related to goods and services provided to patrons on a
complimentary basis. Based upon our mix of table games, our table games are expected to produce a win percentage
of 1 % to 26% for Baccarat and 16% to 24% for non Baccarat. Actual win percentage may vary from our expected
win percentage and historical win and hold percentages. Similar to Macao and Singapore, slot machine play is
generally conducted on a cash basis. Approximately 53.9% of our table games play at our Las egas Operating
Properties was conducted on a credit basis for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Performance indicators used are occupancy rate (a volume indicator), which is
the average percentage of available hotel rooms occupied during a period, and average daily room rate ("AD ," a
price indicator), which is the average price of occupied rooms per day. Available rooms exclude those rooms
unavailable for occupancy during the period due to renovation, development or other requirements (such as
government mandated closure, lodging for team members and usage by the Macao and Singapore governments for
quarantine measures). The calculations of the occupancy rate and AD include the impact of rooms provided on a
complimentary basis. evenue per available room (" evPA ") represents a summary of hotel AD and occupancy.
Because not all available rooms are occupied, AD is normally higher than evPA . eserved rooms where the
guests do not show up for their stay and lose their deposit, or where guests check out early, may be re sold to walk
in guests.

Occupancy, base rent per square foot and tenant sales per square foot are used as
performance indicators. Occupancy represents gross leasable occupied area ("GLOA") divided by gross leasable
area ("GLA") at the end of the reporting period. GLOA is the sum of: (1) tenant occupied space under lease and
(2) tenants no longer occupying space, but paying rent. GLA does not include space currently under development or
not on the market for lease. Base rent per square foot is the weighted average base or minimum rent charge,
excluding rent concessions, in effect at the end of the reporting period for all tenants that would qualify to be
included in occupancy. Tenant sales per square foot is the sum of reported comparable sales for the trailing
12 months divided by the comparable square footage for the same period. Only tenants that have been open for a
minimum of 12 months are included in the tenant sales per square foot calculation.

Our financial results continued to be adversely impacted by continued decreased visitation at each of our
operating properties in Asia due to the CO ID 19 Pandemic. See CO ID 19 Pandemic for further information.
Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2021 were 4.23 billion, compared to 2.94 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2020. Operating loss was 6 9 million, compared to operating loss of 1.39 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2020. Net loss from continuing operations was 1.47 billion for the year ended December 31, 2021,
compared to net loss from continuing operations of 1.90 billion for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Our net revenues consisted of the following:

Casino .................................................................................................. 2, 92 2,041 41.7 %
ooms.................................................................................................. 415 2 0 4 .2 %
ood and beverage............................................................................... 199 156 27.6 %
Mall...................................................................................................... 649 3 1 70.3 %
Convention, retail and other ................................................................ 79 2 (3.7)%
Total net revenues................................................................................ 4,234 2,940 44.0 %

Consolidated net revenues were 4.23 billion for the year ended December 31, 2021, an increase of 1.29
billion compared to 2.94 billion for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase consists of increases of
1.19 billion and 107 million at our Macao operations and Marina Bay Sands, respectively, due to increased casino
and rooms revenue from increased visitation related to fewer days in which our gaming operations were closed in
2021 compared to 2020.

Net casino revenues increased 51 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. evenues at our
Macao properties and Marina Bay Sands increased 1 million and 33 million, respectively, driven by increases
in Non olling Chip drop and slot handle. The following table summari es the results of our casino activity:

Total casino revenues .......................................................................... 944 531 77. %
Non olling Chip drop ........................................................................ 3,234 1,925 6 .0 %
Non olling Chip win percentage ....................................................... 27.4 % 25.4 % 2.0 pts
olling Chip volume............................................................................ 4,412 3,775 16.9 %
olling Chip win percentage ............................................................... 3.99 % 3.12 % 0. 7 pts
Slot handle ........................................................................................... 1, 41 1,041 76. %
Slot hold percentage ............................................................................ 3.9 % 4.2 % (0.3)pts

Total casino revenues .......................................................................... 396 192 106.3 %
Non olling Chip drop ........................................................................ 1,755 1 99.2 %
Non olling Chip win percentage ....................................................... 21.6 % 22.6 % (1.0)pts
olling Chip volume............................................................................ 3,674 167 2,100.0 %
olling Chip win percentage ............................................................... 3.23 % 5. 5 % (2.62)pts
Slot handle ........................................................................................... 962 531 1.2 %
Slot hold percentage ............................................................................ 3. % 4.3 % (0.5)pts
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Total casino revenues .......................................................................... 244 1 0 35.6 %
Non olling Chip drop ........................................................................ 1,146 44 35. %
Non olling Chip win percentage ....................................................... 22.3 % 23.1 % (0. )pts
olling Chip volume............................................................................ 502 3,141 ( 4.0) %
olling Chip win percentage ............................................................... 3.73 % 1.13 % 2.60 pts
Slot handle ........................................................................................... 7 7 763 3.1 %
Slot hold percentage ............................................................................ 3.3 % 3.7 % (0.4)pts

Total casino revenues .......................................................................... 29 159 7.4 %
Non olling Chip drop ........................................................................ 1,140 544 109.6 %
Non olling Chip win percentage ....................................................... 23.5 % 24.6 % (1.1)pts
olling Chip volume............................................................................ 2,659 3,656 (27.3) %
olling Chip win percentage ............................................................... 4.64 % 2.46 % 2.1 pts
Slot handle ........................................................................................... 42 37 13.5 %
Slot hold percentage ............................................................................ 5.7 % 4.6 % 1.1 pts

Total casino revenues .......................................................................... 105 107 (1.9) %
Non olling Chip drop ........................................................................ 433 451 (4.0) %
Non olling Chip win percentage ....................................................... 17.1 % 1 .7 % (1.6)pts
olling Chip volume............................................................................ 1,073 1,361 (21.2) %
olling Chip win percentage ............................................................... 4.39 % 2.44 % 1.95 pts
Slot handle ........................................................................................... 606 549 10.4 %
Slot hold percentage ............................................................................ 3.1 % 3.1 % pts

Total casino revenues .......................................................................... 905 72 3. %
Non olling Chip drop ........................................................................ 2,679 2,111 26.9 %
Non olling Chip win percentage ....................................................... 15.0 % 1 .6 % (3.6)pts
olling Chip volume............................................................................ 3,901 9,495 (5 .9) %
olling Chip win percentage ............................................................... 5.79 % 3.56 % 2.23 pts
Slot handle ........................................................................................... 12,0 4 ,915 35.5 %
Slot hold percentage ............................................................................ 4.2 % 4.4 % (0.2)pts

Total casino revenues .......................................................................... 443 22 94.3 %
Table games drop................................................................................. 1,630 1,25 29.6 %
Table games win percentage................................................................ 16.4 % 13.2 % 3.2 pts
Slot handle ........................................................................................... 3, 30 1,951 96.3 %
Slot hold percentage ............................................................................ .5 % .0 % 0.5 pts

(1) The Las egas Operating Properties are classified as a discontinued operation held for sale.

In our experience, average win percentages remain fairly consistent when measured over extended periods of
time with a significant volume of wagers, but can vary considerably within shorter time periods as a result of the
statistical variances associated with games of chance in which large amounts are wagered.
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oom revenues increased 135 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was
primarily due to increased occupancy rates driven by higher visitation across our properties, as well as our properties
being closed for longer periods and select number of rooms being utili ed for government quarantine purposes
during the year ended December 31, 2020. The following table summari es the results of our room activity:

Total room revenues ............................................................................ 77 46 67.4 %
Occupancy rate .................................................................................... 49.7 % 27.2 % 22.5 pts
Average daily room rate (AD ) .......................................................... 155 197 (21.3) %
evenue per available room ( evPA ) .............................................. 77 53 45.3 %

Total room revenues ............................................................................ 90 42 114.3 %
Occupancy rate .................................................................................... 40.3 % 1 .3 % 22.0 pts
Average daily room rate (AD ) .......................................................... 160 164 (2.4) %
evenue per available room ( evPA ) .............................................. 64 30 113.3 %

Total room revenues ............................................................................ 54 33 63.6 %
Occupancy rate .................................................................................... 52.1 % 27.3 % 24. pts
Average daily room rate (AD ) .......................................................... 11 145 (1 .6) %
evenue per available room ( evPA ) .............................................. 61 39 56.4 %

Total room revenues ............................................................................ 45 17 164.7 %
Occupancy rate .................................................................................... 44.3 % 2 .5 % 15. pts
Average daily room rate (AD ) .......................................................... 43 394 11.2 %
evenue per available room ( evPA ) .............................................. 194 113 71.7 %

Total room revenues ............................................................................ 10 6 66.7 %
Occupancy rate .................................................................................... 6 .2 % 39.4 % 2 . pts
Average daily room rate (AD ) .......................................................... 13 157 (12.1) %
evenue per available room ( evPA ) .............................................. 94 62 51.6 %

Total room revenues ............................................................................ 139 136 2.2 %
Occupancy rate .................................................................................... 70.1 % 69.1 % 1.0 pts
Average daily room rate (AD ) .......................................................... 236 313 (24.6) %
evenue per available room ( evPA ) .............................................. 165 216 (23.6) %

Total room revenues ............................................................................ 454 21 10 .3 %
Occupancy rate .................................................................................... 2.4 % 56.3 % 26.1 pts
Average daily room rate (AD ) .......................................................... 221 220 0.5 %
evenue per available room ( evPA ) .............................................. 1 2 124 46. %

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2021, 7% of rooms were under construction for renovation purposes.

(2) The Las egas Operating Properties are classified as a discontinued operation held for sale.
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ood and beverage revenues increased 43 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The
increase was 34 million and 9 million at our Macao properties and Marina Bay Sands, respectively. The increase
was due to increased visitation during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Mall revenues increased 26 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was
primarily due to a 207 million decrease in rent concessions granted to our mall tenants in Macao and Singapore
compared to the year ended December 31, 2020, as well as a 76 million increase in turnover rents. These items
were partially offset by a decrease in occupancy rates for our Macao mall operations.

or further information related to the financial performance of our malls, see "Additional Information
egarding our etail Mall Operations." The following table summari es the results of our malls on the Cotai Strip in
Macao and in Singapore:

Total mall revenues.............................................................................. 194 125 55.2 %
Mall gross leasable area (in square feet).............................................. 14,7 4 12,936 0.2 %
Occupancy ........................................................................................... 79.7 % 3. % (4.1)pts
Base rent per square foot ..................................................................... 292 302 (3.3) %
Tenant sales per square foot(1) ............................................................. 1,34 794 69. %

Total mall revenues.............................................................................. 55 37 4 .6 %
Mall gross leasable area (in square feet).............................................. 532,175 525,206 1.3 %
Occupancy ........................................................................................... 54.4 % 3.9 % (29.5)pts
Base rent per square foot ..................................................................... 152 96 5 .3 %
Tenant sales per square foot(1) ............................................................. 1,462 409 257.5 %

Total mall revenues.............................................................................. 39 27 44.4 %
Mall gross leasable area (in square feet).............................................. 296,322 295,963 0.1 %
Occupancy ........................................................................................... 74.5 % 7 .5 % (4.0)pts
Base rent per square foot ..................................................................... 133 156 (14.7) %
Tenant sales per square foot(1) ............................................................. 64 349 5.7 %

Total mall revenues.............................................................................. 1 4 79 132.9 %
Mall gross leasable area (in square feet).............................................. 244,20 244,104 %
Occupancy ........................................................................................... 94.3 % 94.9 % (0.6)pts
Base rent per square foot ..................................................................... 549 540 1.7 %
Tenant sales per square foot(1) ............................................................. 6,300 2,744 129.6 %

Total mall revenues.............................................................................. 176 112 57.1 %
Mall gross leasable area (in square feet).............................................. 622,362 620,330 0.3 %
Occupancy ........................................................................................... 9 .2 % 9 .2 % pts
Base rent per square foot ..................................................................... 277 25 7.4 %
Tenant sales per square foot(1) ............................................................. 1,614 1,053 53.3 %

Note: This table excludes the results of mall operations at Sands Macao. As a result of the CO ID 19 Pandemic,
tenants were provided rent concessions during the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Base rent per
square foot presented above excludes the impact of these rent concessions.
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(1) Tenant sales per square foot is the sum of reported comparable sales for the trailing 12 months divided by the
comparable square footage for the same period.

(2) The Shoppes at Londoner will feature more than 600,000 square feet of gross leasable area upon completion
of all phases of the renovation and expansion to The Londoner Macao.

Our operating expenses consisted of the following:

Casino .................................................................................................... 2,06 1,5 5 30.5 %
ooms.................................................................................................... 164 136 20.6 %
ood and beverage................................................................................. 244 236 3.4 %
Mall........................................................................................................ 65 59 10.2 %
Convention, retail and other .................................................................. 5 103 (17.5)%
Provision for credit losses ..................................................................... 3 6 (96.5)%
General and administrative.................................................................... 31 79 4.1 %
Corporate ............................................................................................... 211 16 25.6 %
Pre opening............................................................................................ 19 19 %
Development.......................................................................................... 109 1 505.6 %
Depreciation and amorti ation............................................................... 1,041 997 4.4 %
Amorti ation of leasehold interests in land ........................................... 56 55 1. %
Loss on disposal or impairment of assets .............................................. 27 73 (63.0)%
Total operating expenses ....................................................................... 4,923 4,333 13.6 %

Operating expenses were 4.92 billion for the year ended December 31, 2021, an increase of 590 million
compared to 4.33 billion for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was driven by increased visitation
due to fewer days in which our properties were closed during 2021 compared to 2020, and an increase in payroll
related costs due to an increase of 121 million in bonuses and incentives and a decrease in payments from the Job
Support Scheme in Singapore received in 2021. The increase was partially offset by certain cost reduction programs
implemented by management beginning in 2020 due to the impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic. Operating margins
in each business segment remain negatively impacted as we have maintained our staffing levels across our
jurisdictions through significantly reduced visitation. We have also continued our payroll cost saving initiatives
across each of our properties, implemented in 2020, which included utili ation of paid time off and voluntary unpaid
leave.

Casino expenses increased 4 3 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was
primarily attributable to an increase of 412 million in gaming taxes due to increased casino revenues, as previously
described.

oom expenses increased 2 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase consisted
of increases of 17 million and 11 million at our Macao properties and Marina Bay Sands, respectively, consistent
with the increase in room revenue.

Convention, retail and other expenses decreased 1 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020,
driven by a 13 million decrease in ferry expenses resulting from decreases in contract labor costs due to a reduction
in headcount, lower repair and maintenance costs, and lower fuel costs as ferries were under dry dock. Additionally,
convention, retail and other expenses at our Macao properties decreased 5 million as a result of the cancellation of
MICE and entertainment events.

The provision for credit losses was 3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to 6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020. The decrease was primarily due to an increased level of provision recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2020 due to the aging of patron receivables in connection with the impact of the
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CO ID 19 Pandemic. The amount of this provision can vary over short periods of time because of factors specific
to the patrons who owe us money from gaming activities. We believe the amount of our provision for credit losses in
the future will depend upon the state of the economy, our credit standards, our risk assessments and the judgment of
our employees responsible for granting credit.

General and administrative expenses increased 33 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020,
consisted of increases of 1 million and 15 million at our Macao properties and Marina Bay Sands, respectively.
The increases were primarily driven by increases in marketing, payroll and property operation costs.

Corporate expenses increased 43 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was
primarily driven by 36 million related to payroll and related costs, driven by no bonus expense recorded during the
year ended December 31, 2020. In addition, travel and related expenses increased by million due to increases in
corporate aircraft usage and the related fuel costs, as well as higher fuel prices.

Pre opening expenses represent personnel and other costs incurred prior to the opening of new ventures, which
are expensed as incurred. The majority of pre opening expenses incurred related to The Londoner Macao.

Development expenses were 109 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, and include the costs
associated with our evaluation and pursuit of new business opportunities, primarily in lorida and Texas, as well as
our digital gaming efforts. Development costs are also expensed as incurred.

Loss on disposal or impairment of assets was 27 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to
73 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The decrease was primarily due to fewer asset disposals and
related demolition costs incurred during the construction of The Londoner Macao compared to 2020.

The following table summari es information related to our segments (see "Item inancial Statements and
Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements Note 1 Segment Information" for
discussion of our operating segments and a reconciliation of consolidated adjusted property EBITDA to net income/
loss):

Macao:
The enetian Macao ..................................................................... 297 (53) (660.4)%
The Londoner Macao .................................................................... ( 4) (1 4) (54.3)%
The Parisian Macao ....................................................................... (17) (131) ( 7.0)%
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao .................................. 219 33 563.6 %
Sands Macao.................................................................................. (69) (76) (9.2)%
erry Operations and Other........................................................... ( ) (20) (60.0)%

33 (431) (17 .4)%
Marina Bay Sands................................................................................. 44 3 3 17.0 %
Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA(1).......................................... 7 6 (4 ) (1,737.5)%

Las egas Operating Properties(2) ........................................................ 290 (124) (333.9)%

(1) Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA, which is a non GAAP financial measure, is used by management as
the primary measure of the operating performance of our segments. Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA is
net income/loss before stock based compensation expense, corporate expense, pre opening expense,
development expense, depreciation and amorti ation, amorti ation of leasehold interests in land, gain or loss on
disposal or impairment of assets, interest, other income or expense, gain or loss on modification or early
retirement of debt and income taxes. Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA is a supplemental non GAAP
financial measure used by management, as well as industry analysts, to evaluate operations and operating
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performance. In particular, management utili es consolidated adjusted property EBITDA to compare the
operating profitability of our operations with those of our competitors, as well as a basis for determining certain
incentive compensation. Integrated esort companies have historically reported adjusted property EBITDA as a
supplemental performance measure to GAAP financial measures. In order to view the operations of their
properties on a more stand alone basis, Integrated esort companies, including Las egas Sands Corp., have
historically excluded certain expenses that do not relate to the management of specific properties, such as pre
opening expense, development expense and corporate expense, from their adjusted property EBITDA
calculations. Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA should not be interpreted as an alternative to income
from operations (as an indicator of operating performance) or to cash flows from operations (as a measure of
liquidity), in each case, as determined in accordance with GAAP. We have significant uses of cash flow,
including capital expenditures, dividend payments, interest payments, debt principal repayments and income
taxes, which are not reflected in consolidated adjusted property EBITDA. Not all companies calculate adjusted
property EBITDA in the same manner. As a result, our presentation of consolidated adjusted property EBITDA
may not be directly comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies.

(2) The Las egas Operating Properties are classified as a discontinued operation held for sale.

Adjusted property EBITDA at our Macao operations increased 769 million compared to the year ended
December 31, 2020. The increase is primarily due to an increase in casino, mall, and rooms revenues due to fewer
property closures as a result of the CO ID 19 Pandemic. The increases were due to increases in table drop and slot
handle, reduced rent concessions and increases in occupancy and number of rooms available for sale, respectfully.

Adjusted property EBITDA at Marina Bay Sands increased 65 million compared to the year ended December
31, 2020.The increase was primarily due to an increase in casino revenue and mall operations due to fewer property
closures as a result of the CO ID 19 Pandemic. The increases were due to increased slot handle and reduced rent
concessions, respectfully.

Adjusted property EBITDA at our Las egas Operating Properties increased 414 million compared to the
year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily due to increased casino and room revenue due to no
property closures in 2021 as a result of the CO ID 19 Pandemic. The increases were due to increases in table drop
and slot handle and increased occupancy, respectfully.

The following table summari es information related to interest expense:

Interest cost ............................................................................................................... 636 544
Less capitali ed interest .................................................................................... (15) (21)

Interest expense, net .................................................................................................. 621 523
Cash paid for interest................................................................................................. 606 440
Weighted average total debt balance......................................................................... 14,592 13,412
Weighted average interest rate .................................................................................. 4.4 % 4.0 %

Interest cost increased 92 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2020, resulting primarily from
increases in our weighted average interest rate and weighted average total debt balance. The weighted average debt
balance increased in connection with the issuance of the SCL 2026 and 2030 Senior Notes in June 2020 and draws
on the SCL revolver during the year ended December 31, 2021. Additionally, the weighted average interest rate
increased from 4.0% to 4.4% during the year ended December 31, 2021 as a result of the expiration of interest rate
swaps in August 2020 related to the SCL senior notes (see "Item inancial Statements and Supplementary Data
Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements Note 10 Long Term Debt").
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Other expense was 31 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to other income of 19
million during the year ended December 31, 2020. The change is primarily attributable to 51 million of foreign
currency transaction losses, mostly driven by the U.S. dollar denominated debt held by SCL.

Our income tax benefit was 5 million on a loss from continuing operations before income taxes of 1.47
billion for the year ended December 31, 2021, resulting in a (0.3%) effective income tax rate. This compares to a
1.3% effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2020. The income tax benefit for the year ended
December 31, 2021, reflects a 17% statutory tax rate on our Singapore operations, a 21% corporate income tax rate
on our U.S. operations, and a ero percent tax rate on our Macao gaming operations due to our income tax
exemption in Macao. Our U.S. operations recorded a tax benefit associated with the pre tax book losses incurred for
the year ended December 31, 2021. Our U.S. tax benefit was partially offset by a valuation allowance recorded on
certain U.S. foreign tax credits, which we no longer expect to utili e due to lower royalty income resulting from a
decrease in revenues from our Macao and Singapore operations compared to prior estimates.

The net loss attributable to our noncontrolling interests from continuing operations was 315 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021, compared to net loss attributable to our noncontrolling interest from continuing
operations of 45 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. These amounts were related to the noncontrolling
interest of SCL.
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The following tables summari e the results of our mall operations on the Cotai Strip and at Marina Bay Sands
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Mall revenues:
Minimum rents(1)........................................... 1 1 121 29 29 144
Overage rents ........................................... 15 54 15 6 25
ent concessions(2)................................... (31) (1) (3) (6) (24)
Other(3) ..................................................... 6

Total overage rents and rent concessions..... (16) 53 12 7
CAM, levies and direct recoveries................ 29 10 14 10 25
Total mall revenues.......................................... 194 1 4 55 39 176
Mall operating expenses:
Common area maintenance........................... 12 5 7 4 16
Marketing and other direct operating
expenses .................................................... 6 4 3 2 6

Mall operating expenses .................................. 1 9 10 6 22
Property taxes(4) ........................................... 1 2
Provision for (recovery of) credit losses...... (1) 3

Mall related expenses(5) ................................... 1 9 10 9 24

Mall revenues:
Minimum rents(1)........................................... 192 121 37 34 137
Overage rents ........................................... 13 10 4 2 11
ent concessions(2)................................... (111) (61) (22) (20) (56)

Total overage rents and rent concessions..... (9 ) (51) (1 ) (1 ) (45)
CAM, levies and direct recoveries................ 31 9 1 11 20
Total mall revenues.......................................... 125 79 37 27 112
Mall operating expenses:
Common area maintenance........................... 11 4 6 4 13
Marketing and other direct operating
expenses .................................................... 5 5 2 3 5

Mall operating expenses .................................. 16 9 7 1
Property taxes(4) ........................................... 2 2
Provision for credit losses............................ 1 1

Mall related expenses(5) ................................... 19 9 9 7 20

Note: This table excludes the results of our mall operations at Sands Macao.

(1) Minimum rents include base rents and straight line adjustments of base rents.

(2) ent concessions were provided to tenants as a result of the CO ID 19 Pandemic and the related impact on
mall operations.

(3) The amount for Marina Bay Sands of 6 million related to a grant provided by the Singapore government to
lessors to support small and medium enterprises impacted by the CO ID 19 Pandemic in connection with
their rent obligations.

55



(4) Commercial property that generates rental income is exempt from property tax for the first six years for newly
constructed buildings in Cotai. Each property is also eligible to obtain an additional six year exemption,
provided certain qualifications are met. To date, The enetian Macao, The Pla a Macao and our Seasons
Macao, The Londoner Macao and The Parisian Macao have obtained a second exemption. The exemption for
The enetian Macao and The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao expired in August 2019 and August
2020, respectively, and the exemption for The Londoner Macao and The Parisian Macao will be expiring in
December 2027 and September 202 , respectively.

(5) Mall related expenses consist of CAM, marketing fees and other direct operating expenses, property taxes
and provision for credit losses, but excludes depreciation and amorti ation and general and administrative
costs.

It is common in the mall operating industry for companies to disclose mall net operating income ("NOI") as a
useful supplemental measure of a mall s operating performance. Because NOI excludes general and administrative
expenses, interest expense, impairment losses, depreciation and amorti ation, gains and losses from property
dispositions, allocations to noncontrolling interests and provision for income taxes, it provides a performance
measure that, when compared year over year, reflects the revenues and expenses directly associated with owning and
operating commercial real estate properties and the impact on operations from trends in occupancy rates, rental rates
and operating costs.

In the table above, we believe taking total mall revenues less mall related expenses provides an operating
performance measure for our malls. Other mall operating companies may use different methodologies for deriving
mall related expenses. As such, this calculation may not be comparable to the NOI of other mall operating
companies.

A discussion of changes in our results of operations between 2020 and 2019 has been omitted from this orm
10 K and can be found in "Item 7 Management s Discussion and Analysis of inancial Condition and esults of
Operations ear Ended December 31, 2020 Compared to the ear Ended December 31, 2019" of the Company s
Annual eport on orm 10 K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.
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Our cash flows consisted of the following:

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities ............................................. (243) (1,191)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Net proceeds from sale of Sands Bethlehem......................................................
Capital expenditures........................................................................................... ( 2 ) (1,227)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment........................................... 7 1
Acquisition of intangible assets and other ......................................................... (11)

Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities.............................................. ( 32) (1,226)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from exercise of stock options............................................................ 19 24
epurchase of common stock ............................................................................
Dividends paid and noncontrolling interest payments ....................................... (911)
Proceeds from long term debt............................................................................ 2,702 1,945
epayments of long term debt ........................................................................... (1, 67) (467)
Payments of financing costs............................................................................... (3 ) (31)
Make whole premium on early extinguishment of debt .................................... (131)
Transaction with discontinued operations.......................................................... 17 (205)

Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities from continuing operations. 63 355

Net cash generated from (used in) discontinued operations...................................... 16 (19)

Effect of exchange rate on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash...................... (16) (24)
Decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents ........... (212) (2,105)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year ........................................................................................................................ 2,137 4,242

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of year ....... 1,925 2,137
Less: cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period for discontinued
operations............................................................................................................... (55) (39)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period from continuing
operations............................................................................................................... 1, 70 2,09

A discussion of changes in cash flows between 2020 and 2019 has been omitted from this orm 10 K and can
be found in "Item 7 Management s Discussion and Analysis of inancial Condition and esults of Operations
Liquidity and Capital esources" of the Company s Annual eport on orm 10 K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2020.

Table games play at our properties is conducted on a cash and credit basis, while slot machine play is primarily
conducted on a cash basis. Our rooms, food and beverage and other non gaming revenues are conducted primarily
on a cash basis or as a trade receivable, resulting in operating cash flows being generally affected by changes in
operating income and accounts receivable. or the year ended December 31, 2021, cash used in operations was
243 million, a decrease of 94 million compared to 1.19 billion for the year ended December 31, 2020, primarily
resulting from a decrease in net loss as our properties remained opened during the year ended December 31, 2021,
with the exception of the closure of the casino at Marina Bay Sands on two different occasions (approximately 15
days total), compared to the year ended December 31, 2020, in which our properties were closed at various times
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and for an extended period. Additionally, our net working capital requirements decreased during the year ended
December 31, 2021.

Capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2021, totaled 2 million, including 653 million in
Macao, which consisted of 551 million for The Londoner Macao, 71 million for The enetian Macao and
19 million for The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao; 14 million at Marina Bay Sands in Singapore; and
27 million for corporate and other.

Capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2020, totaled 1.23 billion, including 1.06 billion in
Macao, which consisted of 739 million for The Londoner Macao, 157 million for The Pla a Macao and our
Seasons Macao primarily for The Grand Suites at our Seasons, and 140 million for The enetian Macao;
164 million in Singapore; and 5 million for corporate and other.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were 63 million for the year ended December 31, 2021,
which was primarily attributable to net proceeds of 756 million, received from the drawdown of our SCL revolving
facility, and transactions with discontinued operations. These items were partially offset by a 131 million make
whole premium for the early redemption of the SCL senior note due 2023 and 3 million in financing costs related
to the issuance of the new unsecured notes at SCL and the covenant waivers obtained on the L SC evolving
acility, 201 SCL Credit acility and 2012 Singapore Credit acility.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were 355 million for the year ended December 31, 2020,
which was primarily attributable to the issuance of 1.50 billion of unsecured notes at SCL, partially offset by
911 million in dividend payments, and transactions with discontinued operations.

As of December 31, 2021, we had 3.6 billion available for borrowing under our U.S., Macao and Singapore
revolving facilities, net of letters of credit. Additionally, we had 2.73 billion available for borrowing under the
2012 Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility to finance construction costs incurred in connection with the MBS
Expansion Project.

We fund our development projects primarily through borrowings from our debt instruments (see "Item
inancial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements Note 10 Long
Term Debt") and operating cash flows.

In September 2021, SCL issued, in a private offering, three series of unsecured notes in an aggregate principal
amount of 1.95 billion. The net proceeds from the offering, along with cash on hand, was used to redeem in full the
outstanding principal amount of the 1. 0 billion 4.600% senior notes due 2023, any accrued interest and the
associated make whole premium as determined under the related senior notes indenture dated as of August 9, 201 .
(See "Item inancial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements
Note 10 Long Term Debt Corporate and U.S. elated Debt SCL Senior Notes").

Our U.S., SCL and Singapore credit facilities, as amended, contain various financial covenants, which include
maintaining a maximum leverage ratio or net debt, as defined, to trailing twelve month adjusted earnings before
interest, income taxes, depreciation and amorti ation, as defined. In September 2021, L SC extended the
amendment, pursuant to which lenders, among other things, removed L SC s requirement to maintain a maximum
leverage ratio as of the last day of the fiscal quarter, through and including December 31, 2022. In July 2021, SCL
extended the waiver and amendment request letter, pursuant to which lenders, among other things, waived SCL s
requirement to ensure the leverage ratio does not exceed 4.0x and the interest coverage ratio is greater than 2.50x,
through January 1, 2023. In September 2021, MBS extended the amendment letter, pursuant to which MBS will not
have to comply with the leverage or interest coverage covenants as of the last day of the fiscal quarter, through and
including December 31, 2022. Our compliance with our financial covenants for periods beyond December 31, 2022
could be affected by certain factors beyond our control, such as the impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic, including
current travel and border restrictions continuing in the future. We will pursue additional waivers to meet the required
financial covenant ratios, which include a maximum leverage ratio of 4.0x, 4.0x and 4.5x under our U.S., Macao and
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Singapore credit facilities, respectively, for periods beyond December 31, 2022 for L SC and MBS and January 1,
2023 for SCL, if deemed necessary. We believe we will be successful in obtaining the additional waivers, although
no assurance can be provided that such waivers will be granted, which could negatively impact our ability to be in
compliance with our debt covenants for periods beyond December 31, 2022 for L SC and MBS and January 1,
2023 for SCL.

In addition, pursuant to the Second Amendment and subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions specified
therein, the requisite lenders under the existing L SC evolving Credit Agreement consented to, and waived any
applicable restrictions prohibiting, the consummation of the announced sale of the Las egas Operations.

Any defaults under our debt agreements would allow the lenders, in each case, to exercise their rights and
remedies as defined under their respective agreements. If the lenders were to exercise their rights to accelerate the
due dates of the indebtedness outstanding, there can be no assurance we would be able to repay or refinance any
amounts that may become due and payable under such agreements, which could force us to restructure or alter our
operations or debt obligations.

We held unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of 1. 5 billion and restricted cash and cash equivalents of 16
million as of December 31, 2021, of which approximately 1.06 billion of the unrestricted amount is held by non
U.S. subsidiaries. Of the 1.06 billion, approximately 706 million is available to be repatriated to the U.S., and we
do not expect withholding taxes or other foreign income taxes to apply should these earnings be distributed in the
form of dividends or otherwise. The remaining unrestricted amounts held by non U.S. subsidiaries are not available
for repatriation primarily due to dividend requirements to third party public stockholders in the case of funds being
repatriated from SCL.

We believe the cash on hand and cash flow generated from operations, as well as the 3.6 billion available for
borrowing under our U.S., Macao and Singapore credit facilities, net of outstanding letters of credit, and SGD
3.69 billion (approximately 2.73 billion at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) under the 2012
Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility, as of December 31, 2021, will be sufficient to maintain compliance with the
financial covenants of our credit facilities and fund our working capital needs, committed and planned capital
expenditures, development opportunities and debt obligations. If the construction cost estimate and construction
schedule to the MBS Expansion Project are not delivered by the extended deadline, we will not be permitted to make
further draws on the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility after March 31, 2022 until these items are delivered to
lenders. In the normal course of our activities, we will continue to evaluate global capital markets to consider future
opportunities for enhancements of our capital structure. During 2020, we entered into an amendment request letter
on the 201 SCL Credit acility, which provides us with the option to increase the total borrowing capacity by an
aggregate amount of up to 1.0 billion. Subsequently, on January 25, 2021, we increased the amount available under
the SCL revolving credit facility by HKD 3. 3 billion (approximately 491 million in exchange rates in effect on
December 31, 2021) to further enhance our liquidity. During the year ended December 31, 2021, SCL drew down
71 million and HKD 5.31 billion (approximately 6 1 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021)
under this facility for general corporate purposes.

We have suspended our quarterly dividend program beginning in April 2020, and SCL suspended its dividend
payments after paying its interim dividend for 2019 on ebruary 21, 2020.

In June 201 , our Board of Directors authori ed the repurchase of 2.50 billion of our outstanding common
stock, which was to expire in November 2020. In October 2020, our Board of Directors authori ed the extension of
the expiration date of the remaining repurchase amount of 916 million to November 2022. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, no shares of our common stock were repurchased under this program. All share repurchases of
our common stock have been recorded as treasury stock. epurchases of our common stock are made at our
discretion in accordance with applicable federal securities laws in the open market or otherwise. The timing and
actual number of shares to be repurchased in the future will depend on a variety of factors, including our financial
position, earnings, cash flows, legal requirements, other investment opportunities and market conditions.

We believe we have a strong balance sheet and sufficient liquidity in place, including access to available
borrowing capacity under our credit facilities. We also believe we are well positioned to support our continuing
operations, complete the major construction projects in Macao and Singapore that are underway and respond to the
current CO ID 19 Pandemic challenges. We have taken various mitigating measures to manage through the current
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environment, including a cost and capital expenditure reduction program to minimi e cash outflow for non essential
items.

Our total long term indebtedness and other contractual obligations are summari ed below as of December 31,
2021:

L SC Senior Notes ................................................ 1,750 1,500 750 4,000
SCL Senior Notes ................................................... 2,600 4,550 7,150
201 SCL Credit acility evolving ................. 753 753
2012 Singapore Credit acility............................... 62 200 2,6 3 2,945
Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility ................. 46 46
inance Leases, Including Imputed Interest ........... 10 14 2 26
ixed Interest Payments.......................................... 441 90 649 552 2,532
ariable Interest Payments(3) .................................. 79 133 71 2 3

Operating Leases, Including Imputed Interest(4)..... 16 19 11 310 356
Mall Deposits(5)....................................................... 5 5 16 11 143
Macao Annual Premium(6) ...................................... 22 22
Other(7) .................................................................... 92 126 5 149 452
Total........................................................................ 7 0 3,943 7,663 6,322 1 ,70

(1) As of December 31, 2021, we had a 79 million liability related to uncertain tax positions; we do not expect
this liability to result in a payment of cash within the next 12 months. We are unable to reasonably estimate
the timing of the liability in individual years beyond 12 months due to uncertainties in the timing of the
effective settlement of tax positions; therefore, such amounts are not included in the table.

(2) See "Item inancial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements
Note 10 Long Term Debt" for further details on these financing transactions and "Item inancial

Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements Note 14 Leases"
for further details on finance leases.

(3) Based on the 1 month rate as of December 31, 2021, London Inter Bank Offered ate ("LIBO ") of 0.10%,
Hong Kong Inter Bank Offer ate ( HIBO ) of 0.16% and Singapore Swap Offer ate ("SO ") of 0.32%,
plus the applicable interest rate spread in accordance with the respective debt agreements.

(4) We are party to certain operating leases for real estate, which primarily include 324 million related to long
term land leases in Macao with an anticipated lease term of 50 years and 17 million related to a long term
land lease in Las egas with a 40 year lease term. See "Item inancial Statements and Supplementary
Data Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements Note 14 Leases" for further details on operating
leases.

(5) Mall deposits consist of refundable security deposits received from mall tenants.

(6) In addition to the 39% gross gaming win tax in Macao (which is not included in this table as the amount we
pay is variable in nature), we are required to pay an annual premium with a fixed portion and a variable
portion, which is based on the number and type of gaming tables and gaming machines we operate. Based on
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the gaming tables and gaming machines in operation as of December 31, 2021, the annual premium payable
to the Macao government is approximately 22 million through the termination of the gaming subconcession
in June 2022.

(7) Primarily consists of all other non cancellable contractual obligations and primarily relates to certain hotel
and restaurant management and service agreements. The amounts exclude open purchase orders with our
suppliers that have not yet been received as these agreements generally allow us the option to cancel,
reschedule and adjust terms based on our business needs prior to the delivery of goods or performance of
services.

We have not entered into any transactions with special purpose entities, nor have we engaged in any derivative
transactions other than foreign currency swaps. efer to Note 9 Derivative Instruments for outstanding foreign
currency swaps as of December 31, 2021.

We are a parent company with limited business operations. Our main asset is the stock and membership
interests of our subsidiaries. Certain of our debt instruments contain restrictions that, among other things, limit the
ability of certain subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, issue disqualified stock or equity interests, pay
dividends or make other distributions, repurchase equity interests or certain indebtedness, create certain liens, enter
into certain transactions with affiliates, enter into certain mergers or consolidations or sell certain assets of our
Company without prior approval of the lenders or noteholders.

This report contains forward looking statements made pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation eform Act of 1995. These forward looking statements include the discussions of our business
strategies and expectations concerning future operations, margins, profitability, liquidity and capital resources. In
addition, in certain portions included in this report, the words: anticipates, believes, estimates, seeks,
expects, plans, intends and similar expressions, as they relate to our Company or management, are intended to
identify forward looking statements. Although we believe these forward looking statements are reasonable, we
cannot assure you any forward looking statements will prove to be correct. These forward looking statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors beyond our control, which may cause our actual
results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by these forward looking statements. These factors include, among others, the
risks associated with:

• the uncertainty of the extent, duration and effects of the CO ID 19 Pandemic and the response of
governments and other third parties, including government mandated property closures, increased
operational regulatory requirements or travel restrictions, on our business, results of operations, cash flows,
liquidity and development prospects;

• our ability to maintain our gaming licenses and subconcession in Macao, Singapore and Las egas,
including the renewal or extension of the subconcession in Macao that expires on June 26, 2022;

• our ability to invest in future growth opportunities;

• the ability to execute our previously announced capital expenditure programs in both Macao and Singapore,
and produce future returns;

• the satisfaction of the conditions precedent to the consummation of the proposed sale of our Las egas real
property and operations, including the enetian esort Las egas and the Sands Expo and Convention
Center (the Proposed Transaction ), including the receipt of regulatory approvals;

• unanticipated difficulties or expenditures relating to the Proposed Transaction;

• legal proceedings, judgments or settlements that may be instituted in connection with the Proposed
Transaction, including those against us, our board of directors and executive officers and others;
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• disruptions of current plans and operations caused by the announcement and pendency of the Proposed
Transaction;

• potential difficulties in employee retention due to the announcement and pendency of the Proposed
Transaction;

• the response of patrons, suppliers, business partners and regulators to the announcement of the Proposed
Transaction;

• general economic and business conditions in the U.S. and internationally, which may impact levels of
disposable income, consumer spending, group meeting business, pricing of hotel rooms and retail and mall
tenant sales;

• disruptions or reductions in travel and our operations due to natural or man made disasters, pandemics,
epidemics or outbreaks of infectious or contagious diseases, political instability, civil unrest, terrorist activity
or war;

• the uncertainty of consumer behavior related to discretionary spending and vacationing at our Integrated
esorts;

• the extensive regulations to which we are subject and the costs of compliance or failure to comply with such
regulations;

• new developments, construction projects and ventures, including our Cotai Strip developments and MBS
Expansion Project;

• regulatory policies in China or other countries in which our patrons reside, or where we have operations,
including visa restrictions limiting the number of visits or the length of stay for visitors from China to
Macao, restrictions on foreign currency exchange or importation of currency, and the judicial enforcement of
gaming debts;

• our leverage, debt service and debt covenant compliance, including the pledge of certain of our assets (other
than our equity interests in our subsidiaries) as security for our indebtedness and ability to refinance our debt
obligations as they come due or to obtain sufficient funding for our planned, or any future, development
projects;

• fluctuations in currency exchange rates and interest rates;

• increased competition for labor and materials due to planned construction projects in Macao and Singapore
and quota limits on the hiring of foreign workers;

• our ability to compete for limited management and labor resources in Macao and Singapore, and policies of
those governments may also affect our ability to employ imported managers or labor from other countries;

• our dependence upon properties primarily in Macao, Singapore and Las egas for all of our cash flow and
the ability of our subsidiaries to make distribution payments to us;

• the passage of new legislation and receipt of governmental approvals for our operations in Macao and
Singapore and other jurisdictions where we are planning to operate;

• our insurance coverage may not be adequate to cover all possible losses that our properties could suffer and
our insurance costs may increase in the future;

• our ability to collect gaming receivables from our credit players;

• our relationship with gaming promoters in Macao;

• our dependence on chance and theoretical win rates;

• fraud and cheating;

• our ability to establish and protect our intellectual property rights;
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• conflicts of interest that arise because certain of our directors and officers are also directors and officers of
SCL;

• government regulation of the casino industry (as well as new laws and regulations and changes to existing
laws and regulations), including gaming license regulation, the requirement for certain beneficial owners of
our securities to be found suitable by gaming authorities, the legali ation of gaming in other jurisdictions and
regulation of gaming on the internet;

• increased competition in Macao and Las egas, including recent and upcoming increases in hotel rooms,
meeting and convention space, retail space, potential additional gaming licenses and online gaming;

• the popularity of Macao, Singapore and Las egas as convention and trade show destinations;

• new taxes, changes to existing tax rates or proposed changes in tax legislation;

• the continued services of our key officers;

• any potential conflict between the interests of our Principal Stockholders and us;

• labor actions and other labor problems;

• our failure to maintain the integrity of our information and information systems or comply with applicable
privacy and data security requirements and regulations could harm our reputation and adversely affect our
business;

• the completion of infrastructure projects in Macao;

• potential negative impacts from environmental, social and governance and sustainability matters; and

• the outcome of any ongoing and future litigation.

All future written and verbal forward looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf
are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. New
risks and uncertainties arise from time to time, and it is impossible for us to predict these events or how they may
affect us. eaders are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward looking statements. We assume no
obligation to update any forward looking statements after the date of this report as a result of new information,
future events or developments, except as required by federal securities laws.

Investors and others should note we announce material financial information using our investor relations
website (https://investor.sands.com), our company website, SEC filings, investor events, news and earnings releases,
public conference calls and webcasts. We use these channels to communicate with our investors and the public about
our company, our products and services, and other issues.

In addition, we post certain information regarding SCL, a subsidiary of Las egas Sands Corp. with ordinary
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from time to time on our company website and our
investor relations website. It is possible the information we post regarding SCL could be deemed to be material
information.

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires our management to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities. These estimates and judgments are based on historical information, information currently available to us
and on various other assumptions management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
could vary from those estimates and we may change our estimates and assumptions in future evaluations. Changes in
these estimates and assumptions may have a material effect on our results of operations and financial condition. We
believe the critical accounting policies discussed below affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
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We maintain a provision for expected credit losses on casino, hotel and mall receivables and regularly evaluate
the balances. We apply standard reserve percentages to aged account balances, which are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and days past due. The reserve percentages are based on estimated loss rates supported by
historical observed default rates over the expected life of the receivable and are adjusted for forward looking
information. We also specifically analy e the collectability of each account with a balance over a specified dollar
amount, based upon the age of the account, the customer s financial condition, collection history and any other
known information and adjust the aforementioned reserve with the results from the individual reserve analysis. We
also monitor regional and global economic conditions and forecasts, which include the impact of the CO ID 19
Pandemic, in our evaluation of the adequacy of the recorded reserves.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, there continued to be a delay in payments on casino receivables
due to the inability of patrons to travel to our properties or to accomplish financial transactions due to the travel
restrictions caused by the CO ID 19 Pandemic. The collection of casino receivables has also been impacted by
liquidity issues faced by certain patrons also stemming from the CO ID 19 Pandemic. We have increased the
provision for credit losses in each jurisdiction accordingly to account for the expected credit losses due to the
CO ID 19 Pandemic. We continue to closely monitor any delays in payments due to the CO ID 19 Pandemic and
will increase the provision accordingly depending on the facts and circumstances. Although we believe the provision
on our casino receivables is adequate as of December 31, 2021, it is possible our provisions could increase if we
experience further delays on payments from patrons.

Account balances are written off against the provision when we believe it is probable the receivable will not be
recovered. Credit or marker play was 14.5%, 7.9% and 53.9% of table games play at our Macao properties, Marina
Bay Sands and Las egas Operating Properties, respectively, during the year ended December 31, 2021. Our
provision for casino credit losses was 72.5% and 59. % of gross casino receivables as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively. The credit extended to gaming promoters can be offset by the commissions payable to said
gaming promoters, which is considered in the establishment of the provision for credit losses. Our provision for
credit losses from our hotel and other receivables is not material.

We are subject to various claims and legal actions. We estimate the accruals for these claims and legal actions
based on all relevant facts and circumstances currently available and include such accruals in other accrued
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets when it is determined such contingencies are both probable and
reasonably estimable.

As of December 31, 2021, we had net property and equipment of 11. 5 billion, representing 59.1% of our
total assets. We depreciate property and equipment on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives are based on the nature of the assets as well as current operating strategy and legal
considerations, such as contractual life. uture events, such as property expansions, property developments, new
competition or new regulations, could result in a change in the manner in which we use certain assets requiring a
change in the estimated useful lives of such assets. The estimated useful lives of assets are periodically reviewed and
adjusted as necessary on a prospective basis.

or assets to be held and used (including projects under development), fixed assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist. If an indicator of impairment exists, we first group our assets
with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the
cash flows of other assets and liabilities (the "asset group"). Secondly, we estimate the undiscounted future cash
flows directly associated with and expected to arise from the completion, use and eventual disposition of such asset
group. We estimate the undiscounted cash flows over the remaining useful life of the primary asset within the asset
group. If the undiscounted cash flows exceed the carrying value, no impairment is indicated. If the undiscounted
cash flows do not exceed the carrying value, then an impairment is measured based on fair value compared to
carrying value, with fair value typically based on a discounted cash flow model. If an asset is still under
development, future cash flows include remaining construction costs.
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To estimate the undiscounted cash flows of our asset groups, we consider all potential cash flows scenarios,
which are probability weighted based on management s estimates given current conditions. Determining the
recoverability of our asset groups is judgmental in nature and requires the use of significant estimates and
assumptions, including estimated cash flows, probability weighting of potential scenarios, costs to complete
construction for assets under development, growth rates and future market conditions, among others. uture changes
to our estimates and assumptions based upon changes in macro economic factors, regulatory environments,
operating results or management s intentions may result in future changes to the recoverability of our asset groups.

or assets to be held for sale, the fixed assets (the "disposal group") are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell. Losses are recogni ed for any initial or subsequent write down to fair value
less costs to sell, while gains are recogni ed for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell, but not in
excess of the cumulative loss previously recogni ed. Any gains or losses not previously recogni ed that result from
the sale of the disposal group shall be recogni ed at the date of sale. ixed assets are not depreciated while classified
as held for sale.

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. (including federal and state) and numerous foreign jurisdictions in
which we operate. We record income taxes under the asset and liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recogni ed based on the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and attributable
to operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

Our foreign and U.S. tax rate differential reflects the fact that U.S. tax rates are higher than the statutory tax
rates in Singapore and Macao of 17% and 12%, respectively. In August 201 , we received an additional exemption
from Macao s corporate income tax on profits generated by the operation of casino games of chance for the period
January 1, 2019 through June 26, 2022, the date our subconcession agreement expires. Additionally, we entered into
an agreement with the Macao government in April 2019, effective through June 26, 2022, providing for payments as
a substitution for a tax otherwise due from ML shareholders on dividend distributions paid from ML gaming
profits, namely a payment of 3 million patacas (approximately 5 million at exchange rates in effect on December
31, 2021) for each of the years 2021, 2020 and 2019, each payment to be made on or before January 31 of the
following year, and a payment of 1 million patacas (approximately 2 million at exchange rates in effect on
December 31, 2021) for the period between January 1, 2022 through June 26, 2022, to be paid on or before July 26,
2022. There is no assurance either of these tax arrangements will be extended beyond their expiration dates.

Accounting standards regarding income taxes require a reduction of the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets
by a valuation allowance, if based on the available evidence, it is "more likely than not" such assets will not be
reali ed. Accordingly, the need to establish valuation allowances for deferred tax assets is assessed at each reporting
period based on a "more likely than not" reali ation threshold. This assessment considers, among other matters, the
nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative losses, forecasts of future profitability, the duration of
statutory carryforward periods, our experience with operating loss and tax credit carryforwards not expiring and tax
planning strategies.

We recorded a valuation allowance on the net deferred tax assets of certain foreign jurisdictions
of 416 million and 342 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and a valuation allowance on
certain net deferred tax assets of our U.S. operations of 4.62 billion and 4.5 billion as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively. Due to the impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic and the resulting reduction in estimated royalty
income from an expected decrease in our Macao and Singapore operations, we recorded a valuation allowance on
certain U.S. foreign tax credits, which we no longer expect to utili e during the period 2022 through 2027 before
their expiration. We believe we made reasonable estimates and judgments in performing the analysis in light of the
uncertainties surrounding the CO ID 19 Pandemic; however, should the effects of the CO ID 19 Pandemic persist
for a prolonged duration, we could be required to record additional valuation allowances. Management will reassess
the reali ation of deferred tax assets each reporting period and consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, sources of taxable income and tax planning strategies. To the extent the financial results of these
operations improve and it becomes "more likely than not" the deferred tax assets are reali able, we will be able to
reduce the valuation allowance in the period such determination is made, as appropriate.
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Significant judgment is required in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provision for income
taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Accounting standards regarding uncertainty in income taxes provides a two step approach to
recogni ing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is "more likely than not" the position will be sustained
on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax
benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely, based solely on the technical merits, of being sustained on
examinations. We recorded unrecogni ed tax benefits of 136 million and 131 million as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively. We consider many factors when evaluating and estimating our tax positions and tax benefits,
which may require periodic adjustments and for which actual outcomes may be different.

Our major tax jurisdictions are the U.S., Macao, and Singapore. We could be subject to examination for tax
years beginning in 2017 in Macao and Singapore and tax years 2010 through 2015 and 201 through 2020 in the
U.S.

See related disclosure at "Item inancial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated
inancial Statements Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ecent Accounting
Pronouncements."

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates,
foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. Our primary exposures to market risk are interest rate risk
associated with our long term debt and foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with our operations outside
the United States, which we may manage through the use of futures, options, caps, forward contracts and similar
instruments. We do not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes and do not enter into derivative
transactions that would be considered speculative positions.

As of December 31, 2021, the estimated fair value of our long term debt was approximately 15.06 billion,
compared to its contractual value of 14.90 billion. The estimated fair value of our long term debt is based on recent
trades, if available, and indicative pricing from market information (level 2 inputs). A hypothetical 100 basis point
change in market rates would cause the fair value of our long term debt to change by 515 million. A hypothetical
100 basis point change in LIBO , HIBO and SO would cause our annual interest cost on our long term debt to
change by approximately 37 million.

oreign currency transaction losses for the year ended December 31, 2021, were 34 million primarily due to
U.S. dollar denominated debt issued by SCL and by Singapore dollar denominated intercompany debt reported in
U.S. dollars. We may be vulnerable to changes in the U.S. dollar/SGD and U.S. dollar/pataca exchange rates. Based
on balances as of December 31, 2021, a hypothetical 10% weakening of the U.S. dollar/SGD exchange rate would
cause a foreign currency transaction loss of approximately 22 million and a hypothetical 1% weakening of the U.S.
dollar/pataca exchange rate would cause a foreign currency transaction loss of approximately 53 million (net of the
impact from the foreign currency swap agreements). The pataca is pegged to the Hong Kong dollar and the Hong
Kong dollar is pegged to the U.S. dollar (within a narrow range). We maintain a significant amount of our operating
funds in the same currencies in which we have obligations thereby reducing our exposure to currency fluctuations.
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To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of Las egas Sands Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Las egas Sands Corp. and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive
income (loss), equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, and the
related notes and the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a)(2) (collectively referred to as the
"financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the Company s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on
criteria established in issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organi ations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated ebruary 4, 2022, expressed an unqualified
opinion on the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial
statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to
accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion
on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below,
providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2021 include credit extended to casino patrons and gaming promoters. The
Company records a provision for credit losses based on the amount of expected credit losses. The Company applies
standard reserve percentages to aged account balances, which are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and days past due. The reserve percentages are based on estimated loss rates supported by historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the receivable and are adjusted for forward looking information. The Company also
specifically analy es the collectability of each account with a balance over a specified dollar amount, based upon the
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age of the account, the customer s financial condition, collection history, and any other known information and
adjusts the aforementioned reserve with the results from the individual reserve analysis.

Auditing the valuation of accounts receivable involved a high degree of subjectivity in evaluating management s
judgments related to the collectability of patron accounts receivable, especially as it relates to the evaluation of
patron assets available to repay amounts owed.

We planned and performed the following procedures in connection with forming our overall opinion on the financial
statements:

• We tested the operating effectiveness of controls over the granting of casino credit, controls over the
collection processes and management s review controls over the assessment of the collectability of casino
receivables, including the information used by management in those controls.

• or a selection of casino receivables, we (1) obtained evidence related to payment history and
correspondence with patron or gaming promoter, (2) evaluated management s use of this information in
establishing a provision for credit losses, and (3) examined subsequent settlement, if any.

• Performed a retrospective analysis of historical reserves evaluating subsequent collections and write offs.

The Company classified (i) senior notes issued by the Company s 69.9% owned subsidiary, Sands China, Ltd.
( SCL ), with an aggregate carrying value of 7,091 million (the SCL Senior Notes ), and (ii) 753 million in
loans outstanding under the SCL s revolving credit facility (the SCL Loans ) as long term debt as of December 31,
2021. The SCL Senior Notes mature, and the SCL revolving credit facility (of which the SCL Loans are part)
terminates, beyond one year after December 31, 2021.

enetian Macau Limited ( ML ), a subsidiary of SCL and indirect subsidiary of the Company, conducts gaming
operations in Macao pursuant to concession agreements awarded by the Macao government to three different
concessionaires and three subconcessionaires, of which ML is one. These concession agreements are set to expire
on June 26, 2022. SCL intends to follow the process for a concession renewal once the process and requirements are
announced by the Macao government. The indentures of the SCL Senior Notes include an Investor Put Option that
could potentially be triggered if none of SCL or any of its subsidiaries own or manage casino or gaming areas in
Macao or operates casino games in substantially the same manner as of the SCL Senior Notes issue date for a period
of 30 consecutive days or more and such event has a material adverse effect on the financial condition, business
properties, or results of operations of SCL and its subsidiaries taken as a whole. If both of these conditions occur, it
would result in each holder of the SCL Senior Notes having the right to require SCL to repurchase all or any part of
such holder s SCL Senior Notes, potentially within one year of December 31, 2021. Additionally, under the terms of
SCL s credit facility, the events that trigger an Investor Put Option under the SCL Senior Notes (as described above)
would be an event of default, which may result in commitments being immediately cancelled, in whole or in part,
and the related outstanding balances and accrued interest, if any, becoming immediately due and payable.

Auditing the classification of the SCL Senior Notes and SCL Loans as current or noncurrent liabilities involved a
high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, as this classification is, in part, dependent on
management s assessment of the probability of the Investor Put Option becoming exercisable within one year of
December 31, 2021, which is a subjective assessment that required management to consider many factors,
specifically as it relates to the likelihood of the gaming subconcession being extended or renewed beyond June 26,
2022.
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Our audit procedures related to management s assessment of the likelihood of the gaming subconcession being
extended or renewed included the following, among others:

• We tested the effectiveness of controls over management s process to determine the classification of debt,
including such controls over (i) assessing the likelihood of the gaming subconcession being extended or
renewed and (ii) identifying and assessing applicable authoritative accounting standards and related
interpretive literature, as well as the information used by management in those controls.

• We consulted with subject matter experts within our firm regarding the application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America pertaining to the classification of indebtedness.

• We evaluated the Company s disclosures related to the renewal or extension of the gaming subconcession.

• We evaluated relevant information known to us, including information provided to us by the Company s
management and information that was publicly available, particularly regarding recent developments
pertaining to the formulation by the Macao government of the process and requirements for renewal or the
potential extension of ML s ability to conduct gaming operations in Macao.

/s/ Deloitte Touche LLP

Las egas, Nevada
ebruary 4, 2022

We have served as the Company s auditor since 2013.
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To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of Las egas Sands Corp.:

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Las egas Sands Corp. and subsidiaries (the
Company ) as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated ramework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organi ations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated ramework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2021 of the Company and our report dated ebruary 4, 2022, expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements and financial schedule.

The Company s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management s Annual eport on Internal Controls over inancial eporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting
firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with
the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authori ations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthori ed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

/s/ Deloitte Touche LLP

Las egas, Nevada
ebruary 4, 2022
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Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ........................................................................................... 1, 54 2,0 2
estricted cash and cash equivalents........................................................................... 16 16
Accounts receivable, net of provision for credit losses of 232 and 255.................. 202 252
Inventories ................................................................................................................... 22 22
Prepaid expenses and other.......................................................................................... 113 113
Current assets of discontinued operations held for sale .............................................. 3,303 3,222

Total current assets .............................................................................................................. 5,510 5,707
Property and equipment, net................................................................................................ 11, 50 12,2 0
Deferred income taxes, net .................................................................................................. 297 31
Leasehold interests in land, net............................................................................................ 2,166 2,256
Intangible assets, net............................................................................................................ 19 25
Other assets, net................................................................................................................... 217 221
Total assets .......................................................................................................................... 20,059 20, 07

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable......................................................................................................... 77 9
Construction payables.................................................................................................. 227 336
Other accrued liabilities............................................................................................... 1,334 1,474
Income taxes payable................................................................................................... 32 7
Current maturities of long term debt and finance leases............................................. 74 75
Current liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale......................................... 21 755

Total current liabilities......................................................................................................... 2,565 2, 16
Other long term liabilities ................................................................................................... 352 336
Deferred income taxes ......................................................................................................... 173 1
Long term debt and finance leases ...................................................................................... 14,721 13,929
Total liabilities..................................................................................................................... 17, 11 17,269
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Equity:

Preferred stock, 0.001 par value, 50 shares authori ed, ero shares issued and
outstanding.................................................................................................................
Common stock, 0.001 par value, 1,000 shares authori ed, 33 shares issued, 764
shares outstanding...................................................................................................... 1 1
Treasury stock, at cost, 69 shares ................................................................................ (4,4 1) (4,4 1)
Capital in excess of par value...................................................................................... 6,646 6,611
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)....................................................... (22) 29
etained earnings (loss)............................................................................................... (14 ) 13

Total Las egas Sands Corp. stockholders equity.............................................................. 1,996 2,973
Noncontrolling interests ...................................................................................................... 252 565
Total equity.......................................................................................................................... 2,24 3,53
Total liabilities and equity ................................................................................................... 20,059 20, 07

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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evenues:
Casino................................................................................................ 2, 92 2,041 9,3 4
ooms ............................................................................................... 415 2 0 1,142
ood and beverage ............................................................................ 199 156 550
Mall ................................................................................................... 649 3 1 716
Convention, retail and other .............................................................. 79 2 335

Net revenues.............................................................................................. 4,234 2,940 12,127
Operating expenses:

Casino................................................................................................ 2,06 1,5 5 5,073
ooms ............................................................................................... 164 136 255
ood and beverage ............................................................................ 244 236 467
Mall ................................................................................................... 65 59 7
Convention, retail and other .............................................................. 5 103 226
Provision for credit losses ................................................................. 3 6 22
General and administrative................................................................ 31 79 1,11
Corporate........................................................................................... 211 16 313
Pre opening ....................................................................................... 19 19 34
Development ..................................................................................... 109 1 24
Depreciation and amorti ation .......................................................... 1,041 997 1,020
Amorti ation of leasehold interests in land....................................... 56 55 51
Loss on disposal or impairment of assets.......................................... 27 73 1

4,923 4,333 ,762
Operating income (loss) ............................................................................ (6 9) (1,393) 3,365
Other income (expense):

Interest income .................................................................................. 4 21 74
Interest expense, net of amounts capitali ed..................................... (621) (523) (449)
Other income (expense) .................................................................... (31) 19 56
Gain on sale of Sands Bethlehem...................................................... 556
Loss on modification or early retirement of debt.............................. (137) (2)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes ............... (1,474) (1, 76) 3,600
Income tax (expense) benefit .................................................................... 5 (24) (432)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations.......................................... (1,469) (1,900) 3,16
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes............ 193 (243) 136
Net income (loss) ...................................................................................... (1,276) (2,143) 3,304
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests from
continuing operations .............................................................................. 315 45 (606)
Net income (loss) attributable to Las egas Sands Corp.......................... (961) (1,6 5) 2,69
Earnings (loss) per share Basic:

Income (loss) from continuing operations ........................................ (1.51) (1. 9) 3.32
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes.... 0.25 (0.32) 0.1
Net income (loss) attributable to Las egas Sands Corp.................. (1.26) (2.21) 3.50

Earnings (loss) per share Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ........................................ (1.51) (1. 9) 3.32
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes.... 0.25 (0.32) 0.1
Net income (loss) attributable to Las egas Sands Corp.................. (1.26) (2.21) 3.50

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic .................................................................................................. 764 764 771
Diluted............................................................................................... 764 764 771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Net income (loss)........................................................................... (1,276) (2,143) 3,304
Currency translation adjustment .................................................... (51) 37 42
Cash flow hedge fair value adjustment.......................................... (4)
Total comprehensive income (loss) ............................................... (1,331) (2,106) 3,346
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests ........................................................................................ 319 453 (611)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Las egas Sands
Corp.............................................................................................. (1,012) (1,653) 2,735

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1 (3,727) 6,6 0 (40) 2,770 1,061 6,745
Net income........................ 2,69 606 3,304
Currency translation
adjustment....................... 37 5 42
Exercise of stock options.. 43 11 54
Stock based
compensation .................. 31 4 35
Disposition of interest in
majority owned
subsidiary, net of taxes ... (1 5) 266 1
epurchase of common
stock................................ (754) (754)
Dividends declared ( 3.0
per share) (Note 11) ........ (2,367) (633) (3,000)

1 (4,4 1) 6,569 (3) 3,101 1,320 6,507
Net loss ............................. (1,6 5) (45 ) (2,143)
Currency translation
adjustment....................... 32 5 37
Exercise of stock options.. 22 2 24
Stock based
compensation .................. 19 4 23
Other ................................. 1 1
Dividends declared ( 0.79
per share) (Note 11) ........ (603) (30 ) (911)

1 (4,4 1) 6,611 29 13 565 3,53
Net loss ............................. (961) (315) (1,276)
Currency translation
adjustment....................... (4 ) (3) (51)
Cash flow hedge fair
value adjustment ............. (3) (1) (4)
Exercise of stock options.. 15 4 19
Stock based
compensation .................. 20 2 22

1 (4,4 1) 6,646 (22) (14 ) 252 2,24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Net income (loss) from continuing operations ................................................................. (1,469) (1,900) 3,16
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash generated from (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation and amorti ation ............................................................................ 1,041 997 1,020
Amorti ation of leasehold interests in land......................................................... 56 55 51
Amorti ation of deferred financing costs and original issue discount................ 52 43 30
Change in fair value of derivative asset/liability................................................. (1)
Loss on modification or early retirement of debt................................................ 137 2
Loss on disposal or impairment of assets............................................................ 16 39 72
Gain on sale of Sands Bethlehem........................................................................ (556)
Stock based compensation expense .................................................................... 22 22 35
Provision for credit losses ................................................................................... 3 6 22
oreign exchange (gain) loss .............................................................................. 34 (20) (21)
Deferred income taxes......................................................................................... (45) 24 146
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable ................................................................................... 43 339 (11 )
Other assets ................................................................................................ (5) 14 (15)
Leasehold interests in land......................................................................... (969)
Accounts payable ....................................................................................... (11) (42) (13)
Other liabilities........................................................................................... (116) ( 4 ) (51)

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities from continuing operations.. (243) (1,191) 2, 03

Net proceeds from sale of Sands Bethlehem.................................................................... 1,161
Capital expenditures ......................................................................................................... ( 2 ) (1,227) (1,01 )
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment ......................................................... 7 1 5
Acquisition of intangible assets and other........................................................................ (11) (53)

Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities from continuing operations. ( 32) (1,226) 95

Proceeds from exercise of stock options .......................................................................... 19 24 54
epurchase of common stock........................................................................................... (754)
Dividends paid and noncontrolling interest payments...................................................... (911) (3,000)
Proceeds from long term debt (Note 10).......................................................................... 2,702 1,945 4,000
epayments of long term debt (Note 10) ......................................................................... (1, 67) (467) (51)
Payments of financing costs ............................................................................................. (3 ) (31) (132)
Make whole premium on early extinguishment of debt (Note 10) .................................. (131)
Transactions with discontinued operations....................................................................... 17 (205) (3,445)
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities from continuing operations.. 63 355 (3,32 )

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities .................................................... 25 (121) 235
Net cash used in investing activities................................................................................. (63) (103) (19 )
Net cash provided (to) by continuing operations and (used in) financing activities ........ (179) 205 (40)

Net cash generated from (used in) discontinued operations ..................................... 16 (19) (3)
Effect of exchange rate on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash
equivalents.................................................................................................................... (16) (24) 14

Decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents .................. (212) (2,105) (419)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.... 2,137 4,242 4,661
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of year .............. 1,925 2,137 4,242
Less: cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of period
for discontinued operations .......................................................................................... (55) (39) (5 )

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period for continuing operations.... 1, 70 2,09 4,1 4
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Cash payments for interest, net of amounts capitali ed ................................................... 591 419 373
Cash payments for taxes, net of refunds........................................................................... 6 196 253
Changes in construction payables..................................................................................... (109) 17 145

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Las egas Sands Corp. ("L SC" or together with its subsidiaries, the "Company") is incorporated in Nevada
and its common stock is traded on the New ork Stock Exchange under the symbol "L S."

The ordinary shares of the Company s subsidiary, Sands China Ltd. ("SCL," the indirect owner and operator of
the majority of the Company s operations in the Macao Special Administrative egion ("Macao") of the People s
epublic of China) are listed on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The shares were
not, and will not be, registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and may not be offered or sold in the
U.S. absent a registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or an applicable exception from such
registration requirements.

In early January 2020, an outbreak of a respiratory illness caused by a novel coronavirus ( CO ID 19 ) was
identified and the disease spread rapidly across the world causing the World Health Organi ation to declare the
outbreak of a pandemic on March 12, 2020 (the CO ID 19 Pandemic ). Governments around the world mandated
actions to contain the spread of the virus that included stay at home orders, quarantines, capacity limits, closures of
non essential businesses, including entertainment activities, and significant restrictions on travel. The government
actions varied based upon a number of factors, including the extent and severity of the CO ID 19 Pandemic within
their respective countries and jurisdictions.

isitation to the Macao Special Administrative egion ( Macao ) of the People s epublic of China ( China )
has remained substantially below pre CO ID 19 levels as a result of various government policies limiting or
discouraging travel. As of the date of this report, other than people from mainland China who in general may enter
Macao without quarantine subject to them holding the appropriate travel documents, a negative CO ID 19 test
result issued within a specified time period and a green health code, there remains in place a complete ban on entry
or a need to undergo various quarantine requirements depending on the person s residency and recent travel history.
The Company s operations in Macao will continue to be impacted and subject to changes in the government policies
of Macao, China, Hong Kong and other jurisdictions in Asia addressing travel and public health measures associated
with CO ID 19.

On March 3, 2021, the negative CO ID 19 test requirement to enter casinos was removed; however, various
other health safeguards implemented by the Macao government remain in place, including mandatory mask
protection, limitation on the number of seats per table game, slot machine spacing and temperature checks.
Management is currently unable to determine when the remaining measures will be eased or cease to be necessary.

As of the date of this report, most businesses are allowed to remain open, subject to social distancing and
health code checking requirements as designated by the Macao government. In January 2022, the Macao
government commenced the roll out and trial of a non mandatory contact tracing code function at a range of
businesses including government buildings, restaurants, hotels and other public venues.

In support of the Macao government s initiatives to fight the CO ID 19 Pandemic, the Company provided one
tower (approximately 2,100 hotel rooms) at the Sheraton Grand Macao to the Macao government to house
individuals who returned to Macao for quarantine purposes. This tower has been utili ed for quarantine purposes on
several occasions during 2020 and 2021. rom October 4, 2021 to October 30, 2021, an additional tower
(approximately 1, 00 hotel rooms) at the Sheraton Grand Macao was provided.

The Company s Macao gaming operations remained open during the year ended December 31, 2021,
compared to the same period in 2020 when the Company s Macao gaming operations were suspended from
ebruary 5, 2020 to ebruary 19, 2020 due to a government mandate, except for gaming operations at The Londoner
Macao, which resumed on ebruary 27, 2020. Some of the Company s Macao hotel facilities were also closed
during the casino suspension in response to the decrease in visitation and were gradually reopened from ebruary
20, 2020, with the exception of the Conrad Macao at The Londoner Macao (the Conrad hotel ), which reopened on
June 13, 2020.
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Operating hours at restaurants and other venues across the Company s Macao properties are continuously
being adjusted in line with fluctuations in guest visitation. The majority of retail outlets in the Company s various
shopping malls are open with reduced operating hours. The timing and manner in which these areas will return to
full operation are currently unknown.

The Company s ferry operations between Macao and Hong Kong remain suspended. The timing and manner in
which the Company s ferry operations will be able to resume are currently unknown.

The Company s operations in Macao have been significantly impacted by the reduced visitation to Macao. The
Macao government announced total visitation from mainland China to Macao increased 4 .2% and decreased 74. %
for 2021, as compared to 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Macao government also announced gross gaming
revenue increased by 43.7% and decreased by 70.3% for 2021, as compared to 2020 and 2019, respectively.

As of the date of this report, entry into Singapore is largely limited to Singapore citi ens and permanent
residents, with certain visitors allowed from specified countries on a quarantine free basis, subject to certain
requirements and health control measures. Additionally, there are no stay at home orders or curfews except for
certain individuals arriving into Singapore who are subject to quarantine and individuals who may be assessed to
have been exposed to CO ID 19 as a result of the government s contact tracing efforts. All operations are currently
subject to limited capacities and other social distancing measures. As of the date of this report, Marina Bays Sands
has implemented vaccination differentiated safe management measures (" DS"), allowing only fully vaccinated
individuals; individuals who have recovered from CO ID 19 within the past 1 0 days; or individuals medically
ineligible for CO ID 19 vaccination to enter the casino and other attractions.

accinated Travel Lanes ( TLs) (travel corridors for vaccinated visitors in receipt of a negative CO ID 19
test) were introduced for a number of key source markets in November and December of 2021, however, due to the
emergence of the Omicron variant, new ticket sales for the TLs were suspended on December 23, 2021 through
January 20, 2022.

The Company s operations at Marina Bay Sands will continue to be impacted and subject to changes in the
government policies of Singapore and other jurisdictions in Asia addressing travel and public health measures
associated with CO ID 19. These government policies will continue to impact (i) the number of people allowed at
business to business events, sporting events and live performances; (ii) closure or limited seating at food and
beverage or entertainment establishments; and (iii) casino capacity limits, among other restrictions. During the year
ended December 31, 2021, gaming operations at Marina Bay Sands were closed from May 17 until May 1 , and
from July 22 until August 4 due to pandemic related measures in consultation with the Singapore government
authorities.

As a result of the border closures, visitation to Marina Bay Sands continues to be impacted by the effects of the
CO ID 19 Pandemic. The Singapore Tourism Board ( STB ) announced for the 12 months ended December 31,
2021, total visitation to Singapore decreased approximately .0% and 9 .3%, as compared to the same period in
2020 and 2019, respectively.

Effective June 1, 2021, pursuant to State of Nevada and Nevada Gaming Control Board decisions, all capacity
limits, restrictions on large gatherings and other restrictions, which had been implemented in response to the impact
of the CO ID 19 Pandemic, were lifted and the Company s Las egas Operating Properties are operating under
pre pandemic guidelines.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company s Las egas Operating Properties were open subject
to various capacity limits in place at various times throughout the year. This compares to the same period in 2020
when the Company s Las egas Operating Properties operations were suspended on March 1 , 2020, due to a
government mandate, and on June 4, 2020, The enetian Tower, The Pala o Tower and select food and beverage
outlets reopened, with certain operations subject to reduced capacity. Convention, meeting and certain entertainment
related operations remained closed for a portion of the year ended December 31, 2020.

79



isitation to the Company s Las egas Operating Properties continues to be impacted by the effects of the
CO ID 19 Pandemic; however, visitation has increased since restrictions have been lifted. The Las egas
Convention and isitors Authority ("L C A") announced for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, total
visitation to Las egas increased 69.4% and decreased 24.2%, respectively, as compared to the same period in 2020
and 2019. The L C A also announced for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, gross gaming revenue for
the Las egas Strip increased 9.9%, and 7.6%, as compared to the same period in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The disruptions arising from the CO ID 19 Pandemic continued to have a significant adverse impact on the
Company s financial condition and operations during the year ended December 31, 2021. The duration and intensity
of this global health emergency and related disruptions are uncertain. Given the dynamic nature of these
circumstances, the impact on the Company s consolidated results of operations, cash flows and financial condition
may continue to be material in the future, but cannot be reasonably estimated at this time as it is unknown when the
impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic will end, when or how quickly the current travel and operational restrictions will
be modified or cease to be necessary and the resulting impact on the Company s business and the willingness of
tourism patrons to spend on travel and entertainment and business patrons to spend on MICE.

While each of the Company s properties were open and operating at reduced levels due to lower visitation and
the implementation of required safety measures during the year ended December 31, 2021, the current economic and
regulatory environment on a global basis and in each of the Company s jurisdictions continues to evolve. The
Company cannot predict the manner in which governments will react as the global and regional impact of the
CO ID 19 Pandemic changes over time, which could significantly alter the Company s current operations.

The Company has a strong balance sheet and sufficient liquidity in place, including total cash and cash
equivalents balance, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents, of 1. 5 billion and access to 1.50 billion,
1.75 billion and 43 million of available borrowing capacity from the L SC evolving acility, 201 SCL
evolving acility and the 2012 Singapore evolving acility, respectively, and 3.69 billion Singapore dollars
( SGD, approximately 2.73 billion at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) under the Singapore
Delayed Draw Term acility, exclusively for capital expenditures for the MBS Expansion Project, as later defined,
(subject to restrictions as described in Note 10 Long Term Debt), as of December 31, 2021. The Company
believes it is able to support continuing operations, complete the major construction projects that are underway and
respond to the current CO ID 19 Pandemic challenges. The Company has taken various mitigating measures to
manage through the current environment, including a cost and capital expenditure reduction program to minimi e
cash outflow for non essential items.

Gaming in Macao is administered by the government through concession agreements awarded to three
different concessionaires and three subconcessionaires, of which enetian Macau Limited ( ML, a subsidiary of
Sands China Ltd.) is one. These concession agreements expire on June 26, 2022. If ML s subconcession is not
extended or renewed, ML may be prohibited from conducting gaming operations in Macao, and ML could cease
to generate revenues from the gaming operations when the subconcession agreement expires on June 26, 2022. In
addition, all of ML s casino premises and gaming related equipment could be automatically transferred to the
Macao government without any compensation to ML.

On January 1 , 2022, the Macao Legislative Assembly published a draft bill entitled Amendment to Law No.
16/2001 to amend Macao s gaming Law 16/2002 (the Gaming Law ).

Certain changes to the Gaming Law set out in the draft bill include a reduction in the term of future gaming
concessions to ten (10) years; authori ation of up to six (6) gaming concession contracts; an increase in the
minimum capital contribution of concessionaires to 5 billion patacas (approximately 622 million at exchange rates
in effect on December 31, 2021); and a prohibition of revenue sharing arrangements between gaming promoters and
concessionaires.

The Company is actively monitoring developments with respect to the Macao government s Gaming Law
amendment and concession renewal process and continues to believe it will be successful in extending the term of its
subconcession and/or obtaining a new gaming concession when its current subconcession expires; however, it is
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possible the Macao government could further change or interpret the associated gaming laws in a manner that could
negatively impact the Company.

Under the Company s SCL senior notes indentures, upon the occurrence of any event resulting from any
change in Gaming Law (as defined in the indentures) after which none of Sands China Ltd. ( SCL ) or any of its
subsidiaries own or manage casino or gaming areas or operate casino games of fortune and chance in Macao in
substantially the same manner as they are owning or managing casino or gaming areas or operating casino games as
of the issue date of the SCL senior notes, for a period of 30 consecutive days or more, and such event has a material
adverse effect on the financial condition, business, properties or results of operations of SCL and its subsidiaries,
taken as a whole, each holder of the SCL senior notes would have the right to require the Company to repurchase all
or any part of such holder s SCL senior notes at par, plus any accrued and unpaid interest (the Investor Put
Option ).

Additionally, under the 201 SCL Credit acility, the events that trigger an Investor Put Option under the SCL
senior notes (as described above) would be an event of default, which may result in commitments being immediately
cancelled, in whole or in part, and the related outstanding balances and accrued interest, if any, becoming
immediately due and payable.

The subconcession not being extended or renewed and the potential impact if holders of the notes and the
agent have the ability to, and make the election to, accelerate the repayment of the Company s debt would have a
material adverse effect on the Company s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. The
Company intends to follow the process for a concession renewal once the process and requirements are announced
by the Macao government.

The Company is a developer of destination properties ("Integrated esorts") that feature premium
accommodations, world class gaming, entertainment and retail malls, convention and exhibition facilities, celebrity
chef restaurants and other amenities.

The Company currently owns 69.9% of SCL, which includes the operations of The enetian Macao esort
Hotel ("The enetian Macao"), The Londoner Macao, The Parisian Macao, The Pla a Macao and our Seasons
Hotel Macao, Cotai Strip (the " our Seasons Macao"), Sands Macao and other ancillary operations that support
these properties, as further discussed below. The Company operates the gaming areas within these properties
pursuant to a 20 year gaming subconcession agreement, which expires in June 2022.

The enetian Macao anchors the Cotai Strip, the Company s master planned development of Integrated
esorts on an area of approximately 140 acres in Macao. The enetian Macao includes a 39 floor luxury hotel with
over 2,900 suites; approximately 374,000 square feet of gaming space; a 15,000 seat arena; an 1, 00 seat theater; a
mall with retail and dining space of approximately 945,000 square feet; and a convention center and meeting room
complex of approximately 1.2 million square feet.

The Londoner Macao (previously Sands Cotai Central) is the Company s largest Integrated esort on the Cotai
Strip and is located across the street from The enetian Macao, The Parisian Macao and The Pla a Macao and our
Seasons Macao. The Londoner Macao is the result of the renovation, expansion and rebranding of Sands Cotai
Central, which included the addition of extensive thematic elements both externally and internally. Construction
work on The Londoner Macao Hotel and Londoner Court was completed in 2021. The Company anticipates the
Londoner Arena, expansion of the Shoppes at Londoner and other amenities to be completed before the end of 2022.
The Londoner Macao presents a range of new attractions and features, including some of London s most
recogni able landmarks, such as the Houses of Parliament and the Eli abeth Tower (commonly known as "Big
Ben"), and interactive guest experiences. The Londoner Macao Hotel opened in January 2021 with 594 London
themed suites, including 14 exclusive Suites by David Beckham. The Integrated esort also features Londoner
Court, which opened on September 16, 2021, and includes approximately 370 luxury suites. The expansion of our
retail offerings was rebranded as Shoppes at Londoner in 2021. The Integrated esort features four hotel towers.
The first hotel tower includes approximately 650 five star rooms and suites under the Conrad brand and The
Londoner Macao Hotel. The second hotel tower consists of approximately 1, 00 rooms and suites under the
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Sheraton brand. The third hotel tower consists of approximately 2,100 rooms and suites under the Sheraton brand.
The fourth hotel tower consists of Londoner Court and approximately 400 rooms and suites under the St. egis
brand. Within The Londoner Macao, the Company also owns and currently operates approximately 351,000 square
feet of gaming space, approximately 369,000 square feet of meeting space and approximately 532,000 square feet of
retail space, as well as entertainment and dining facilities.

The Parisian Macao is an Integrated esort connected to The enetian Macao and The Pla a Macao and our
Seasons Macao, which includes approximately 24 ,000 square feet of gaming space. The Parisian Macao also
features approximately 2,500 rooms and suites; approximately 296,000 square feet of retail and dining space; a
meeting room complex of approximately 63,000 square feet; and a 1,200 seat theater.

The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao features 360 rooms and suites managed and operated by S Macau
Lda. and is located adjacent and connected to The enetian Macao. Within the Integrated esort, the Pla a Casino
features approximately 127,000 square feet of gaming space; 19 Pai a mansions; retail space of approximately
244,000 square feet, which is connected to the mall at The enetian Macao; several food and beverage offerings;
and conference, banquet and other facilities. The Grand Suites at our Seasons opened in October 2020 and features
2 9 luxury suites.

The Sands Macao, the first Las egas style casino in Macao, offers approximately 212,000 square feet of
gaming space and a 2 9 suite hotel tower, as well as several restaurants, IP facilities, a theater and other high end
services and amenities.

The Company owns and operates the Marina Bay Sands in Singapore, which features three 55 story hotel
towers (totaling approximately 2,600 rooms and suites), the Sands SkyPark (which sits atop the hotel towers and
features an infinity swimming pool and several dining options), approximately 160,000 square feet of gaming space,
an enclosed retail, dining and entertainment complex of approximately 00,000 net leasable square feet, a
convention center and meeting room complex of approximately 1.2 million square feet, a theater and a landmark
iconic structure at the bay front promenade that contains an art/science museum. The Company recently announced
an expansion project at Marina Bay Sands, as further described below.

The Company owns and operates The enetian esort Hotel Casino ("The enetian esort Las egas"), with
three hotel towers, which include The enetian Tower, a enaissance enice themed resort; the adjoining ene ia
Tower; The Pala o Tower, a resort featuring modern European ambience and design; and an expo and convention
center of approximately 1.2 million square feet (the "Sands Expo Center," together with The enetian esort Las
egas, the "Las egas Operating Properties"). The Las egas Operating Properties, situated on the Las egas Strip,
is an Integrated esort with approximately 7,100 suites; approximately 225,000 square feet of gaming space; 2.3
million gross square feet of state of the art exhibition and meeting facilities that can be configured to provide small,
mid si e or large meeting rooms and/or accommodate large scale multi media events or trade shows.

The Company is working with Madison Square Garden Company ("MSG") to bring a 75,000 square foot
venue built specifically for music and entertainment to Las egas. MSG is currently building the MSG Sphere at
The enetian, an 1 ,000 seat venue, which will be located near, with connectivity to, the Las egas Operating
Properties and is currently expected to open in 2023.

The Company regularly evaluates opportunities to improve its product offerings, such as refreshing its meeting
and convention facilities, suites and rooms, retail malls, restaurant and nightlife mix and its gaming areas, as well as
other anticipated revenue generating additions to the Company s Integrated esorts.

The Londoner Macao is the result of our renovation, expansion and rebranding of Sands Cotai Central, which
included the addition of extensive thematic elements both externally and internally. Construction work on The
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Londoner Macao Hotel and Londoner Court was completed in 2021. The Company anticipates the Londoner Arena,
expansion of the Shoppes at Londoner and other amenities to be completed before the end of 2022. The Londoner
Macao features new attractions and features internally and externally from London, including some of London s
most recogni able landmarks, such as the Houses of Parliament and the Eli abeth Tower (commonly known as "Big
Ben"), and interactive guest experiences. The Londoner Macao Hotel opened in January 2021 with 594 London
themed suites, including 14 exclusive Suites by David Beckham. The Integrated esort also features Londoner
Court, which opened on September 16, 2021, and includes approximately 370 luxury suites. The expansion of the
retail offerings has been rebranded as Shoppes at Londoner in 2021.

The Company anticipates the total costs associated with The Londoner Macao development project described
above and the completed The Grand Suites at our Seasons to be approximately 2.2 billion, of which 2.0 billion
was spent as of December 31, 2021. The Company expects to fund its developments through a combination of cash
on hand, borrowings from the 201 SCL Credit acility and surplus from operating cash flows.

In April 2019, the Company s wholly owned subsidiary, Marina Bay Sands Pte. Ltd. ( MBS ) and the
Singapore Tourism Board (the STB ) entered into a development agreement (the Development Agreement )
pursuant to which MBS will construct a development, the MBS Expansion Project, which will include a hotel tower
with a rooftop attraction, convention and meeting facilities and a state of the art live entertainment arena with
approximately 15,000 seats. The Development Agreement provides for a total project cost of approximately SGD
4.5 billion (approximately 3.3 billion at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021). The amount of the total
project cost will be finali ed as the Company completes design and development and begins construction. In
connection with the Development Agreement, MBS entered into a lease with the STB for the parcels of land
underlying the project. In April 2019 and in connection with the lease, MBS provided various governmental
agencies in Singapore the required premiums, deposits, stamp duty, goods and services tax and other fees in an
aggregate amount of approximately SGD 1.54 billion (approximately 1.14 billion at exchange rates in effect at the
time of the transaction). The Company amended its 2012 Singapore Credit acility to provide for the financing of
the development and construction costs, fees and other expenses related to the MBS Expansion Project pursuant to
the Development Agreement. On September 7, 2021, the Company further amended the 2012 Singapore Credit
acility, which, among other things, extended the deadline for delivering the construction cost estimate and the
construction schedule for the MBS Expansion Project to March 31, 2022. The Company is in the process of
reviewing the budget and timing of the MBS expansion based on the impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic and other
factors. If the Company does not meet the March 31, 2022 deadline, the Company will not be permitted to make
further draws on the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility until these items are delivered to lenders.

The Company continues to evaluate current development projects in each of its markets and pursue new
development opportunities globally.

On March 2, 2021, the Company entered into definitive agreements to sell its Las egas real property and
operations, including The enetian esort Las egas and the Sands Expo and Convention Center (collectively
referred to as the Las egas Operations ) for a total enterprise value of 6.25 billion to Pioneer OpCo, LLC, an
affiliate of certain funds managed by affiliates of Apollo Global Management, Inc., and ICI Properties L.P. The
Company currently anticipates the closing of the transaction in the first quarter of 2022, subject to regulatory review
and other closing conditions. Additionally, as discussed in Note 3 Held for Sale Discontinued Operations,
the Company concluded the Las egas Operations met the criteria for held for sale and discontinued operations
beginning in the first quarter of 2021. As a result, the Las egas Operations is presented in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and cash flows as a discontinued operation for all periods presented. Current
and non current assets and liabilities of the Las egas Operations are presented in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets as current assets and liabilities held for sale for all periods presented.

Unless otherwise noted, amounts and disclosures throughout these Notes to Consolidated inancial Statements
relate to the Company s continuing operations.
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The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its majority owned subsidiaries
and variable interest entities in which the Company is the primary beneficiary. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities. These estimates and judgments are based on historical information, information currently available to the
Company and on various other assumptions that the Company believes to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results could vary from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term investments with original maturities of less than 90
days. Such investments are carried at cost, which is a reasonable estimate of their fair value. Cash equivalents are
placed with high credit quality financial institutions and are primarily in money market funds. estricted cash
represents those amounts contractually reserved for substantial mall related repairs and maintenance expenditures.
The estimated fair value of the Company s cash equivalents is based on level 1 inputs (quoted market prices in active
markets).

Accounts receivable is comprised of casino, hotel, mall and other receivables, which do not bear interest and
are recorded at amorti ed cost. The Company extends credit to approved casino patrons following background
checks and investigations of creditworthiness. The Company also extends credit to gaming promoters in Macao.
These receivables can be offset against commissions payable to the respective gaming promoters. Business or
economic conditions, the legal enforceability of gaming debts, foreign currency control measures or other significant
events in foreign countries could affect the collectability of receivables from patrons and gaming promoters residing
in these countries.

Accounts receivable primarily consists of casino receivables. Other than casino receivables, there is no other
concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable. The Company believes the concentration of its credit
risk in casino receivables is mitigated substantially by its credit evaluation process, credit policies, credit control and
collection procedures, and also believes there are no concentrations of credit risk for which a provision has not been
established. Although management believes the provision is adequate, it is possible the estimated amount of cash
collections with respect to accounts receivable could change.

Inventories consist primarily of food, beverage, retail products and operating supplies, which are stated at the
lower of cost or net reali able value. Cost is determined by the weighted average and specific identification methods.

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amorti ation, and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation and amorti ation are provided on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, which do not exceed the lease term for leasehold improvements, as follows:

Land improvements, building and building improvements............................................................... 10 to 50 years
urniture, fixtures and equipment ..................................................................................................... 3 to 20 years
Leasehold improvements................................................................................................................... 3 to 15 years
Transportation.................................................................................................................................... 5 to 20 years

The estimated useful lives are based on the nature of the assets as well as current operating strategy and legal
considerations, such as contractual life, and are periodically reviewed. uture events, such as property expansions,

4



property developments, new competition or new regulations, could result in a change in the manner in which the
Company uses certain assets requiring a change in the estimated useful lives of such assets.

Maintenance and repairs that neither materially add to the value of the asset nor appreciably prolong its life are
charged to expense as incurred. Gains or losses on disposition of property and equipment are included in the
consolidated statements of operations.

The Company evaluates its property and equipment and other long lived assets for impairment in accordance
with related accounting standards. or assets to be disposed of, the Company recogni es the asset to be sold at the
lower of carrying value or fair value less costs of disposal. air value for assets to be disposed of is estimated based
on comparable asset sales, solicited offers or a discounted cash flow model.

ixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist. Determining the
recoverability of the Company s asset groups is judgmental in nature and requires the use of significant estimates
and assumptions, including estimated cash flows, probability weighting of potential scenarios, costs to complete
construction for assets under development, growth rates and future market conditions, among others. uture changes
to the Company s estimates and assumptions based upon changes in macro economic factors, regulatory
environments, operating results or management s intentions may result in future changes to the recoverability of
these asset groups.

Management determines if a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception or modification of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
in exchange for consideration. Control over the use of the identified asset means the lessee has both (a) the right to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset and (b) the right to direct the use of the
asset.

inance and operating lease right of use (" OU") assets and liabilities are recogni ed based on the present
value of future minimum lease payments over the expected lease term at commencement date. As the implicit rate is
not determinable in most of the Company s leases, management uses the Company s incremental borrowing rate
based on the information available at commencement date in determining the present value of future payments. The
expected lease terms include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain the Company will
exercise such option. Lease expense for minimum lease payments is recogni ed on a straight line basis over the
expected lease term.

The Company s lease arrangements have lease and non lease components. or leases in which the Company is
the lessee, the Company accounts for the lease components and non lease components as a single lease component
for all classes of underlying assets (primarily real estate). Leases in which the Company is the lessor are
substantially all accounted for as operating leases and the lease components and non lease components are
accounted for separately. Leases with an expected term of 12 months or less are not accounted for on the balance
sheet and the related lease expense is recogni ed on a straight line basis over the expected lease term.

Interest costs associated with major construction projects are capitali ed and included in the cost of the
projects. When no debt is incurred specifically for construction projects, interest is capitali ed on amounts expended
using the weighted average cost of the Company s outstanding borrowings. Capitali ation of interest ceases when the
project is substantially complete or construction activity is suspended for more than a brief period. During the years
ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company capitali ed 15 million, 21 million and 9 million,
respectively, of interest expense.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company capitali ed approximately
49 million, 37 million and 27 million, respectively, of internal costs, consisting primarily of compensation
expense for individuals directly involved with the development and construction of property.

Certain direct and incremental costs and discounts incurred in obtaining loans are capitali ed and amorti ed to
interest expense based on the terms of the related debt instruments using the effective interest method.
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Leasehold interests in land represent payments for the use of land over an extended period of time. The
leasehold interests in land are amorti ed on a straight line basis over the expected term of the related lease
agreements.

evenue from contracts with customers primarily consists of casino wagers, room sales, food and beverage
transactions, rental income from the Company s mall tenants, convention sales and entertainment and ferry ticket
sales. These contracts can be written, oral or implied by customary business practices.

Gross casino revenue is the aggregate of gaming wins and losses. The commissions rebated to gaming
promoters and premium players for rolling play, cash discounts and other cash incentives to patrons related to
gaming play are recorded as a reduction to gross casino revenue. Gaming contracts include a performance obligation
to honor the patron s wager and typically include a performance obligation to provide a product or service to the
patron on a complimentary basis to incentivi e gaming or in exchange for points earned under the Company s
loyalty programs.

or wagering contracts that include complimentary products and services provided by the Company to
incentivi e gaming, the Company allocates the relative stand alone selling price of each product and service to the
respective revenue type. Complimentary products or services provided under the Company s control and discretion,
which are supplied by third parties, are recorded as an operating expense.

or wagering contracts that include products and services provided to a patron in exchange for points earned
under the Company s loyalty programs, the Company allocates the estimated fair value of the points earned to the
loyalty program liability. The loyalty program liability is a deferral of revenue until redemption occurs. Upon
redemption of loyalty program points for Company owned products and services, the stand alone selling price of
each product or service is allocated to the respective revenue type. or redemptions of points with third parties, the
redemption amount is deducted from the loyalty program liability and paid directly to the third party. Any discounts
received by the Company from the third party in connection with this transaction are recorded to other revenue.

After allocation to the other revenue types for products and services provided to patrons as part of a wagering
contract, the residual amount is recorded to casino revenue as soon as the wager is settled. As all wagers have
similar characteristics, the Company accounts for its gaming contracts collectively on a portfolio basis versus an
individual basis.

Hotel revenue recognition criteria are met at the time of occupancy. ood and beverage revenue recognition
criteria are met at the time of service. Convention revenues are recogni ed when the related service is rendered or
the event is held. Deposits for future hotel occupancy, convention space or food and beverage services contracts are
recorded as deferred revenue until the revenue recognition criteria are met. Cancellation fees for convention
contracts are recogni ed upon cancellation by the customer and are included in other revenues. erry and
entertainment revenue recognition criteria are met at the completion of the ferry trip or event, respectively. evenue
from contracts with a combination of these services is allocated pro rata based on each service s relative stand alone
selling price.

evenue from leases is primarily recorded to mall revenue and is generated from base rents and overage rents
received through long term leases with retail tenants. Base rent, adjusted for contractual escalations, is recogni ed
on a straight line basis over the term of the related lease. Overage rent is paid by a tenant when its sales exceed an
agreed upon minimum amount and is not recogni ed by the Company until the threshold is met.

The Company provides numerous products and services to its customers. There is often a timing difference
between the cash payment by the customers and recognition of revenue for each of the associated performance
obligations. The Company has the following main types of liabilities associated with contracts with customers: (1)
outstanding chip liability, (2) loyalty program liability and (3) customer deposits and other deferred revenue for
gaming and non gaming products and services yet to be provided.
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The outstanding chip liability represents the collective amounts owed to gaming promoters and patrons in
exchange for gaming chips in their possession. Outstanding chips are expected to be recogni ed as revenue or
redeemed for cash within one year of being purchased. The loyalty program liability represents a deferral of revenue
until patron redemption of points earned. The loyalty program points are expected to be redeemed and recogni ed as
revenue within one year of being earned. Due to travel restrictions resulting from the CO ID 19 Pandemic, the
Company temporarily extended the redemption period of these points for patrons not able or willing to travel to
Singapore and for all patrons with points at its properties located in Macao. The required redemption period is
expected to be reinstated during 2022. Customer deposits and other deferred revenue represent cash deposits made
by customers for future services provided by the Company. With the exception of mall deposits, which typically
extend beyond a year based on the terms of the lease, the majority of these customer deposits and other deferred
revenue are expected to be recogni ed as revenue or refunded to the customer within one year of the date the deposit
was recorded.

The following table summari es the liability activity related to contracts with customers:

Balance at January 1............ 197 510 62 63 633 591
Balance at December 31...... 74 197 61 62 61 633
Increase (decrease)(2) ........... (123) (313) (1) (1) (15) 42

(1) Of this amount, 145 million, 152 million and 154 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and January 1, 2020,
respectively, relates to mall deposits that are accounted for based on lease terms usually greater than one year.

(2) The decrease noted in outstanding chip liability in 2021 primarily resulted from the closure of fixed room junket
operations in December 2021.

The Company is subject to taxes based on gross gaming revenue in the jurisdictions in which it operates,
subject to applicable jurisdictional adjustments. These gaming taxes, including the goods and services tax in
Singapore, are an assessment on the Company s gaming revenue and are recorded as a casino expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. These taxes were 1.22 billion, 12 million and 3.93 billion
for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Company accounts for costs incurred in the development and pre opening phases of new ventures in
accordance with accounting standards regarding start up activities. Pre opening expenses represent personnel and
other costs incurred prior to the opening of new ventures and are expensed as incurred. Development expenses
include the costs associated with the Company s evaluation and pursuit of new business opportunities, which are also
expensed as incurred.

Costs for advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place or as incurred. Advertising costs
included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations were 31 million, 26 million and 112 million
for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Corporate expense represents payroll, travel, legal fees, professional fees and various other expenses not
allocated or directly related to the Company s Integrated esort operations and related ancillary operations.
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The functional currency of most of our foreign subsidiaries is the local currency in which the subsidiary
operates. Balance sheet accounts are translated at the exchange rate in effect at each balance sheet date and income
statement accounts are translated at the average exchange rates during the year. Translation adjustments resulting
from this process are recorded to other comprehensive income (loss).

Gains or losses from foreign currency remeasurements that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on
transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are included in other income (expense).

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss) and all other non stockholder changes in equity, or
other comprehensive income (loss). The balance of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) consisted of
foreign currency translation adjustment and cash flow hedge fair value adjustments.

The weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares used in the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings (loss) per share consisted of the following:

Weighted average common shares outstanding (used in the
calculation of basic earnings (loss) per share) ........................... 764 764 771

Potential dilution from stock options and restricted stock and
stock units ..................................................................................

Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
(used in the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share)..... 764 764 771

Antidilutive stock options excluded from the calculation of
diluted earnings (loss) per share................................................. 9 9 3

Stock based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the calculated fair value of the award,
and is recogni ed over the employee s requisite service period (generally the vesting period of the equity grant). The
Company s stock based employee compensation plans are more fully discussed in "Note 16 Stock Based
Employee Compensation."

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. (including federal and state) and numerous foreign
jurisdictions in which it operates. The Company records income taxes under the asset and liability method, whereby
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogni ed based on the future tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases, and attributable to operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

Accounting standards regarding income taxes require a reduction of the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets
by a valuation allowance, if based on the available evidence, it is "more likely than not" such assets will not be
reali ed. Accordingly, the need to establish valuation allowances for deferred tax assets is assessed at each reporting
period based on a "more likely than not" reali ation threshold. This assessment considers, among other matters, the
nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative losses, forecasts of future profitability, the duration of
statutory carryforward periods, the Company s experience with operating loss and tax credit carryforwards not
expiring and tax planning strategies.

Management will reassess the reali ation of deferred tax assets each reporting period and consider the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, sources of taxable income and tax planning strategies. To the extent the
financial results of these operations improve and it becomes "more likely than not" the deferred tax assets are



reali able, the Company will be able to reduce the valuation allowance in the period such determination is made as
appropriate.

Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Company s tax positions and determining its provision for
income taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating its tax positions
and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and for which actual outcomes may be different.

Accounting standards require an entity to recogni e all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance
sheet and measure those instruments at fair value. If specific conditions are met, a derivative may be designated as a
hedge of specific financial exposures. The accounting for changes in fair value of a derivative depends on the
intended use of the derivative and, if used in hedging activities, on its effectiveness as a hedge. In order to qualify
for hedge accounting, the underlying hedged item must expose the Company to risks associated with market
fluctuations and the financial instrument used must be designated as a hedge and must reduce the Company s
exposure to market fluctuation throughout the hedge period.

Changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity
prices, can impact the Company s results of operations. The Company s primary exposures to market risk are
interest rate risk associated with long term debt and foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with the
Company s operations outside the United States. The Company has a policy aimed at managing interest rate risk
associated with its current and anticipated future borrowings and foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with
operations of its foreign subsidiaries. This policy enables the Company to use any combination of swaps, futures,
options, caps, forward contracts and similar instruments. The Company does not hold or issue financial instruments
for trading purposes and does not enter into derivative transactions that would be considered speculative positions.

The Company s management has evaluated all of the recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting
standards that have been issued or proposed by the inancial Accounting Standards Board ( ASB ) or other
standards setting bodies through the filing date of these financial statements and does not believe the future adoption
of any such pronouncements will have a material effect on the Company s financial position, results of operations
and cash flows.

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been
reclassified to be consistent with the current period presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on net income
for the prior periods.
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On March 2, 2021, the Company entered into definitive agreements to sell the Las egas for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately 6.25 billion (the Las egas Sale ) to Pioneer OpCo, LLC ( OpCo ),
an affiliate of certain funds managed by affiliates of Apollo Global Management, Inc., and ICI Properties L.P.
( ICI and together with OpCo, the Purchasers ). Under the terms of the agreements, OpCo will acquire
subsidiaries that hold the operating assets and liabilities of the Las egas for approximately 1.05 billion
in cash, subject to certain post closing adjustments, and 1.20 billion in seller financing in the form of a six year
term loan credit and security agreement and ICI will acquire subsidiaries that hold the real estate and real estate
related assets of the Las egas for approximately 4.0 billion in cash. The closing of the Las egas Sale
is subject to customary closing conditions, including regulatory approvals, and is anticipated to close in the first
quarter of 2022.

In connection with the closing, the Company and OpCo will enter into a post closing contingent lease support
agreement (the Contingent Lease Support Agreement ) pursuant to which, among other things, the Company may
be required to make certain payments ( Support Payments ) to OpCo. The Support Payments are payable on a
monthly basis following closing through the year ending December 31, 2023, based upon the performance of the Las
egas relative to certain agreed upon target metrics and subject to quarterly and annual adjustments. The
target metrics are measured against a benchmark annual EBITDA (as defined in the Contingent Lease Support
Agreement) of the Las egas equal to 500 million for 2022 and 2023 (as it may be adjusted as a result
of when the closing occurs). The Company s payment obligations are subject to an annual cap equal to 250 million,
subject to prorated reduction depending on when the closing occurs. Each monthly Support Payment is subject to a
prorated cap based on the annual cap (as it may be adjusted as a result of when the closing occurs).

After consideration of the relevant facts, the Company concluded the assets and liabilities of the Las egas
met the criteria for classification as held for sale. The Company further concluded the proposed disposal

activities represented a strategic shift that will have a major effect on the Company s operations and financial results
and qualified for presentation as discontinued operations in accordance with ASB Accounting Standards
Codification ( ASC ) 205 20. Accordingly, the financial results of the Las egas are presented in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and cash flows as discontinued operations for all periods
presented.

The Las egas Operations are recorded at the carrying value of the assets held for sale. The fair value of these
assets was determined to be the stated sales price per the agreements, which is greater than the carrying amount of
the net assets and consequently no impairment charge was recogni ed. Depreciation and amorti ation on the assets
held for sale ceased upon entering into the Las egas Sale agreements.
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The following table represents summari ed balance sheet information of assets and liabilities held for sale:

Cash and cash equivalents ..................................................................................... 55 39
Accounts receivable, net of provision for credit losses of 5 and 59 ................ 126 6
Inventories ............................................................................................................. 9 10
Prepaid expenses and other.................................................................................... 23 23
Property and equipment, net .................................................................................. 2, 64 2, 30
Other assets, net ..................................................................................................... 226 234
Total held for sale assets in the balance sheet(1)................................................. 3,303 3,222

Accounts payable................................................................................................... 24 9
Construction payables............................................................................................ 6
Other accrued liabilities......................................................................................... 31 232
Long term debt ...................................................................................................... 2 3
Deferred amounts related to mall sale transactions ............................................... 33 344
Other long term liabilities...................................................................................... 131 161
Total held for sale liabilities in the balance sheet(1) ........................................... 21 755

All assets and liabilities held for sale were classified as current as it is probable the sale of the Las egas
will be completed within one year.
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The following table represents summari ed income statement information of discontinued operations:

evenues:
Casino .................................................................................. 443 22 444
ooms.................................................................................. 454 21 610
ood and beverage............................................................... 236 126 347
Convention, retail and other ................................................ 13 100 211

Net revenues............................................................................. 1,271 672 1,612
esort operations expenses.................................................. 626 490 733
Provision for credit losses ................................................... 13 12
General and administrative.................................................. 342 294 3 4
Corporate ............................................................................. 1
Depreciation and amorti ation............................................. 25 163 145
Loss on disposal or impairment of assets ............................ 6 7 9

Operating income (loss) ........................................................... 259 (295) 333
Interest expense ................................................................... (13) (13) (106)
Other income (expense)....................................................... 1 3 (34)
Loss on modification or early retirement of debt ................ (21)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income
tax ........................................................................................... 247 (305) 172
Income tax (expense) benefit ................................................... (54) 62 (36)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations presented in
the statement of operations..................................................... 193 (243) 136

Adjusted Property EBITDA..................................................... 290 (124) 4 7

or the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company s Las egas Operations were classified as a
discontinued operation held for sale. The Company applied the intra period tax allocation rules to allocate the
provision for income taxes between continuing operations and discontinued operations using the with and without
approach. The Company calculated income tax expense from all financial statement components (continuing and
discontinued operations), the with computation, and compared that to the income tax expense attributable to
continuing operations, the without computation. The difference between the with and without computations
was allocated to discontinued operations.

The Company s effective income tax rate from discontinued operations was 21.9% for the year ended
December 31, 2021. This compares to a (20.3)% effective income tax rate from discontinued operations for the year
ended December 31, 2020, which reflects the application of the with and without approach consistent with intra
period tax allocation rules. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company s effective income tax rate
from discontinued operations was 20.9%. The income tax on discontinued operations reflects a 21% corporate
income tax rate on the Company s Las egas Operations.
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Accounts receivable consists of the following:

Casino........................................................................................................................ 313 415
ooms........................................................................................................................ 13 9
Mall ........................................................................................................................... 91 49
Other.......................................................................................................................... 17 34

434 507
Less provision for credit losses ............................................................................ (232) (255)

202 252

The following table shows the movement in the provision for credit losses recogni ed for accounts receivable
that occurred during the period:

Balance at January 1.................................................................................................. 255 220
Current period provision for credit losses ................................................................. 3 6
Write offs .................................................................................................................. (26) (54)
ecoveries of receivables previously written off...................................................... 4
Exchange rate impact ................................................................................................ (4) 3
Balance at December 31............................................................................................ 232 255

Property and equipment consists of the following:

Land and improvements ............................................................................................ 449 452
Building and improvements ...................................................................................... 14, 40 14,235
urniture, fixtures, equipment and leasehold improvements .................................... 3,992 3,79
Transportation ........................................................................................................... 494 524
Construction in progress............................................................................................ 1,513 1,901

21,2 20,910
Less accumulated depreciation and amorti ation................................................. (9,43 ) ( ,630)

11, 50 12,2 0

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recogni ed a loss on disposal or impairment of assets
of 27 million, compared to 73 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, consisting primarily of the asset
disposals and demolition costs related to The Londoner Macao. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the
Company recogni ed a loss on disposal or impairment of assets of 1 million, primarily relating to an impairment
charge of 65 million of our ferries in Macao.

Depreciation expense was 1.02 billion, 9 0 million and 1.0 billion for the years ended December 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Leasehold interests in land consist of the following:

Marina Bay Sands ..................................................................................................... 1,9 0 2,024
The Londoner Macao ................................................................................................ 293 295
The enetian Macao ................................................................................................. 241 242
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao .............................................................. 106 106
The Parisian Macao................................................................................................... 9 9
Sands Macao ............................................................................................................. 36 37

2,745 2,793
Less accumulated amorti ation ............................................................................ (579) (537)

2,166 2,256

The Company amorti es the leasehold interests in land on a straight line basis over the expected term of the
lease, which includes automatic extensions in Macao as discussed further below. Amorti ation expense of 56
million, 55 million and 51 million was included in amorti ation of leasehold interests in land expense for the
years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The estimated future amorti ation expense over the
expected term of the lease is approximately 56 million for each of the five years in the period ending December 31,
2026 and 2.07 billion thereafter at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021.

Land concessions in Macao generally have an initial term of 25 years with automatic extensions of 10 years
thereafter in accordance with Macao law. The Company anticipates a useful life of 50 years related to the land
concessions in Macao. The Company has received land concessions from the Macao government to build on the
sites on which Sands Macao, The enetian Macao, The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao, The Londoner
Macao and The Parisian Macao are located. The Company does not own these land sites in Macao; however, the
land concessions grant the Company exclusive use of the land. As specified in the land concessions, the Company is
required to pay premiums for each parcel, as well as make annual rent payments in the amounts and at the times
specified in the land concessions. The rent amounts may be revised every five years by the Macao government.

Land concessions in Singapore have an initial term of 60 years. The Company has received land concessions
from the Singapore Tourism Board to build on the sites on which Marina Bay Sands and the future MBS Expansion
Project are located. The Company does not own these land sites in Singapore; however, the land concessions grant
the Company exclusive use of the land. As specified in the land concessions, the Company was required to prepay
the premiums for each parcel.

In April 2019, and in connection with the Second Development Agreement, MBS paid 963 million for the
additional land concession in connection with the MBS Expansion Project.

Intangible assets consist of the following:

Marina Bay Sands gaming license ............................................................................ 53 55
Trademarks and other................................................................................................ 13 1

66 56
Less accumulated amorti ation ............................................................................ (47) (31)
Total intangible assets, net ........................................................................................ 19 25

In April 2019, the Company paid SGD 72 million (approximately 53 million at exchange rates in effect at the
time of the transaction) to the Singapore Casino egulatory Authority (the "C A") as part of the process to renew its
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gaming license at Marina Bay Sands. This license is being amorti ed over its three year term, which expires in April
2022, and is renewable upon submitting an application, paying the applicable license fee and meeting the
requirements as determined by the C A. The Company has filed a renewal application and believes it meets the
renewal requirements as determined by the C A; however, no assurance can be given the license renewal will be
granted or for what period of time it will be granted.

Amorti ation expense was 1 million, 17 million and 17 million for the years ended December 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively. The estimated future amorti ation expense is approximately 6 million for the year
ending December 31, 2022.

Other accrued liabilities consist of the following:

Customer deposits ..................................................................................................... 470 501
Payroll and related..................................................................................................... 253 161
Accrued interest payable ........................................................................................... 157 179
Taxes and licenses ..................................................................................................... 143 14
Outstanding chip liability .......................................................................................... 74 197
Other accruals............................................................................................................ 237 2

1,334 1,474

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company entered into two foreign currency swap agreements.
The objective of both agreements is to manage the risk of changes in cash flows resulting from foreign currency
gains/losses reali ed upon remeasurement of U.S. dollar denominated SCL senior notes by swapping a specified
amount of Hong Kong dollars for U.S. dollars at the contractual spot rate. The terms in one of the contracts did not
effectively match the terms of the related SCL senior notes; thus, it was not designated as hedging (the Non
Hedging Swap ). The remaining contract was designated as a hedge of the cash flows related to a portion of the SCL
senior notes (the Hedging Swap, and together with the Non Hedging Swap, the Swaps ). The Non Hedging
Swap and the Hedging Swap have a total notional value of 500 million and 1.0 billion, respectively, and expire in
August 2023 and August 2025, respectively.

The total fair value of the Swaps is recorded as an asset in other assets, net. The fair value of the Swaps
was estimated using Level 2 inputs from recently reported market transactions of foreign currency exchange rates.
or the Hedging Swap, the changes in fair value of the derivative were recogni ed as other comprehensive income
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Additionally, the foreign currency gains/losses incurred from the
remeasurement of the portion of the SCL senior notes being hedged were also recogni ed in other comprehensive
income. or the Non Hedging Swap the changes in fair value of the derivative were recorded in other income in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

In August 201 , the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements (the "I Swaps"), which qualified
and were designated as fair value hedges, swapping fixed rate for variable rate interest to hedge changes in the fair
value of the 2023, 2025 and 202 SCL Senior Notes. These I Swaps had a total notional value of 5.50 billion and
expired in August 2020. During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded 53 million
and 23 million, respectively, as a reduction to interest expense related to the reali ed amount associated with the I
Swaps.
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Long term debt consists of the following:

3.200% Senior Notes due 2024 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs of and 11, respectively) ............................................. 1,742 1,739
2.900% Senior Notes due 2025 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs of 3 and 4, respectively) ............................................... 497 496
3.500% Senior Notes due 2026 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs of and 10, respectively) ............................................. 992 990
3.900% Senior Notes due 2029 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs of 7 and , respectively) ............................................... 743 742

4.600% Senior Notes due 2023 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs 9) .................................................................................... 1,791
5.125% Senior Notes due 2025 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs of 9 and 11, respectively) ............................................. 1,791 1,7 9
3. 00% Senior Notes due 2026 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs of 6 and , respectively) ............................................... 794 792
2.300% Senior Notes due 2027 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing cost of 7).................................................................................. 693
5.400% Senior Notes due 202 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs of 15 and 16, respectively) ........................................... 1, 5 1, 4
2. 50% Senior Notes due 2029 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing cost of 7).................................................................................. 643
4.375% Senior Notes due 2030 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing costs of 9 and 10, respectively) ............................................. 691 690
3.250% Senior Notes due 2031 (net of unamorti ed original issue discount and
deferred financing cost of 6).................................................................................. 594
201 SCL Credit acility evolving.................................................................... 753
Other(2)....................................................................................................................... 27 21

2012 Singapore Credit acility Term (net of unamorti ed deferred financing
costs of 43 and 50, respectively) ........................................................................ 2,902 3,023
2012 Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility (net of unamorti ed deferred
financing costs of 1) .............................................................................................. 45 46
Other(2)....................................................................................................................... 3 1

14,795 14,004
Less current maturities ......................................................................................... (74) (75)
Total long term debt.................................................................................................. 14,721 13,929

(1) Unamorti ed deferred financing costs of 1 million and 91 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, related to the Company s revolving credit facilities and the undrawn portion of the Singapore
Delayed Draw Term acility are included in other assets, net in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

(2) Includes finance leases related to Macao and Singapore of 24 million and 1 million as of December 31,
2021, respectively and 21 million and 1 million as of December 31, 2020, respectively.
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On July 31, 2019, L SC issued, in a public offering, three series of senior unsecured notes in an aggregate
principal amount of 3.50 billion, consisting of 1.75 billion of 3.200% Senior Notes due August , 2024 (the 2024
L SC Senior Notes ), 1.0 billion of 3.500% Senior Notes due August 1 , 2026 (the 2026 L SC Senior Notes )
and 750 million of 3.900% Senior Notes due August , 2029 (the 2029 L SC Senior Notes ). A portion of the net
proceeds from the offering was used to repay in full the outstanding borrowings under the 2013 U.S. Credit acility.

On November 25, 2019, L SC issued, in a public offering, a senior unsecured note in an aggregate principal
amount of 500 million of 2.900% Senior Notes due June 25, 2025 (the 2025 L SC Senior Notes and, together
with the 2024 L SC Senior Notes, 2026 L SC Senior Notes and the 2029 L SC Senior Notes, the L SC Senior
Notes ). A portion of the net proceeds from the offering was used for general corporate purposes, including
repurchases of shares of the Company s common stock.

There are no interim principal payments on the L SC Senior Notes and interest is payable semi annually in
arrears on each ebruary and August with respect to the 2024 L SC Notes and 2029 L SC Notes, on each
ebruary 1 and August 1 with respect to the 2026 Notes, and on each June 25 and December 25 with respect to
the 2025 Notes.

The L SC Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of L SC. Each series of L SC Senior Notes rank
equally in right of payment with all of L SC s other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations, if any. None of
L SC s subsidiaries guarantee the L SC Senior Notes.

The L SC Senior Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture, dated July 31, 2019, as amended with respect to
each of the series of the L SC Senior Notes (the Indenture ), between L SC and U.S. Bank National Association,
as trustee. The Indenture contains covenants, subject to customary exceptions and qualifications, that limit the ability
of L SC and its subsidiaries to, among other things, incur liens, enter into sale and leaseback transactions and
consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the Company s assets on a consolidated
basis. The Indenture also provides for customary events of default.

On August 9, 2019, L SC entered into a revolving credit agreement with the arrangers and lenders named
therein and The Bank of Nova Scotia, as administrative agent for the lenders (the L SC evolving Credit
Agreement ), pursuant to which the lenders provided unsecured, revolving credit commitments to L SC in an
aggregate principal amount of 1.50 billion (the L SC evolving acility ), which are available until August 9,
2024, and include a 150 million sub facility for letters of credit. L SC may utili e the proceeds of the loans for
general corporate purposes and working capital requirements of L SC and its subsidiaries and any other purpose not
prohibited by the L SC evolving Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had 1.50 billion of
available borrowing capacity under the L SC evolving acility, net of outstanding letters of credit.

The revolving loans bear interest at the Company s option, at either, an adjusted Eurodollar rate, plus an
applicable margin ranging from 1.125% to 1.550% per annum, or at an alternative base rate, plus an applicable
margin ranging from 0.125% to 0.550% per annum, in each case, based on L SC s corporate family credit rating.
As of December 31, 2021, the applicable margin for revolving loans with reference to an adjusted Eurodollar rate is
1.4% per annum and the applicable margin for revolving loans with reference to an alternative base rate is 0.4% per
annum. L SC is also required to pay a quarterly commitment fee on the undrawn portion of the L SC evolving
acility, which commitment fee ranges from 0.125% to 0.250% per annum, based on the L SC s corporate family
credit rating. As of December 31, 2021, the commitment fee is 0.200% per annum.

The L SC evolving Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants for facilities
of this type, subject to customary exceptions and thresholds that limit the ability of (a) L SC and its restricted
subsidiaries to, among other things, (i) incur liens, (ii) enter into sale and leaseback transactions and (iii) sell, lease,
sub lease or otherwise dispose of any core facility (as defined in the L SC evolving Credit Agreement), (b) certain
restricted subsidiaries of L SC to incur indebtedness and (c) L SC to merge, consolidate, liquidate or sell all or
substantially all of its assets. The L SC evolving Credit Agreement also requires L SC to maintain a maximum
consolidated leverage ratio of 4.0x as of the last day of each fiscal quarter. The L SC evolving Credit Agreement
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also contains customary events of default, including payment defaults, cross defaults to material debt, bankruptcy
and insolvency, breaches of covenants and inaccuracy of representations and warranties, subject to customary grace
periods.

On September 23, 2020, L SC entered into an amendment agreement with lenders to the L SC evolving
Credit Agreement. Pursuant to the amendment, the L SC evolving Credit Agreement was amended to (a) remove
the requirement to maintain a maximum consolidated leverage ratio of 4.0x as of the last day of any fiscal quarter of
L SC during the period commencing on October 31, 2020, through and including December 31, 2021 (the
elevant Period ); (b) include a requirement for L SC to maintain a minimum liquidity of 350 million as of the

last day of each month during the elevant Period; and (c) include a limitation on L SC s ability to declare or pay
any dividend or other distribution during the period commencing on the closing date of the amendment, through and
including December 31, 2021, unless liquidity is greater than 1.0 billion on a pro forma basis after giving effect to
such dividend or distribution. Pursuant to the amendment, L SC agreed to pay a customary fee to the lenders that
consented.

On September 3, 2021, L SC entered into amendment No. 2 (the "Second Amendment") with lenders to the
L SC evolving Credit Agreement. Pursuant to the Second Amendment, the existing L SC evolving Credit
Agreement was amended to (a) extend the period during which L SC is not required to maintain a maximum
consolidated leverage ratio of 4.0x as of the last day of any fiscal quarter to December 31, 2022; (b) extend the
period during which L SC is required to maintain a specified amount of minimum liquidity as of the last day of
each month to December 31, 2022; (c) increase the minimum liquidity amount that L SC is required to maintain
until December 31, 2022 to 700 million; and (d) extend the period during which L SC is unable to declare or pay
any dividend or other distribution, unless liquidity is greater than 1.0 billion on a pro forma basis after giving effect
to such dividend or distribution, to December 31, 2022. In addition, pursuant to the Second Amendment and subject
to the satisfaction of certain conditions specified therein, the requisite lenders under the existing L SC evolving
Credit Agreement consented to, and waived any applicable restrictions prohibiting, the consummation of the
announced sale of the Las egas Operations. Pursuant to the Second Amendment, L SC paid a customary fee to the
lenders that consented.

On December 7, 2021, L SC entered into amendment No. 3 (the Third Amendment ) with lenders to the
L SC evolving Credit Agreements. Pursuant to the Third Amendment, the existing L SC evolving Credit
Agreement was amended to update the terms therein that provide for a transition away from LIBO as a benchmark
interest rate and the replacement of LIBO by a replacement benchmark interest rate or mechanism.

The Company entered into a credit agreement (the "2013 U.S. Credit acility"), which pursuant to various
amendments, provided for a 3.51 billion term loan (the "2013 Extended U.S. Term B acility") and a 1.15 billion
revolving facility (the "2013 Extended U.S. evolving acility," and together with the 2013 Extended U.S. Term B
acility, the "2013 U.S. Credit acility"). Borrowings under the 2013 Extended U.S. Term B acility were used for
working capital requirements and general corporate purposes, including to make any investment or payment not
specifically prohibited by the terms of the loan documents.

The Company paid standby fees of 0.2% per annum on the undrawn amounts under the 2013 Extended U.S.
evolving acility. The weighted average interest rate on the 2013 U.S. Credit acility was 4.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

As previously described, the proceeds from the L SC Senior Notes were used to repay the outstanding
borrowings under the 2013 U.S. Credit acility and the facility was terminated. As a result, the Company recorded a
22 million loss on early retirement of debt during the year ended December 31, 2019.

On August 9, 201 , SCL issued, in a private offering, three series of senior unsecured notes in an aggregate
principal amount of 5.50 billion, consisting of 1. 0 billion of 4.600% Senior Notes due August , 2023 (the "2023
SCL Senior Notes"), 1. 0 billion of 5.125% Senior Notes due August , 2025 (the "2025 SCL Senior Notes") and
1.90 billion of 5.400% Senior Notes due August , 202 (the "202 SCL Senior Notes"). A portion of the net

9



proceeds from the offering was used to repay in full the outstanding borrowings under the 2016 ML Credit
acility. There are no interim principal payments on the 2023, 2025 or 202 SCL Senior Notes and interest is
payable semi annually in arrears on each ebruary and August , commencing on ebruary , 2019.

On June 4, 2020, SCL issued, in a private offering, two series of senior unsecured notes in an aggregate
principal amount of 1.50 billion, consisting of 00 million of 3. 00% Senior Notes due January , 2026 (the
2026 SCL Senior Notes ) and 700 million of 4.375% Senior Notes due June 1 , 2030 (the "2030 SCL Senior
Notes"). The net proceeds from the offering were used for incremental liquidity and general corporate purposes.
There are no interim principal payments on the 2026 or 2030 SCL Senior Notes and interest is payable semi
annually in arrears on January and July , commencing on January , 2021, with respect to the 2026 SCL Senior
Notes, and on June 1 and December 1 , commencing on December 1 , 2020, with respect to the 2030 SCL Senior
Notes.

On September 23, 2021, SCL issued in a private offering three series of senior unsecured notes in an aggregate
principal amount of 1.95 billion, consisting of 700 million of 2.300% Senior Notes due March , 2027 (the 2027
SCL Senior Notes ), 650 million of 2. 50% Senior Notes due March , 2029 (the 2029 SCL Senior Notes ) and
600 million of 3.250% Senior Notes due August , 2031 (the 2031 SCL Senior Notes and, together with the 2023
SCL Senior Notes, 2025 SCL Senior Notes, 2026 SCL Senior Notes, 2027 SCL Senior Notes, 202 SCL Senior
Notes, 2029 SCL Senior Notes, 2030 SCL Senior Notes, the SCL Senior Notes ). SCL used the net proceeds from
the offering and cash on hand to redeem in full the outstanding principal amount of its 1. 0 billion 4.600% Senior
Notes due 2023, any accrued interest and the associated make whole premium as determined under the related
senior notes indenture dated as of August 9, 201 .

The SCL Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of SCL. Each series of notes rank equally in right of
payment with all of SCL s existing and future senior unsecured debt and will rank senior in right of payment to all
of SCL s future subordinated debt, if any. The notes will be effectively subordinated in right of payment to all of
SCL s future secured debt (to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such debt) and will be structurally
subordinated to all of the liabilities of SCL s subsidiaries. None of SCL s subsidiaries guarantee the notes.

The 2023, 2025 and 202 SCL Senior Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture, dated August 9, 201 (the
"201 SCL Indenture"), the 2026 and 2030 SCL Senior Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture, dated June 4,
2020 (the 2020 SCL Indenture ) and the 2027, 2029 and 2031 SCL Senior Notes were issued pursuant to an
indenture, dated September 23, 2021 (the 2021 SCL Indenture ), between SCL and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee. Upon the occurrence of certain events described in these indentures, the interest rate on the
SCL senior notes may be adjusted. The indentures contain covenants, subject to customary exceptions and
qualifications, that limit the ability of SCL and its subsidiaries to, among other things, incur liens, enter into sale and
leaseback transactions and consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of SCL s assets on
a consolidated basis. The indentures also provide for customary events of default.

Under the SCL senior notes indentures, upon the occurrence of any event resulting from any change in
Gaming Law (as defined in the indentures) after which none of SCL or any of its subsidiaries own or manage casino
or gaming areas or operate casino games of fortune and chance in Macao in substantially the same manner as they
are owning or managing casino or gaming areas or operating casino games as of the issue date of the SCL senior
notes, for a period of 30 consecutive days or more, and such event has a material adverse effect on the financial
condition, business, properties or results of operations of SCL and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, each holder of
the SCL senior notes would have the right to require SCL to repurchase all or any part of such holder s SCL senior
notes at par plus accrued and unpaid interest (the Investor Put Option ). efer to Note 1 Organi ation and
Business of Company for further information related to the Macao subconcession.

The cost associated with the early termination of the 4.600% Senior Notes due 2023, including the make
whole premium of 131 million and 6 million in unamorti ed original issue discount and deferred financing costs,
was recorded as a loss on early retirement of debt in the consolidated statement of operations during the year ended
December 31, 2021.
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On November 20, 201 , SCL entered into a facility agreement with the arrangers and lenders named therein
and Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch, as agent for the lenders (the "201 SCL Credit acility"), pursuant to
which the lenders made available a 2.0 billion revolving unsecured credit facility to SCL (the "201 SCL
evolving acility"). The facility is available until July 31, 2023, and SCL may draw loans under the facility, which
may consist of general revolving loans (consisting of a United States dollar component and a Hong Kong dollar
component) or loans drawn under a swing line loan sub facility (denominated in either United States dollars or
Hong Kong dollars). SCL may utili e the loans for general corporate purposes and working capital requirements of
SCL and its subsidiaries.

Loans under the 201 SCL evolving acility bear interest calculated by reference to (1) in the case of general
revolving loans denominated in United States dollars, the London Interbank Offered ate ("LIBO "), (2) in the case
of loans denominated in United States dollars drawn under the swing line loan sub facility, a United States dollar
alternate base rate (determined by reference to, among other things, the United States dollar prime lending rate and
the ederal unds Effective ate), (3) in the case of general revolving loans denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered ate ("HIBO ") or (4) in the case of loans denominated in Hong Kong dollars drawn
under the swing line loan sub facility, a Hong Kong dollar alternate base rate (determined by reference to, among
other things, the Hong Kong dollar prime lending rate), in each case, plus a margin that is determined by reference
to the consolidated leverage ratio as defined in the 201 SCL Credit acility. The initial margin for general
revolving loans is 2.0% per annum and the initial margin for loans drawn under the swing line loan sub facility is
1.0% per annum. SCL is also required to pay a commitment fee of 0.60% per annum on the undrawn amounts under
the 201 SCL evolving acility.

The 201 SCL Credit acility contains affirmative and negative covenants customary for similar unsecured
financings, including, but not limited to, limitations on indebtedness secured by liens on principal properties and sale
and leaseback transactions. The 201 SCL Credit acility also requires SCL to maintain a maximum ratio of total
indebtedness to adjusted EBITDA of 4.0x throughout the life of the facility and a minimum ratio of adjusted
EBITDA to net interest expense (including capitali ed interest) of 2.5x throughout the life of the facility.

On March 27, 2020, SCL entered into a waiver and amendment request letter (the Waiver Letter ) with
respect to certain provisions of the 201 SCL Credit acility, pursuant to which lenders (a) waived the requirements
for SCL to comply with the requirements that SCL ensure the maximum consolidated leverage ratio does not exceed
4.0x and minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of 2.5x for any quarterly period ending during the period
beginning on, and including, January 1, 2020 and ending on, and including, July 1, 2021 (the SCL elevant
Period ) (other than with respect to the financial year ended on December 31, 2019); (b) waived any default that
may arise as a result of any breach of said requirements during the SCL elevant Period (other than with respect to
the financial year ended on December 31, 2019); and (c) extended the period of time during which SCL may supply
the agent with (i) its audited consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended on December 31, 2019, to
April 30, 2020; and (ii) its audited consolidated financial statements for the financial year ending on December 31,
2020, to April 30, 2021. Pursuant to the Waiver Letter, SCL agreed to pay a customary fee to the lenders that
consented.

On September 11, 2020, SCL entered into a waiver extension and amendment request letter (the Waiver
Extension Letter ) with respect to certain provisions of the 201 SCL Credit acility, pursuant to which lenders
agreed to (a) extend the SCL elevant Period such that it ends on, and includes, January 1, 2022 instead of July 1,
2021; and (b) amend and restate the 201 SCL Credit acility in the form attached to the Waiver Extension Letter,
which contains the following amendments: (1) it provides SCL with the option to increase the total borrowing
capacity by an aggregate amount of up to 1.0 billion; and (2) it imposes a restriction on the ability of SCL to
declare or make any dividend payment or similar distribution at any time during the period from (and including) July
1, 2020 to (and including) January 1, 2022, if at such time (x) the total borrowing capacity exceeds 2.0 billion by
operation of the increase referred to above; and (y) the maximum consolidated leverage ratio is greater than 4.0x,
unless, after giving effect to such payment, the sum of (i) the aggregate amount of cash and cash equivalents of SCL
on such date; and (ii) the aggregate amount of the undrawn facility under the 201 SCL Credit acility and unused
commitments under other credit facilities of SCL is greater than 2.0 billion. Pursuant to the Waiver Extension
Letter, SCL agreed to pay a customary fee to the lenders that consented.
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On July 7, 2021, SCL entered into a waiver extension and amendment request letter (the "Third Waiver
Extension Letter") with respect to certain provisions of the 201 SCL Credit acility, pursuant to which lenders
agreed to (a) extend by one year to (and including) January 1, 2023, the waiver period for the requirement for SCL
to comply with the requirements that SCL ensure the consolidated leverage ratio does not exceed 4.0x and the
consolidated interest coverage ratio is not less than 2.5x as at the last day of the financial quarter; (b) extend the
period of time during which SCL may supply the agent with its audited consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ending on December 31, 2021 to April 30, 2022; and (c) extend by one year to (and including)
January 1, 2023, the period during which SCL s ability to declare or make any dividend payment or similar
distribution is restricted if at such time (x) the Total Commitments (as defined in the 201 SCL Credit acility)
exceed 2.0 billion by SCL s exercise of the option to increase the Total Commitments by an aggregate amount of
up to 1.0 billion; and (y) the consolidated leverage ratio is greater than 4.0x, unless, after giving effect to such
payment, the sum of (i) the aggregate amount of cash and cash equivalents of SCL on such date; and (ii) the
aggregate amount of the undrawn facility under the 201 SCL Credit acility and unused commitments under other
credit facilities of SCL is greater than 2.0 billion. Pursuant to the Third Waiver Extension Letter, SCL paid a
customary fee to the lenders that consented.

Under the 201 SCL Credit acility, the events that trigger an Investor Put Option under the SCL senior notes
(as described above) would be an Event of Default (as defined in the credit agreement), which could result in
commitments being immediately cancelled, in whole or in part, and the related outstanding balances and accrued
interest, if any, becoming immediately due and payable. efer to Note 1 Organi ation and Business of
Company for further information related to the Macao subconcession.

The 201 SCL Credit acility also contains certain events of default (some of which are subject to grace and
remedy periods and materiality qualifiers), including, but not limited to, events relating to SCL s gaming operations
and the loss or termination of certain land concession contracts.

On January 25, 2021, SCL entered into an agreement with lenders to increase commitments under the 201
SCL Credit acility by HKD 3. 3 billion (approximately 491 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31,
2021). During the year ended December 31, 2021, SCL drew down 71 million and HKD 5.31 billion
(approximately 6 1 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) under the facility for general
corporate purposes. The weighted average interest rate for the 201 SCL Credit acility was 2.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

As of December 31, 2021, SCL had 1.75 billion of available borrowing capacity under the 201 SCL
evolving acility comprised of HKD commitments of HKD 12.32 billion (approximately 1.5 billion at exchange
rates in effect on December 31, 2021) and U.S. dollar commitments of 166 million.

In June 2012, MBS entered into a SGD 5.10 billion (approximately 3.77 billion at exchange rates in effect on
December 31, 2021) credit agreement (the "2012 Singapore Credit acility"), providing for a fully funded SGD 4.60
billion (approximately 3.40 billion at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) term loan (the "2012
Singapore Term acility") and a SGD 500 million (approximately 370 million at exchange rates in effect on
December 31, 2021) revolving facility (the "2012 Singapore evolving acility") that was available until
November 25, 2017, which included a SGD 100 million (approximately 74 million at exchange rates in effect on
December 31, 2021) ancillary facility (the "2012 Singapore Ancillary acility"). Borrowings under the 2012
Singapore Credit acility were used to repay the outstanding balance under the previous Singapore credit facility.

During August 2014, MBS amended its 2012 Singapore Credit acility, pursuant to which consenting lenders
of borrowings under the 2012 Singapore Term acility extended the maturity to August 2 , 2020, and consenting
lenders of borrowings under the 2012 Singapore evolving acility extended the maturity to ebruary 2 , 2020.

During March 201 , MBS amended its 2012 Singapore Credit acility, which refinanced the facility in an
aggregate amount of SGD 4. 0 billion (approximately 3.55 billion at exchange rates in effect on December 31,
2021), pursuant to which consenting lenders of borrowings under the 2012 Singapore Term acility extended the
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maturity to March 29, 2024, and consenting lenders of borrowings under the 2012 Singapore evolving acility
extended the maturity to September 29, 2023.

On August 30, 2019, MBS amended and restated its 2012 Singapore Credit acility (the Third Amendment
and estatement Agreement ). The Third Amendment and estatement Agreement extended (a) the maturity date of
the term loans under the 2012 Singapore Term acility to August 31, 2026, and (b) the termination date of the
revolving credit commitments under the 2012 Singapore evolving acility to ebruary 27, 2026, and also increased
the principal amount of revolving credit commitments by an additional SGD 250 million (approximately 1 5
million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) for a total aggregate principal amount of SGD 750 million
(approximately 555 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021). As of December 31, 2021, MBS
had SGD 593 million (approximately 43 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) of available
borrowing capacity under the 2012 Singapore evolving acility, net of outstanding letters of credit, primarily
consisting of a banker s guarantee in connection with the MBS Expansion Project for SGD 153 million
(approximately 113 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021).

Under the Third Amendment and estatement Agreement, certain lenders committed to provide a new delayed
draw term loan facility (the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility ) in an aggregate principal amount of SGD
3.75 billion (approximately 2.77 billion at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021), which will be available
to MBS until December 30, 2024, to finance costs associated with the MBS Expansion Project. The loans borrowed
under the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility will mature on August 31, 2026. During the year ended December
31, 2020, MBS borrowed SGD 62 million (approximately 46 million at exchange rates in effect at the time of the
transaction) under the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility. As of December 31, 2021, SGD 3.69 billion
(approximately 2.73 billion at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) remains available to be drawn under
the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility. If the construction cost estimate and construction schedule to the MBS
Expansion Project are not delivered by the extended deadline, the Company will not be permitted to make further
draws on the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility after March 31, 2022 until these items are delivered to lenders.

As a result of the Third Amendment and estatement Agreement, the Company recorded a 2 million loss on
modification of debt during the year ended December 31, 2019.

The indebtedness under the 2012 Singapore Credit acility is collaterali ed by a first priority security interest
in substantially all of MBS s assets, other than capital stock and similar ownership interests, certain furniture,
fixtures and equipment and certain other excluded assets.

The term loans under the 2012 Singapore Term acility are subject to interim quarterly amorti ation payments,
beginning with the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2019, in an amount equal to (i) until and including the fiscal
quarter ending September 30, 2024, 0.5% of the principal amount outstanding on June 30, 2019 (the Term acility
estatement Date ), (ii) for the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2024, 3.0% of the principal amount outstanding
on the Term acility estatement Date, (iii) for the fiscal quarters ending March 31, 2025 through September 30,
2025, 5.0% of the principal amount outstanding on the Term acility estatement Date, and (iv) for the fiscal
quarters ending December 31, 2025 through June 30, 2026, 1 .0% of the principal amount outstanding on the Term
acility estatement Date. On the maturity date of August 31, 2026, MBS is required to repay all remaining
amounts outstanding on the Singapore Term acility.

Loans under the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility are subject to interim quarterly amorti ation
payments, beginning with the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2025, in an amount equal to (i) until and including the
fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2025, 5.0% of the principal amount outstanding on December 30, 2024 (the
Delayed Draw Term acility estatement Date ), and (ii) for each fiscal quarter from December 31, 2025, until and
including June 30, 2026, 1 .0% of the principal amount outstanding on the Delayed Draw Term acility
estatement Date. On the maturity date of August 31, 2026, MBS is required to repay all remaining amounts
outstanding on the Singapore Delayed Draw Term acility.

Under the Third Amendment and estatement Agreement, outstanding loans bear interest at the Singapore
Swap Offered ate ( SO ) plus an applicable margin that is fixed at 1.65% per annum until September 30, 2020,
and will range from 1.15% to 1. 5% per annum thereafter, based on MBS s consolidated leverage ratio (interest rate
set at approximately 2.31% as of December 31, 2021). MBS pays a standby commitment fee of 35% to 40% of the
spread per annum on all undrawn amounts under the 2012 Singapore evolving acility. The weighted average
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interest rate for the 2012 Singapore Credit acility was 2.1%, 2.2% and 3.2% for the years ended December 31,
2021, 2020 and 2019.

Under the Third Amendment and estatement Agreement, MBS must comply with a maximum consolidated
leverage ratio of 4.5x on the last day of each fiscal quarter from August 30, 2019, until twelve months following the
date on which a temporary occupation permit is issued with respect to the MBS Expansion Project. Thereafter, MBS
must comply with a maximum consolidated leverage ratio of 4.0x as of the last day of each fiscal quarter through
maturity.

On June 1 , 2020, MBS amended the existing 2012 Singapore Credit acility (the Amendment Letter ). The
Amendment Letter (a) modifies the financial covenant provisions under the 2012 Singapore Credit acility such that
MBS will not have to comply with the leverage or interest coverage covenants for the financial quarters ending, and
including, September 30, 2020 through, and including, December 31, 2021 (the Waiver Period ); (b) extends to
June 30, 2021, the deadline for delivering the construction costs estimate and the construction schedule for the MBS
Expansion Project; and (c) permits MBS to make dividend payments during the Waiver Period of (i) an unlimited
amount if the ratio of its debt to consolidated adjusted EBITDA is lower than or equal to 4.25x and (ii) up to SGD
500 million per fiscal year if the ratio of its debt to consolidated adjusted EBITDA is higher than 4.25x, subject to
the additional requirements that (a) the aggregate amount of MBS s cash plus acility B availability is greater than
or equal to SGD 00 million immediately following such dividend payment and (b) MBS s interest coverage ratio is
higher than 3.0x. Pursuant to the Amendment Letter, MBS agreed to pay a customary fee to the lenders that
consented thereto.

On September 7, 2021, MBS further amended the existing 2012 Singapore Credit acility (the Second
Amendment Letter ). The Second Amendment Letter (a) extends by one year to (and including) December 31, 2022,
the waiver period for the requirement for MBS to comply with the financial covenant provisions under the 2012
Singapore Credit acility such that MBS will not have to comply with the leverage or interest coverage covenants
for the financial quarters ending, and including, September 30, 2021 through, and including, December 31, 2022 (the
Extended Waiver Period ); (b) extends to March 31, 2022, the deadline for delivering the construction cost
estimate and the construction schedule for the MBS Expansion Project; and (c) permits MBS to make dividend
payments during the Extended Waiver Period of (i) an unlimited amount if the ratio of its debt to consolidated
adjusted EBITDA is lower than or equal to 4.25x and (ii) up to SGD 500 million per fiscal year if the ratio of its
debt to consolidated adjusted EBITDA is higher than 4.25x, subject to the additional requirements that (a) the
aggregate amount of MBS s cash plus acility B availability is greater than or equal to SGD 00 million
immediately following such dividend payment and (b) MBS s interest coverage ratio is higher than 3.0x. Pursuant to
the Second Amendment Letter, MBS paid a customary fee to the lenders that consented.

As of December 31, 2021, management believes the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants. The
Company amended its credit facilities to, among other things, waive the Company s requirement to comply with
certain financial covenant ratios through December 31, 2022 for L SC and MBS and January 1, 2023 for SCL,
which include a maximum leverage ratio or net debt to trailing twelve months adjusted earnings before interest,
income taxes, depreciation and amorti ation, calculated in accordance with the respective credit agreement, of 4.0x,
4.0x and 4.5x under the L SC evolving acility, 201 SCL Credit acility and 2012 Singapore Credit acility,
respectively. The Company s compliance with its financial covenants for periods beyond December 31, 2022 for
MBS and L SC and January 1, 2023 for SCL, could be affected by certain factors beyond the Company s control,
such as the impact of the CO ID 19 Pandemic, including current travel and border restrictions continuing in the
future. The Company will pursue additional waivers to meet the required financial covenant ratios for periods
beyond their current deadlines, if deemed necessary.
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Cash flows from financing activities related to long term debt and finance lease obligations are as follows:

Proceeds from 2027, 2029 and 2031 SCL Senior Notes ............... 1,946
Proceeds from 2026 and 2030 SCL Senior Notes ......................... 1,496
Proceeds from 201 SCL Credit acility....................................... 756 403
Proceeds from 2012 Singapore Credit acility Delayed Draw
Term........................................................................................... 46

Proceeds from L SC Senior Notes ............................................... 4,000
2,702 1,945 4,000

epayments on 2023 SCL Senior Notes ....................................... (1, 00)
epayments on 201 SCL Credit acility ..................................... (404)
epayments on 2012 Singapore Credit acility ............................ (62) (60) (47)
epayments on Other Long Term Debt ........................................ (5) (3) (4)

(1, 67) (467) (51)

Maturities of long term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2021, are summari ed as follows:

2022 ...................................................................................................................................................... 74
2023 ...................................................................................................................................................... 26
2024 ...................................................................................................................................................... 1, 93
2025 ...................................................................................................................................................... 3,335
2026 ...................................................................................................................................................... 3,496
Thereafter.............................................................................................................................................. 5,300
Total ...................................................................................................................................................... 14,924

The estimated fair value of the Company s long term debt as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, was
approximately 15.06 billion and 15.15 billion, respectively, compared to its contractual value of 14.90 billion
and 14.12 billion, respectively. The estimated fair value of our long term debt is based on recent trades, if
available, and indicative pricing from market information (level 2 inputs).

The Company is authori ed to issue up to 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock. The Company s Board of
Directors is authori ed, subject to limitations prescribed by Nevada law and the Company s articles of incorporation,
to determine the terms and conditions of the preferred stock, including whether the shares of preferred stock will be
issued in one or more series, the number of shares to be included in each series and the powers, designations,
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preferences and rights of the shares. The Company s Board of Directors also is authori ed to designate any
qualifications, limitations or restrictions on the shares without any further vote or action by the stockholders.

In April 2020, the Company suspended the quarterly dividend program due to the impact of the CO ID 19
Pandemic.

On March 26, 2020, the Company paid a dividend of 0.79 per common share as part of a regular cash
dividend program. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recorded 603 million as a distribution
against retained earnings (of which 342 million related to Mr. Adelson, (a Principal Stockholder at that time), and
the other Principal Stockholders, and the remaining 261 million related to all other stockholders).

On March 2 , June 27, September 26 and December 26, 2019, the Company paid a dividend of 0.77 per
common share as part of a regular cash dividend program. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company
recorded 2.37 billion as a distribution against retained earnings (of which 1.33 billion related to Mr. Adelson and
the other Principal Stockholders and the remaining 1.04 billion related to all other stockholders).

In June 201 , the Company s Board of Directors authori ed the repurchase of 2.50 billion of its outstanding
common stock, which was to expire in November 2020. In October 2020, the Company s Board of Directors
authori ed the extension of the expiration date of the remaining repurchase amount of 916 million to November
2022. epurchases of the Company s common stock are made at the Company s discretion in accordance with
applicable federal securities laws in the open market or otherwise. The timing and actual number of shares to be
repurchased in the future will depend on a variety of factors, including the Company s financial position, earnings,
legal requirements, other investment opportunities and market conditions. During the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, no shares of its common stock were repurchased. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the
Company repurchased 12,556,635 shares of its common stock for 754 million (including commissions) under the
Company s current program. All share repurchases of the Company s common stock have been recorded as treasury
stock.

In addition to the shares repurchased under the share repurchase program, the Company repurchased 1,927
shares during the year ended December 31, 2019, in satisfaction of tax withholding and exercise price obligations on
stock option exercises.

A summary of the outstanding shares of common stock is as follows:

Balance as of January 1, 2019........................................................................................................... 775,463,214
Exercise of stock options .................................................................................................................. 569,224
Issuance of restricted stock ............................................................................................................... 11,039
epurchase of common stock ........................................................................................................... (12,55 ,562)
Balance as of December 31, 2019..................................................................................................... 763,4 4,915
Exercise of stock options .................................................................................................................. 342,700
Issuance of restricted stock ............................................................................................................... 17,512
orfeiture of unvested restricted stock.............................................................................................. (2,1 9)
Balance as of December 31, 2020..................................................................................................... 763, 42,93
Exercise of stock options .................................................................................................................. 121,710
Issuance of restricted stock ............................................................................................................... 25,104
Balance as of December 31, 2021..................................................................................................... 763,9 9,752
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Subsequent to the ebruary 21, 2020 dividend payment, as mentioned below, SCL suspended its dividend
payments as a result of the CO ID 19 Pandemic.

On ebruary 21, 2020, SCL paid a dividend of HKD 0.99 to SCL stockholders (a total of 1.03 billion, of
which the Company retained 717 million during the year ended December 31, 2020).

On ebruary 22 and June 21, 2019, SCL paid a dividend of HKD 0.99 and HKD 1.00 per share, respectively,
to SCL stockholders (a total of 2.05 billion, of which the Company retained 1.44 billion during the year ended
December 31, 2019).

During the year ended December 31, 2019 the Company distributed 17 million to certain of its noncontrolling
interests. Of the amount distributed, 11 million related to payments to the Company s minority interest partners to
purchase their interests in connection with the sale of Sands Casino esort Bethlehem ("Sands Bethlehem").

Consolidated income (loss) before taxes and noncontrolling interests for domestic and foreign operations is as
follows:

oreign........................................................................................... (1,091) (1,614) 3,145
Domestic ........................................................................................ (3 3) (262) 455
Total income (loss) before income taxes from continuing
operations ................................................................................... (1,474) (1, 76) 3,600

The components of the income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations are as follows:

Current ........................................................................................... 32 7 245
Deferred ......................................................................................... (12) 3 (10)

Current ........................................................................................... (5)
Deferred ......................................................................................... (33) 21 134

Current ........................................................................................... (2) 33
Deferred ......................................................................................... 22
Total income tax expense (benefit)................................................ (5) 24 432
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The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate and the Company s effective tax rate for continuing
operations is as follows:

Statutory federal income tax rate................................................... (21.0)% (21.0)% 21.0 %
Increase (decrease) in tax rate resulting from:
Change in valuation allowance...................................................... 13.1 % 11.4 % 2.9 %
oreign and U.S. tax rate differential ............................................ 6.7 % 7. % (5.9)%
Tax exempt (income) loss of foreign subsidiary ........................... 0.6 % 2.4 % ( .4)%
Other, net ....................................................................................... 0.3 % 0.7 % 2.4 %
Effective tax rate............................................................................ (0.3)% 1.3 % 12.0 %

The Company enjoys an income tax exemption in Macao that exempts the Company from paying corporate
income tax on profits generated by gaming operations. The Company will continue to benefit from this tax
exemption through June 26, 2022, the date ML s subconcession agreement expires. Had the Company not received
the income tax exemption in Macao, consolidated net income attributable to L SC would have been reduced by
200 million and diluted earnings per share would have been reduced by 0.26 per share for the year ended
December 31, 2019. The ML gaming losses incurred during 2021 and 2020 did not generate a tax benefit because
they are not subject to tax. In April 2019, the Company entered into a renewed agreement with the Macao
government, effective through June 26, 2022, providing for payments as a substitution for a 12% tax otherwise due
from ML shareholders on dividend distributions paid from ML gaming profits; namely an annual payment of 3
million patacas (approximately 5 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) for each of the years
2021, 2020 and 2019, each payment to be made on or before January 31 of the following year, and a payment of
1 million patacas (approximately 2 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) for the period
between January 1, 2022 through June 26, 2022, to be paid on or before July 26, 2022. In September 2013, the
Company and the Internal evenue Service entered into a Pre iling Agreement providing the Macao special
gaming tax (35% of gross gaming revenue) qualifies as a tax paid in lieu of an income tax and could be claimed as a
U.S. foreign tax credit.

The Company s foreign and U.S. tax rate differential reflects the fact that the U.S. tax rate of 21% is higher
than the statutory tax rates in Singapore and Macao of 17% and 12%, respectively.
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The primary tax affected components of the Company s net deferred tax assets are as follows:

U.S. foreign tax credit carryforwards........................................................................ 4, 15 4, 12
Net operating loss carryforwards .............................................................................. 539 466
Interest expense carryforward ................................................................................... 1
Stock based compensation ........................................................................................ 16 16
Provision for credit losses ......................................................................................... 14 14
Deferred gain on mall sale transactions .................................................................... 11 12
Accrued expenses...................................................................................................... 21 10
Pre opening expenses................................................................................................ 6 7
Other.......................................................................................................................... 2

5,442 5,337
Less valuation allowances .................................................................................... (5,034) (4,922)
Total deferred tax assets ............................................................................................ 40 415

Property and equipment ............................................................................................ (273) (274)
Prepaid expenses ....................................................................................................... (5) (4)
Other.......................................................................................................................... (6) (7)
Total deferred tax liabilities ...................................................................................... (2 4) (2 5)
Deferred tax assets, net.............................................................................................. 124 130

The Company s U.S. foreign tax credit carryforwards were 4. 7 billion as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
which will begin to expire in 2022. There was a valuation allowance of 4.62 billion and 4.5 billion as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, provided on certain net U.S. deferred tax assets, as the Company
believes these assets do not meet the "more likely than not" criteria for recognition. The Company s U.S. net
operating loss carryforward was 563 million and 56 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
which does not have an expiration date. The Company s U.S. interest expense carryforward was 7 million as of
December 31, 2021, which does not have an expiration date. Net operating loss carryforwards for the Company s
foreign subsidiaries were 3.46 billion and 2. 4 billion as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which
began to expire in 2022. There are valuation allowances of 416 million and 342 million as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively, provided on the net deferred tax assets of certain foreign jurisdictions, as the Company
believes these assets do not meet the "more likely than not" criteria for recognition.

Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries are accounted for as a temporary difference, except deferred tax
liabilities are not recorded for undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries deemed to be indefinitely reinvested in
foreign jurisdictions. U.S. tax reform required the Company to compute a tax on previously unremitted earnings of
its foreign subsidiaries upon transition from a worldwide tax system to a territorial tax system during the year ended
December 31, 2017. The Company expects these earnings to be exempt from U.S. income tax if distributed as these
earnings were taxed during the year ended December 31, 2017, under U.S. tax reform. The Company does not
consider current year s tax earnings and profits of its foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitely reinvested. Beginning
with the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company s major foreign subsidiaries distributed, and may continue to
distribute, earnings in excess of their current year s tax earnings and profits in order to meet the Company s liquidity
needs. As of December 31, 2021, the amount of earnings and profits of foreign subsidiaries the Company does not
intend to repatriate was 2. 5 billion. The Company does not expect withholding taxes or other foreign income taxes
to apply should these earnings be distributed in the form of dividends or otherwise.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecogni ed tax benefits, is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year.............................................. 131 134 11
Additions to tax positions related to prior years..................... 1
eductions to tax positions related to prior years................... (4) (14)
Additions to tax positions related to current year................... 9 11 15

Balance at the end of the year........................................................ 136 131 134

As of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, unrecogni ed tax benefits of 57 million, 60 million and 53
million, respectively, were recorded as reductions to the U.S. foreign tax credit deferred tax asset. As of December
31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, unrecogni ed tax benefits of 79 million, 71 million and 1 million, respectively, were
recorded in other long term liabilities.

Included in the unrecogni ed tax benefit balance as of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, are 126 million,
123 million and 115 million, respectively, of uncertain tax benefits that would affect the effective income tax rate
if recogni ed.

The Company s major tax jurisdictions are the U.S., Macao and Singapore. The Company could be subject to
examination for tax years beginning in 2017 in Macao and Singapore and tax years 2010 through 2015 and 201
through 2020 in the U.S. The Company believes it has adequately reserved and provided for its uncertain tax
positions; however, there is no assurance the taxing authorities will not propose adjustments that are different from
the Company s expected outcome and it could impact the provision for income taxes.

The Company recogni es interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecogni ed tax positions in the provision
for income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. Interest and penalties of 10 million, 7
million and 5 million were accrued as of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Company does not
expect a significant increase or decrease in unrecogni ed tax benefits over the next twelve months.

Under applicable accounting guidance, fair value is defined as the exit price, or the amount that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. Applicable accounting guidance also establishes a valuation hierarchy for inputs in measuring
fair value that maximi es the use of observable inputs (inputs market participants would use based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the Company) and minimi es the use of unobservable inputs (inputs that
reflect the Company s assumptions based upon the best information available in the circumstances) by requiring the
most observable inputs be used when available. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, and inputs (other than quoted prices)
that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the assets or liabilities. Categori ation within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant
to the fair value measurement.

Cash equivalents, which are short term investments with original maturities of less than 90 days, had an
estimated fair value of 791 million and 726 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The
estimated fair value of the Company s cash equivalents is based on level 1 inputs (quoted market prices in active
markets).

The Company has operating and finance leases for various real estate (including the Macao and Singapore
leasehold interests in land) and equipment. Certain of these lease agreements include rental payments based on a
percentage of sales over specified contractual amounts, rental payments adjusted periodically for inflation and rental
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payments based on usage. The Company s leases include options to extend the lease term by one month to 10 years.
The Company s lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive
covenants.

Leases recorded on the balance sheet consist of the following (excluding the Macao and Singapore leasehold
interests in land assets; see "Note 6 Leasehold Interests in Land, Net"):

Operating lease OU assets .... Other assets, net........................................ 24 25
inance lease OU assets ....... Property and equipment, net(1).................. 16 16

Current
Operating.......................... Other accrued liabilities............................ 14 16
inance............................. Current maturities of long term debt ........ 10 12

Noncurrent
Operating.......................... Other long term liabilities ........................ 154 153
inance............................. Long term debt ......................................... 15 10

(1) inance lease OU assets are recorded net of accumulated depreciation of 21 million and 13 million as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Other information related to lease term and discount rate is as follows:

Operating leases ................................................................................................. 32. years 33.5 years
inance leases..................................................................................................... 2.9 years 2.1 years

Operating leases ................................................................................................. 4.9 % 4.9 %
inance leases..................................................................................................... 2.6 % 2.9 %

The components of lease expense are as follows:

Amorti ation of leasehold interests in land ............................ 56 55 51
Operating lease cost................................................................ 14 12 16
Short term lease cost .............................................................. 1 1 5
ariable lease cost .................................................................. 2 2 5

Amorti ation of OU assets................................................... 9 5
Interest on lease liabilities ...................................................... 1 1

Total lease cost .............................................................................. 2 0 2

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has short term lease commitments of 41 million.
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Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows:

Operating cash flows for operating leases.............................. 16 19 15
inancing cash flows for finance leases ................................. 5 3 4

Operating leases...................................................................... 10 10 13
inance leases......................................................................... 9 22 17

Maturities of lease liabilities are summari ed as follows:

2022........................................................................................................................... 16 10
2023........................................................................................................................... 10 10
2024........................................................................................................................... 9 4
2025........................................................................................................................... 6 2
2026........................................................................................................................... 5
Thereafter .................................................................................................................. 310
Total future minimum lease payments ...................................................................... 356 26
Less amount representing interest ........................................................................ (1 ) (1)
Present value of future minimum lease payments..................................................... 16 25
Less current lease obligations............................................................................... (14) (10)
Long term lease obligations ...................................................................................... 154 15

The Company leases space at several of its Integrated esorts to various third parties as part of its mall
operations that are recorded within mall revenues, as well as restaurant and retail space and land that are recorded
within convention, retail and other revenues. These leases are non cancelable operating leases with remaining lease
periods that vary from one month to 15 years. The leases include minimum base rents with escalated contingent rent
clauses.

Lease revenue consists of the following:

Minimum rents ............................................ 505 1 523 1 51 2
Overage rents ............................................ 115 39 9
ent concessions(1).................................... (65) (272)
Other(2)....................................................... 6
Total overage rents and rent concessions .... 56 (233) 9

561 1 290 1 616 2

(1) ent concessions were provided to tenants during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 as a result
of the CO ID 19 Pandemic and the impact on mall and other operations.
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(2) Amount related to a grant provided by the Singapore government to lessors to support small and medium
enterprises impacted by the CO ID 19 Pandemic in connection with their rent obligations.

uture minimum rentals (excluding the escalated contingent rent clauses) on non cancelable leases are as
follows:

2022........................................................................................................................... 442 1
2023........................................................................................................................... 359 1
2024........................................................................................................................... 279
2025........................................................................................................................... 192
2026........................................................................................................................... 155
Thereafter .................................................................................................................. 363
Total minimum future rentals.................................................................................... 1,790 2

The cost and accumulated depreciation of property and equipment the Company is leasing to third parties is as
follows:

Property and equipment, at cost ................................................................................ 1,536 1,405
Accumulated depreciation......................................................................................... (639) (57 )
Property and equipment, net...................................................................................... 97 27

The Company is involved in other litigation in addition to those noted below, arising in the normal course of
business. Management has made certain estimates for potential litigation costs based upon consultation with legal
counsel. Actual results could differ from these estimates; however, in the opinion of management, such litigation
and claims will not have a material effect on the Company s financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

On ebruary 5, 2007, Asian American Entertainment Corporation, Limited ( AAEC or Plaintiff ) brought a
claim (the Prior Action ) in the U.S. District Court for the District of Nevada (the U.S. District Court ) against
Las egas Sands, Inc. (now known as Las egas Sands, LLC ( L SLLC )), enetian Casino esort, LLC
( C ) and enetian enture Development, LLC, which are subsidiaries of the Company, and William P.
Weidner and David riedman, who are former executives of the Company. The Prior Action sought damages based
on an alleged breach of agreements entered into between AAEC and the aforementioned defendants for their joint
presentation of a bid in response to the public tender held by the Macao government for the award of gaming
concessions at the end of 2001. The U.S. District Court entered an order dismissing the Prior Action on April 16,
2010.

On January 19, 2012, AAEC filed another claim (the Macao Action ) with the Macao Judicial Court against
ML, L S (Nevada) International Holdings, Inc. ( L S (Nevada) ), L SLLC and C (collectively, the
Defendants ). The claim was for 3.0 billion patacas (approximately 373 million at exchange rates in effect on
December 31, 2021). The Macao Action alleges a breach of agreements entered into between AAEC and L S
(Nevada), L SLLC and C (collectively, the U.S. Defendants ) for their joint presentation of a bid in response
to the public tender held by the Macao government for the award of gaming concessions at the end of 2001. On July
4, 2012, the Defendants filed their defense to the Macao Action with the Macao Judicial Court and amended the
defense on January 4, 2013.
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On March 24, 2014, the Macao Judicial Court issued a decision holding that AAEC s claim against ML is
unfounded and that ML be removed as a party to the proceedings, and the claim should proceed exclusively
against the U.S. Defendants. On May , 2014, AAEC lodged an appeal against that decision and the appeal is
currently pending.

On June 5, 2015, the U.S. Defendants applied to the Macao Judicial Court to dismiss the claims against them
as res judicata based on the dismissal of the Prior Action. On March 16, 2016, the Macao Judicial Court dismissed
the defense of res judicata. An appeal against that decision was lodged by U.S. Defendants on April 7, 2016. As of
the end of December 2016, all appeals (including ML s dismissal and the res judicata appeals) were being
transferred to the Macao Second Instance Court. On May 11, 2017, the Macao Second Instance Court notified the
parties of its decision of refusal to deal with the appeals at the present time. The Macao Second Instance Court
ordered the court file be transferred back to the Macao Judicial Court. Evidence gathering by the Macao Judicial
Court commenced by letters rogatory, which was completed on March 14, 2019, and the trial of this matter was
scheduled for September 2019.

On July 15, 2019, AAEC submitted a request to the Macao Judicial Court to increase the amount of its claim to
96.45 billion patacas (approximately 12.01 billion at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021), allegedly
representing lost profits from 2004 to 201 , and reserving its right to claim for lost profits up to 2022 in due course
at the enforcement stage. On September 4, 2019, the Macao Judicial Court allowed AAEC s request to increase the
amount of its claim. On September 17, 2019, the U.S. Defendants appealed the decision granting AAEC s request
and that appeal is currently pending.

On September 2, 2019, the U.S. Defendants moved to revoke the legal aid granted to AAEC, which excuses
AAEC from paying its share of court costs. On September 4, 2019, the Macao Judicial Court deferred ruling on the
U.S. Defendants motion regarding legal aid until the entry of final judgment. The U.S. Defendants appealed that
deferral on September 17, 2019. On September 26, 2019, the Macao Judicial Court rejected that appeal on
procedural grounds. The U.S. Defendants requested clarification of that order on October 29, 2019. By order dated
December 4, 2019, the Macao Judicial Court stated it would reconsider the U.S. Defendants motion to revoke legal
aid and, as part of that reconsideration, it would reanaly e portions of the record, seek an opinion from the Macao
Public Prosecutor regarding the propriety of legal aid and consult with the trial court overseeing AAEC s separate
litigation against Galaxy Entertainment Group Ltd., Galaxy Entertainment Group S.A. and two of the U.S.
Defendants former executives, individually. The Macao Judicial Court denied the motion to revoke legal aid on
January 14, 2020.

On June 1 , 2020, the U.S. Defendants moved to reschedule the trial, which had been scheduled to begin on
September 16, 2020, due to travel disruptions and other extraordinary circumstances resulting from the ongoing
CO ID 19 Pandemic. The Macao Judicial Court granted that motion and rescheduled the trial to begin on June 16,
2021. On April 16, 2021, the U.S. Defendants again moved to reschedule the trial because continued travel
disruptions resulting from the pandemic prevented the representatives of the U.S. Defendants and certain witnesses
from attending the trial as scheduled. Plaintiff opposed that motion on April 29, 2021. The Macao Judicial Court
denied the U.S. Defendants motion on May 2 , 2021, concluding that, under Macao law, it lacked the power to
reschedule the trial absent agreement of the parties. The U.S. Defendants appealed that ruling on June 16, 2021, and
that appeal is currently pending.

The trial began as scheduled on June 16, 2021. The Macao Judicial Court heard testimony on June 16, 17, 23,
and July 1. By order dated June 17, 2021, the Macao Judicial Court scheduled additional trial dates during
September, October and December 2021 to hear witnesses who are currently subject to CO ID 19 travel restrictions
that prevent or severely limit their ability to enter Macao. That order also provided a procedure for the parties to
request written testimony from witnesses who are not able to travel to Macao on those dates. On June 2 , 2021, the
U.S. Defendants sought clarification of certain aspects of that ruling concerning procedures for written testimony
and appealed aspects of that ruling setting limits on written testimony, imposing a deadline for in person testimony,
and rejecting the U.S. Defendants request to have witnesses testify via video conference. On July 9, 2021, the
Macao Judicial Court issued an order clarifying the procedure for written testimony. The U.S. Defendants appeal on
the remainder of the Macao Judicial Court s June 17, 2021 order is currently pending.

On July 10, 2021, the U.S. Defendants were notified of an invoice for supplemental court fees totaling
93 million patacas (approximately 12 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021) based on
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Plaintiff s July 15, 2019 amendment of its claim amount. By motion dated July 20, 2021, the U.S. Defendants
moved the Macao Judicial Court for an order withdrawing that invoice on the grounds that it was procedurally
improper and conflicted with rights guaranteed in Macao s Basic Law. The Macao Judicial Court denied that motion
by order dated September 11, 2021. The U.S. Defendants appealed that order on September 23, 2021, and that
appeal is currently pending. By order dated September 29, 2021, the Macao Judicial Court ordered that the invoice
for supplemental court fees be stayed pending resolution of that appeal.

On September 6, 2021, Plaintiff notified the Macao Judicial Court that it would not be bringing any additional
witnesses to testify in person on the scheduled hearing dates. In submissions dated September 6 and September 20,
2021, the U.S. Defendants notified the Macao Judicial Court that certain witnesses were unable to attend the
September hearing dates due to ongoing travel restrictions related to the CO ID 19 Pandemic. By orders dated
September 11 and September 23, 2021, the Macao Judicial Court cancelled the various hearing dates scheduled in
September.

The Macao Judicial Court heard additional testimony on October , 11, and 15, and December 14 and 15,
2021. Certain witnesses who were not able to enter Macao due to ongoing CO ID 19 travel restrictions presented
testimony in writing. On December 15, 2021, the U.S. Defendants sought to initiate a proceeding to impeach the
testimony of certain witnesses offered by Plaintiff, and the Macao Judicial Court admitted that incident and ordered
Plaintiff to produce its shareholder registry. By notice dated December 16, 2021, Plaintiff appealed the order to
produce its shareholder registry, and that appeal is currently pending.

rom December 17, 2021 to January 19, 2022, Plaintiff submitted additional documents to the court file and
disclosed written reports from two purported experts, who calculated Plaintiff s damages at 57. billion patacas and
62.29 billion patacas (approximately 7.20 billion and 7.75 billion, respectively, at exchange rates in effect on
December 31, 2021). In response, the U.S. Defendants moved to exclude those materials or, in the alternative, to
require additional testimony from relevant witnesses. By order dated January 19, 2022, the Macao Judicial Court
denied the U.S. Defendants motion and ruled that the materials could be included in the court file with the probative
value of their contents to be determined by the Court.

Plaintiff presented its factual summation on January 21, 2022. On January 26, 2022, the U.S. Defendants
presented their factual summation, and Plaintiff and the U.S. Defendants presented rebuttal summations. The Macao
Judicial Court scheduled a hearing on ebruary 15, 2022 to announce its proposed findings on disputed facts.
Management has determined that based on proceedings to date, it is currently unable to determine the probability of
the outcome of this matter or the range of reasonably possible loss, if any. The Company intends to defend this
matter vigorously.

On October 22, 2020, The Daniels amily 2001 evocable Trust, a putative purchaser of the Company s
shares, filed a purported class action complaint in the U.S. District Court against L SC, Sheldon G. Adelson and
Patrick Dumont. The complaint asserts violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the Exchange Act ) and alleges that L SC made materially false or misleading statements, or failed to
disclose material facts, from ebruary 27, 2016 through September 15, 2020, with respect to its operations at the
Marina Bay Sands, its compliance with Singapore laws and regulations, and its disclosure controls and procedures.
On January 5, 2021, the U.S. District Court entered an order appointing Carl S. Ciaccio and Donald M. DeSalvo as
lead plaintiffs ( Lead Plaintiffs ). On March , 2021, Lead Plaintiffs filed a purported class action amended
complaint against L SC, Sheldon G. Adelson, Patrick Dumont, and obert G. Goldstein, alleging similar violations
of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act over the same time period of ebruary 27, 2016 through September
15, 2020. On March 22, 2021, the U.S. District Court granted Lead Plaintiffs motion to substitute Dr. Miriam
Adelson, in her capacity as the Special Administrator for the estate of Sheldon G. Adelson, for Sheldon G. Adelson
as a defendant in this action. On May 7, 2021, the defendants filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint. Lead
Plaintiffs filed an opposition to the motion to dismiss on July 6, 2021, and the defendants filed their reply on August
5, 2021. All briefing on the motion to dismiss is complete and the motion is pending before the U.S. District Court.
This action is in a preliminary stage and management has determined that based on proceedings to date, it is
currently unable to determine the probability of the outcome of this matter or the range of reasonably possible loss,
if any. The Company intends to defend this matter vigorously.
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On December 2 , 2020, Andrew Turesky filed a putative shareholder derivative action on behalf of the
Company in the U.S. District Court, against Sheldon G. Adelson, Patrick Dumont, obert G. Goldstein, Irwin
Chafet , Micheline Chau, Charles D. orman, Steven L. Gerard, George Jamieson, Charles A. Koppelman, Lewis
Kramer and David . Levi, all of whom are current or former directors and/or officers of L SC. The complaint
asserts claims for breach of fiduciary duty, unjust enrichment, waste of corporate assets, abuse of control, gross
mismanagement, violations of Sections 10(b), 14(a) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and for contribution under
Sections 10(b) and 21D of the Exchange Act. On ebruary 24, 2021, the U.S. District Court entered an order
granting the parties stipulation to stay this action in light of the Daniels amily 2001 evocable Trust putative
securities class action (the Securities Action ). Subject to the terms of the parties stipulation, this action is stayed
until 30 days after the final resolution of the motion to dismiss in the Securities Action. On March 11, 2021, the U.S.
District Court granted the plaintiff s motion to substitute Dr. Miriam Adelson, in her capacity as the Special
Administrator for the estate of Sheldon G. Adelson, for Sheldon G. Adelson as a defendant in this action. This action
is in a preliminary stage and management has determined that based on proceedings to date, it is currently unable to
determine the probability of the outcome of this matter or the range of reasonably possible loss, if any. The
Company intends to defend this matter vigorously.

Under the Macao subconcession, the Company is obligated to pay to the Macao government an annual
premium with a fixed portion and a variable portion based on the number and type of gaming tables it employs and
gaming machines it operates. The fixed portion of the premium is equal to 30 million patacas (approximately 4
million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021). The variable portion is equal to 300,000 patacas per
gaming table reserved exclusively for certain kinds of games or players, 150,000 patacas per gaming table not so
reserved and 1,000 patacas per electrical or mechanical gaming machine, including slot machines (approximately
37,344, 1 ,672 and 124, respectively, at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021), subject to a minimum
of 45 million patacas (approximately 6 million at exchange rates in effect on December 31, 2021). The Company is
also obligated to pay a special gaming tax of 35% of gross gaming revenues and applicable withholding taxes. The
Company must also contribute 4% of its gross gaming revenue to utilities designated by the Macao government, a
portion of which must be used for promotion of tourism in Macao. Based on the number and types of gaming tables
employed and gaming machines in operation as of December 31, 2021 and the expiration of the ML subconcession
on June 26, 2022, the Company is obligated under its subconcession to make minimum future payments of
approximately 22 million through the termination of the gaming subconcession in June 2022.

The Company has two equity award plans for grants of options to purchase the Company s common stock and
ordinary shares of SCL (the "2004 Plan" and the "SCL Equity Plan," respectively), which are described below. The
2004 Plan provides for the granting of equity awards pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Internal evenue
Code and regulations in the United States.

The 2004 Plan gives the Company a competitive edge in attracting, retaining and motivating employees,
directors and consultants and to provide the Company with a stock plan providing incentives directly related to
increases in its stockholder value. Any of the Company s subsidiaries or affiliates employees, directors or officers
and many of its consultants are eligible for awards under the 2004 Plan. The 2004 Plan provided for an aggregate of
26,344,000 shares of the Company s common stock to be available for awards. The 2004 Plan originally had a term
of ten years, but in June 2014, the Company s Board of Directors approved an amendment to the 2004 Plan,
extending the term to December 2019. In May 2019, the Board of Directors and stockholders approved the adoption
of the Las egas Sands Corp. Amended and estated 2004 Equity Award Plan (the Amended 2004 Plan ), which
extended the term of the Amended 2004 Plan through December 2024 and increased the number of shares of
common stock available for grants by 10,000,000 shares. The compensation committee may grant awards of
nonqualified stock options, incentive (qualified) stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards,
restricted stock units, stock bonus awards, performance compensation awards or any combination of the foregoing.
As of December 31, 2021, there were 3,753,271 shares available for grant under the Amended 2004 Plan.
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Stock option awards are granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value (as defined in the
Amended 2004 Plan) of the Company s stock on the date of grant. The outstanding stock options generally vest over
three to four years and have ten year contractual terms. Compensation cost for all stock option grants, which all have
graded vesting, is recogni ed on a straight line basis over the awards respective requisite service periods. The
Company estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black Scholes option pricing model. Expected
volatilities are based on the Company s historical volatility for a period equal to the expected life of the stock
options. The expected option life is based on the contractual term of the option as well as historical exercise and
forfeiture behavior. The risk free interest rate for periods equal to the expected term of the stock option is based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected dividend yield is based on the estimate of
annual dividends expected to be paid at the time of the grant.

The SCL Equity Plan gives SCL a competitive edge in attracting, retaining and motivating employees,
directors and consultants and to provide SCL with a stock plan providing incentives directly related to increases in
its stockholder value. Subject to certain criteria as defined in the SCL Equity Plan, SCL s subsidiaries or affiliates
employees, directors or officers and many of its consultants are eligible for awards under the SCL Equity Plan.

The SCL 2009 Equity Plan provided for an aggregate of 04,7 6,50 shares of SCL s common stock to be
available for awards. The SCL 2009 Equity Plan had a term of ten years, which expired on November 30, 2019, and
no further awards may be granted after the expiration of the term. All existing awards previously granted under the
SCL 2009 Equity Plan, but which are unexercised or unvested, will remain valid and (where applicable) exercisable
in accordance with their terms of grant despite the expiration of the SCL 2009 Equity Plan. SCL s remuneration
committee may grant awards of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock
units, stock bonus awards, performance compensation awards or any combination of the foregoing. Effective
December 1, 2019, the SCL 2019 Equity Plan was approved by shareholders, with materially the same terms of the
SCL 2009 Equity Plan. As of December 31, 2021, there were 0 ,619,139 shares available for grant under the SCL
2019 Equity Plan.

Stock option awards are granted with an exercise price not less than (i) the closing price of SCL s stock on the
date of grant or (ii) the average closing price of SCL s stock for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant. The outstanding stock options generally vest over four years and have ten year contractual terms.
Compensation cost for all stock option grants, which all have graded vesting is recogni ed on a straight line basis
over the awards respective requisite service periods. SCL estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black
Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatilities are based on SCL s historical volatility for a period equal to the
expected life of the stock options. The expected option life is based on the contractual term of the option as well as
historical exercise and forfeiture behavior. The risk free interest rate for periods equal to the expected term of the
stock option is based on the Hong Kong Government Bond rate in effect at the time of the grant. The expected
dividend yield is based on the estimate of annual dividends expected to be paid at the time of the grant.

Under the SCL 2009 Equity Plan and the SCL 2019 Equity Plan, SCL granted restricted share units to eligible
employees. Such restricted share units vest over three to four years. Employees are entitled to a future cash payment
that is equivalent to the fair value of the restricted share unit and any accumulated dividends in cash upon vesting.
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The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the grant date using the Black Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Weighted average volatility ........................................................... 25.1 % 23. % 24.1 %
Expected term (in years) ................................................................ 5.5 5.5 5.5
isk free rate ................................................................................. 0.9 % 1.3 % 2.1 %
Expected dividend yield ................................................................ % 4.6 % 5.2 %

Weighted average volatility ........................................................... % % 36.9 %
Expected term (in years) ................................................................ 4.
isk free rate ................................................................................. % % 1.7 %
Expected dividend yield ................................................................ % % 5.0 %

A summary of the stock option activity for the Company s equity award plans for the year ended December 31,
2021, is presented below:

Outstanding as of January 1, 2021................. ,937,266 57.16
Granted........................................................... 4,513,46 34.34
Exercised........................................................ (121,710) 5 .73
orfeited or expired........................................ (64,507) 63.4
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021........... 13,264,517 49.35 7.05 15
Exercisable as of December 31, 2021............ 5,946,626 5 .64 4. 2

Outstanding as of January 1, 2021................. 54,417, 00 4.96
Exercised........................................................ (3,070,100) 3.91
orfeited or expired........................................ (3,167,400) 5.32
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021........... 4 ,1 0,300 5.01 5.56
Exercisable as of December 31, 2021............ 37,620,100 4.94 5.17
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A summary of the unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units under the Company s equity award plans
for the year ended December 31, 2021, is presented below:

Balance as of January 1, 2021 ............................................................................... 15,323 45.6
Granted .................................................................................................................. 25,104 55.76
ested.................................................................................................................... (15,323) 45.6
Balance as of December 31, 2021 ......................................................................... 25,104 55.76

Balance as of January 1, 2021 ...............................................................................
Granted .................................................................................................................. 7 6,310 4 .96
orfeited ................................................................................................................ (15,160) 59.76
Balance as of December 31, 2021 ......................................................................... 771,150 4 .75

Balance as of January 1, 2021 ............................................................................... 3,362,700 4.44
Granted .................................................................................................................. 13,039,600 3.22
ested.................................................................................................................... (960,544) 4.46
orfeited ................................................................................................................ (120,212) 4.53
Balance as of December 31, 2021 ......................................................................... 15,321,544 3.40

The grant date fair value of SCL s restricted stock unit awards is the share price of SCL s ordinary shares at the
respective grant date. The fair value of these awards is remeasured each reporting period until the vesting dates.
Upon settlement, SCL will pay the grantees an amount in cash calculated based on the closing price of SCL s shares
on the vesting date or higher of (i) the closing price of SCL s shares on the vesting date, and (ii) the average closing
price of SCL s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the vesting date. The accrued liability
associated with these cash settled restricted stock units was million as of December 31, 2021.

As of December 31, 2021, under the Amended 2004 Plan there was 49 million and 32 million of
unrecogni ed compensation cost related to unvested stock options and unvested restricted stock and stock units,
respectively. The stock option and restricted stock and stock unit costs are expected to be recogni ed over a
weighted average period of 2.4 years, and 2.7 years, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021, under the SCL Equity Plan there was 5 million and 2 million of unrecogni ed
compensation cost related to unvested stock options and unvested restricted stock units, respectively. The stock
option and restricted stock unit costs are expected to be recogni ed over a weighted average period of 1.1 years and
2. years, respectively.
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The stock based compensation activity for the Amended 2004 Plan and SCL Equity Plan is as follows for the
three years ended December 31, 2021:

Compensation expense:
Stock options .......................................................................... 14 20 34
estricted stock and stock units ............................................. 13 7 2

27 27 36
Income tax benefit recogni ed in the consolidated statements of
operations ................................................................................... 1 2 4

Compensation cost capitali ed as part of property and
equipment................................................................................... 1 1 1

Stock options granted .................................................................... 4,513,46 75,474 1,204,145
Weighted average grant date fair value ......................................... .63 7.79 7.23
estricted stock granted................................................................. 25,104 17,512 11,039
Weighted average grant date fair value ......................................... 55.76 45.6 63.40
estricted stock units granted........................................................ 7 6,310
Weighted average grant date fair value ......................................... 4 .96
Stock options exercised:

Intrinsic value ......................................................................... 1 5 11
Cash received.......................................................................... 7 1 26

Stock options granted .................................................................... 19,409,600
Weighted average grant date fair value ......................................... 1.03
estricted stock units granted........................................................ 13,039,600 2,337,200 1,412,400
Weighted average grant date fair value ......................................... 3.22 4.11 4.99
Stock options exercised:

Intrinsic value ......................................................................... 3 2 12
Cash received.......................................................................... 12 6 2

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Principal Stockholders purchased certain
services from the Company including security and medical support, lodging, banquet services and other goods and
services for 2 million, 1 million and 2 million, respectively. or the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and
2019, the Company incurred 3 million, 2 million and 3 million, respectively, for food and beverage services,
newspaper subscriptions and security support from entities in which the Principal Stockholders have an ownership
interest.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company incurred certain expenses of 3
million, 5 million and 9 million, respectively, related to the Company s use of its Principal Stockholders personal
aircraft and yacht and aircraft refurbishment and maintenance services for business purposes. During the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company charged the Principal Stockholders 21 million, 1 million and
25 million, respectively, related to aviation costs incurred by the Company for the Principal Stockholders use of
Company aviation personnel and assets for personal purposes. In addition, the Principal Stockholders agreed to
reimburse the Company for the installation of avionics and aircraft systems on their personal aircraft. During the
year ended December 31, 2019, the Company paid 9 million for such costs and was reimbursed in full by the
Principal Stockholders.
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elated party receivables were 2 million and 6 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
elated party payables were approximately 1 million and 1 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

The Company s principal operating and developmental activities occur in three geographic areas: Macao,
Singapore and the U.S. The Company reviews the results of operations for each of its operating segments: The
enetian Macao; The Londoner Macao; The Parisian Macao; The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao; Sands
Macao; Marina Bay Sands; Las egas Operating Properties; and, through May 30, 2019, Sands Bethlehem. The
Company also reviews construction and development activities for each of its primary projects currently under
development, in addition to its reportable segments noted above, which include the renovation, expansion and
rebranding of Sands Cotai Central to The Londoner Macao and the MBS Expansion Project. The Company has
included erry Operations and Other (comprised primarily of the Company s ferry operations and various other
operations that are ancillary to its properties in Macao) and Corporate and Other to reconcile to the condensed
consolidated results of operations and financial condition. The operations that comprised the Company s former Las
egas Operating Properties reportable business segment were classified as a discontinued operation and the
information below as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, excludes these results.

The Company s segment information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, is as
follows:

Macao:
The enetian Macao......................... 944 77 24 195 16 1,256
The Londoner Macao........................ 396 90 30 56 16 5
The Parisian Macao .......................... 244 54 17 39 3 357
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons
Macao............................................ 29 45 17 1 4 2 546

Sands Macao..................................... 105 10 5 1 1 122
erry Operations and Other .............. 2 2

1,9 7 276 93 475 66 2, 97
Marina Bay Sands .................................... 905 139 106 176 44 1,370
Intercompany royalties(1).......................... 3 3
Intercompany eliminations(2).................... (2) (114) (116)
Total net revenues .................................... 2, 92 415 199 649 79 4,234
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Macao:
The enetian Macao......................... 531 46 14 126 21 73
The Londoner Macao........................ 192 42 17 3 297
The Parisian Macao .......................... 1 0 33 14 27 5 259
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons
Macao............................................ 159 17 9 79 1 265

Sands Macao..................................... 107 6 5 1 1 120
erry Operations and Other .............. 2 2

1,169 144 59 271 64 1,707
Marina Bay Sands .................................... 72 136 97 112 44 1,261
Intercompany royalties(1).......................... 66 66
Intercompany eliminations(2).................... (2) (92) (94)
Total net revenues .................................... 2,041 2 0 156 3 1 2 2,940

Macao:
The enetian Macao......................... 2, 75 222 73 254 6 3,510
The Londoner Macao........................ 1,541 320 97 71 23 2,052
The Parisian Macao .......................... 1,376 130 70 53 21 1,650
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons
Macao............................................ 650 41 31 151 4 77

Sands Macao..................................... 576 1 27 3 4 62
erry Operations and Other .............. 117 117

7,01 731 29 532 255 , 34
Marina Bay Sands .................................... 2,167 404 241 1 5 104 3,101
Sands Bethlehem (3).................................. 199 7 11 1 9 227
Intercompany royalties(1).......................... 206 206
Intercompany eliminations(2).................... (2) (239) (241)
Total net revenues .................................... 9,3 4 1,142 550 716 335 12,127

(1) oyalties were earned from foreign operations, which were previously included in the Las egas Operating
Properties and will continue post closing of the sale.

(2) Intercompany eliminations include royalties and other intercompany services.

(3) The Company completed the sale of Sands Bethlehem on May 31, 2019. esults of operations include Sands
Bethlehem through May 30, 2019.
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Macao:
The enetian Macao............................................................... 4 4 4
The Londoner Macao ............................................................. 1 1
erry Operations and Other .................................................... 22 19 27

27 24 31
Marina Bay Sands.......................................................................... 6 4 4
Intercompany royalties .................................................................. 3 66 206
Total intersegment revenues .......................................................... 116 94 241

Macao:
The enetian Macao............................................................... 297 (53) 1,407
The Londoner Macao ............................................................. ( 4) (1 4) 726
The Parisian Macao ................................................................ (17) (131) 544
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao ........................... 219 33 345
Sands Macao........................................................................... (69) (76) 175
erry Operations and Other .................................................... ( ) (20) ( )

33 (431) 3,1 9
Marina Bay Sands.......................................................................... 44 3 3 1,661
Sands Bethlehem(1) ........................................................................ 52
Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA(2)................................... 7 6 (4 ) 4,902

Stock based compensation(3).......................................................... (12) (15) (14)
Corporate ....................................................................................... (211) (16 ) (313)
Pre opening.................................................................................... (19) (19) (34)
Development.................................................................................. (109) (1 ) (24)
Depreciation and amorti ation....................................................... (1,041) (997) (1,020)
Amorti ation of leasehold interests in land ................................... (56) (55) (51)
Loss on disposal or impairment of assets ...................................... (27) (73) ( 1)
Operating income (loss)................................................................. (6 9) (1,393) 3,365

Interest income............................................................................... 4 21 74
Interest expense, net of amounts capitali ed ................................. (621) (523) (449)
Other income (expense)................................................................. (31) 19 56
Gain on sale of Sands Bethlehem .................................................. 556
Loss on modification or early retirement of debt .......................... (137) (2)
Income tax (expense) benefit......................................................... 5 (24) (432)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations .............................. (1,469) (1,900) 3,16

(1) The Company completed the sale of Sands Bethlehem on May 31, 2019. esults of operations include Sands
Bethlehem through May 30, 2019.
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(2) Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA, which is a non GAAP financial measure, is net income before
stock based compensation expense, corporate expense, pre opening expense, development expense,
depreciation and amorti ation, amorti ation of leasehold interests in land, gain or loss on disposal or
impairment of assets, interest, other income or expense, gain on sale of Sands Bethlehem, gain or loss on
modification or early retirement of debt and income taxes. Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA is a
supplemental non GAAP financial measure used by management, as well as industry analysts, to evaluate
operations and operating performance. In particular, management utili es consolidated adjusted property
EBITDA to compare the operating profitability of its operations with those of its competitors, as well as a
basis for determining certain incentive compensation. Integrated esort companies have historically reported
adjusted property EBITDA as a supplemental performance measure to GAAP financial measures. In order to
view the operations of their properties on a more stand alone basis, Integrated esort companies, including
Las egas Sands Corp., have historically excluded certain expenses that do not relate to the management of
specific properties, such as pre opening expense, development expense and corporate expense, from their
adjusted property EBITDA calculations. Consolidated adjusted property EBITDA should not be interpreted
as an alternative to income from operations (as an indicator of operating performance) or to cash flows from
operations (as a measure of liquidity), in each case, as determined in accordance with GAAP. The Company
has significant uses of cash flow, including capital expenditures, dividend payments, interest payments, debt
principal repayments and income taxes, which are not reflected in consolidated adjusted property EBITDA.
Not all companies calculate adjusted property EBITDA in the same manner. As a result, consolidated
adjusted property EBITDA as presented by the Company may not be directly comparable to similarly titled
measures presented by other companies.

(3) During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded stock based
compensation expense of 27 million, 27 million and 36 million, respectively, of which 15 million, 12
million and 22 million, respectively, was included in corporate expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

Corporate and Other ...................................................................... 27 5 59
Macao:

The enetian Macao............................................................... 71 140 131
The Londoner Macao ............................................................. 551 739 2 2
The Parisian Macao ................................................................ 4 11 32
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao ........................... 19 157 29
Sands Macao........................................................................... 7 9 16
erry Operations and Other .................................................... 1 2 3

653 1,05 762
Marina Bay Sands.......................................................................... 14 164 195
Sands Bethlehem(1) ........................................................................ 2
Total capital expenditures.............................................................. 2 1,227 1,01

(1) The Company completed the sale of Sands Bethlehem on May 31, 2019. esults of operations include Sands
Bethlehem through May 30, 2019.
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Corporate and Other ...................................................................... 1,357 1,465 1, 60
Macao:

The enetian Macao............................................................... 2,0 7 2,446 3,243
The Londoner Macao ............................................................. 4,494 4,299 4,504
The Parisian Macao ................................................................ 1,962 2,119 2,351
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao ........................... 1,145 1,203 1,239
Sands Macao........................................................................... 253 320 324
erry Operations and Other .................................................... 132 141 41

10,073 10,52 12,079
Marina Bay Sands.......................................................................... 5,326 5,592 5, 0
Total assets..................................................................................... 16,756 17,5 5 19, 19

Corporate and Other ...................................................................... 176 1 6 212
Macao:

The enetian Macao............................................................... 1,555 1,705 1,740
The Londoner Macao ............................................................. 4,317 4,163 3,591
The Parisian Macao ................................................................ 1,915 2,067 2,203
The Pla a Macao and our Seasons Macao ........................... 1,055 1,135 1,112
Sands Macao........................................................................... 197 21 237
erry Operations and Other .................................................... 60 73 54

9,099 9,361 ,937
Marina Bay Sands.......................................................................... 4,741 4,9 9 5,063
Total long lived assets ................................................................... 14,016 14,536 14,212

(1) Long lived assets include property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amorti ation, and
leasehold interests in land, net of accumulated amorti ation.
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Net revenues........................................................ 1,196 1,173 57 1,00 4,234
Operating loss ..................................................... (96) (139) (316) (13 ) (6 9)
Net loss from continuing operations ................... (2 0) (2 0) (594) (315) (1,469)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
of income taxes................................................ (62) 3 99 11 193

Net loss................................................................ (342) (242) (495) (197) (1,276)
Net loss attributable to Las egas Sands Corp. .. (27 ) (192) (36 ) (123) (961)
Earnings (loss) per share Basic:
Loss from continuing operations ...................... (0.2 ) (0.30) (0.61) (0.32) (1.51)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes ....................................... (0.0 ) 0.05 0.13 0.15 0.25

Net loss attributable to Las egas Sands Corp. (0.36) (0.25) (0.4 ) (0.17) (1.26)
Earnings (loss) per share Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations........ (0.2 ) (0.30) (0.61) (0.32) (1.51)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes ....................................... (0.0 ) 0.05 0.13 0.15 0.25

Net income (loss) attributable to Las egas
Sands Corp. ................................................... (0.36) (0.25) (0.4 ) (0.17) (1.26)

Net revenues........................................................ 1,417 62 446 1,015 2,940
Operating income (loss) ...................................... 6 (757) (523) (119) (1,393)
Net loss from continuing operations ................... (92) ( 41) (664) (303) (1,900)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
of income taxes................................................ 41 (144) (67) (73) (243)

Net loss................................................................ (51) (9 5) (731) (376) (2,143)
Net loss attributable to Las egas Sands Corp. .. (1) ( 20) (565) (299) (1,6 5)
Earnings (loss) per share Basic:
Loss from continuing operations ...................... (0.05) (0. ) (0.65) (0.30) (1. 9)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes ....................................... 0.05 (0.19) (0.09) (0.10) (0.32)

Net loss attributable to Las egas Sands Corp. (1.07) (0.74) (0.40) (2.21)
Earnings (loss) per share Diluted:
Loss from continuing operations ...................... (0.05) (0. ) (0.65) (0.30) (1. 9)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes ....................................... 0.05 (0.19) (0.09) (0.10) (0.32)

Net income (loss) attributable to Las egas
Sands Corp. ................................................... (1.07) (0.74) (0.40) (2.21)

Because earnings per share amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of common and dilutive
common equivalent shares outstanding during each quarter, the sum of the per share amounts for the four quarters
may not equal the total earnings per share amounts for the respective year.
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Provision for credit losses:
2019......................................................... 247 22 (49) 220
2020......................................................... 220 6 (51) 255
2021......................................................... 255 3 (26) 232

Deferred income tax asset valuation
allowance:
2019......................................................... 4,769 29 (12) 4,7 6
2020......................................................... 4,7 6 13 (2) 4,922
2021......................................................... 4,922 115 (3) 5,034
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Not applicable.

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure information required to be disclosed in the reports
the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summari ed and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC s rules and forms and such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company s management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. The Company s Chief Executive
Officer and its Chief inancial Officer have evaluated the disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ules 13a 15(e) and 15d 15(e)) of the Company as of December 31, 2021, and
have concluded they are effective at the reasonable assurance level.

It should be noted any system of controls, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable,
and not absolute, assurance the objectives of the system are met. In addition, the design of any control system is
based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events. Because of these and other inherent
limitations of control systems, there can be no assurance any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under
all potential future conditions, regardless of how remote.

There were no changes in the Company s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
fourth quarter covered by this Annual eport on orm 10 K that had a material effect, or was reasonably likely to
have a material effect, on the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

The Company s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as defined in ules 13a 15(f) and 15d 15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The
Company s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. The Company s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the Company s assets;

(2) provide reasonable assurance transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the Company s receipts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with authori ations of its management and directors; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthori ed acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

The Company s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2021. In making this assessment, the Company s management used the framework set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organi ations of the Treadway Commission in "Internal Control
Integrated ramework (2013)."
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Based on this assessment, management concluded, as of December 31, 2021, the Company s internal control
over financial reporting is effective based on this framework.

The effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, has
been audited by Deloitte Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report,
which appears herein.

None.

Not applicable.

We incorporate by reference the information responsive to this Item appearing in our definitive Proxy
Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we expect to file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on or about March 30, 2022 (the "Proxy Statement"), including under the captions "Board of
Directors," "Executive Officers," "Delinquent Section 16(a) eports" and "Information egarding the Board of
Directors and Board and Other Committees."

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which is posted on our website at ,
along with any amendments or waivers to the Code. Copies of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics are
available without charge by sending a written request to Investor elations at the following address: Las egas
Sands Corp., 3355 Las egas Boulevard South, Las egas, Nevada 9109.

We incorporate by reference the information responsive to this Item appearing in the Proxy Statement,
including under the captions "Executive Compensation and Other Information," "Director Compensation,"
"Information egarding the Board of Directors and Board and Other Committees" and "Compensation Committee
eport" (which report is deemed to be furnished and is not deemed to be filed in any Company filing under the
Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934).

We incorporate by reference the information responsive to this Item appearing in the Proxy Statement,
including under the captions "Equity Compensation Plan Information" and "Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management."

We incorporate by reference the information responsive to this Item appearing in the Proxy Statement,
including under the captions "Board of Directors," "Information egarding the Board of Directors and Board and
Other Committees" and "Certain Transactions."

We incorporate by reference the information responsive to this Item appearing in the Proxy Statement, under
the caption " ees Paid to Independent egistered Public Accounting irm."
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PART IV

ITEM 15. — EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(1) List of Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statements of Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) List of Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(3) List of Exhibits

2.1† Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of March 2, 2021, by and among Las Vegas Sands Corp.,
Pioneer OpCo, LLC and VICI Properties L.P. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on March 3, 2021).

2.2† Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of March 2, 2021, by and between Las Vegas
Sands Corp. and VICI Properties L.P. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.2 to the
Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on March 3, 2021).

2.3†† Letter Agreement, dated as of August 3, 2021, by and among Las Vegas Sands Corp., Pioneer
OpCo, LLC and VICI Properties L.P. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended September
30, 2021 and filed on October 22, 2021).

2.4†† Amendment to Letter Agreement, dated as of October 7, 2021, by and among Las Vegas Sands
Corp., Pioneer OpCo, LLC and VICI Properties L.P. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1
to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended
September 30, 2021 and filed on October 22, 2021).

3.1 Certificate of Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Las Vegas Sands Corp.
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 and filed on July 25, 2018).

3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of Las Vegas Sands Corp., as further amended effective
October 20, 2020 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and filed on
October 23, 2020).

4.1 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Las Vegas Sands Corp. (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-118827) filed on November 22, 2004).

4.2 Indenture, dated as of August 9, 2018, between SCL and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K (File No. 001-32373) filed on August 10, 2018).

4.3 Forms of 4.600% Senior Notes due 2023, 5.125% Senior Notes due 2025 and 5.400% Senior
Notes due 2028 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 (included in Exhibit 4.1) to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on August 10, 2018).
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4.4 Indenture, dated as of June 4, 2020, between SCL and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32373) filed on June 5, 2020).

4.5 Forms of 3.800% Senior Notes due 2026 and 4.375% Senior Notes due 2030 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 4.2 (included in Exhibit 4.1) to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-32373) filed on June 5, 2020).

4.6 Indenture, dated as of September 23, 2021, between SCL and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-32373) filed on September 23, 2021).

4.7 Forms of 2.300% Senior Notes due 2027, 2.850% Senior Note due 2029 and 3.250% Senior Notes
due 2031 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 (included in Exhibit 4.1) to the Company’s
current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on September 23, 2021).

4.8 Indenture, dated as of July 31, 2019, between Las Vegas Sands Corp. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on July 31, 2019).

4.9 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 31, 2019, between Las Vegas Sands Corp. and U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee, relating to the 3.200% Notes due 2024 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373)
filed on July 31, 2019).

4.10 Form of Las Vegas Sands Corp.’s 3.200% Notes due 2024 (included in Exhibit 4.5 hereto)
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32373) filed on July 31, 2019).

4.11 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 31, 2019, between Las Vegas Sands Corp. and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, relating to the 3.500% Notes due 2026 (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-32373) filed on July 31, 2019).

4.12 Form of Las Vegas Sands Corp.’s 3.500% Notes due 2026 (included in Exhibit 4.7 hereto)
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32373) filed on July 31, 2019).

4.13 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 31, 2019, between Las Vegas Sands Corp. and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, relating to the 3.900% Notes due 2029 (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-32373) filed on July 31, 2019).

4.14 Form of Las Vegas Sands Corp.’s 3.900% Notes due 2029 (included in Exhibit 4.9 hereto)
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32373) filed on July 31, 2019).

4.15 Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 25, 2019, between Las Vegas Sands Corp.
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, relating to the 2.900% Notes due 2025
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32373) filed on November 25, 2019).

4.16 Form of Las Vegas Sands Corp.’s 2.900% Notes due 2025 (included in Exhibit 4.11 hereto).
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32373) filed on November 25, 2019).

4.17 Description of Capital Stock (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.13 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-32373) for the year ended December 31, 2019 and
filed on February 7, 2020).

10.1 Facility Agreement dated November 20, 2018, among Sands China Limited, Bank of China
Limited, Macau Branch, as agent, the arrangers listed therein and the original lenders listed
therein (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K (File No. 001-32373) for the year ended December 31, 2018 and filed on February 22,
2019).
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10.2† Waiver and Amendment Request Letter, dated March 27, 2020, with respect to the Facility
Agreement, dated as of November 20, 2018, by and among Sands China, as borrower, Bank of
China Limited, Macau Branch, as agent, and the arrangers and lenders party thereto (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-32373) filed on March 27, 2020).

10.3† Waiver Extension and Amendment Request Letter, dated September 11, 2020, with respect to the
Facility Agreement, dated as of November 20, 2018 by and among Sands China, as borrower,
Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch, as agent, and the arrangers and lenders party thereto
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32373) filed on September 11, 2020).

10.4† Waiver Extension and Amendment Request Letter, dated July 7, 2021, with respect to the Facility
Agreement, dated as of November 20, 2018, by and among Sands China, as borrower, Bank of
China Limited, Macau Branch, as agent, and the arrangers and lenders party thereto (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-32373) filed on July 7, 2021).

10.5 Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of August 9, 2019, by and among Las Vegas Sands Corp.,
the Lenders from time to time party thereto and The Bank of Nova Scotia, as Administrative
Agent and Issuing Bank (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on August 12, 2019).

10.6† Amendment No. 1 to Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of September 23, 2020, by and
among Las Vegas Sands Corp., the Lenders from time to time party thereto and The Bank of Nova
Scotia, as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on September 23, 2020).

10.7† Amendment No. 2 to Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of September 3, 2021, by and among
Las Vegas Sands Corp., the Lenders from time to time party thereto and The Bank of Nova
Scotia, as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on September 3, 2021).

10.8 Amendment No. 3 to Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as December 7, 2021, by and between
Las Vegas Sands Corp. and The Bank of Nova Scotia, as Administrative Agent (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373)
filed on December 7, 2021).

10.9 Facility Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2012, among Marina Bay Sands Pte. Ltd., as borrower,
DBS Bank Ltd., Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, United Overseas Bank Limited
and Malayan Banking Berhad, Singapore Branch, as global coordinators, DBS Bank Ltd., as agent
for the finance parties and security trustee for the secured parties and certain other lenders party
thereto (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended June 30, 2012 and filed on August 9,
2012).

10.10 Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of August 29, 2014, to the Facility Agreement,
dated as of June 25, 2012 (as amended by an amendment agreement dated November 20, 2013),
among Marina Bay Sands Pte. Ltd., as borrower, various lenders party thereto, DBS Bank Ltd.
("DBS"), Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, United Overseas Bank Limited and
Malayan Banking Berhad, Singapore Branch, as global coordinators, DBS, as agent and security
trustee, and DBS, Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, United Overseas Bank Limited,
Malayan Banking Berhad, Singapore Branch, Standard Chartered Bank, Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation and CIMB Bank Berhad, Singapore Branch, as mandated lead arrangers
(including as Schedule 3 thereto, the Form of Amended and Restated Facility Agreement)
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 and filed on November 5, 2014).

10.11 Second Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of March 14, 2018, to the Facility
Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2012 (as amended by an amendment agreement dated November
20, 2013 and further amended and restated by an amendment and restatement agreement dated
August 29, 2014), among Marina Bay Sands Pte. Ltd., as borrower, various lenders party thereto
and DBS Bank Ltd. as agent and security trustee (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March
31, 2018 and filed on April 27, 2018).
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10.12 Third Amendment and Restatement Agreement, dated as of August 30, 2019, among Marina Bay
Sands Pte. Ltd., as borrower, the various lenders party thereto and DBS Bank Ltd., as agent and
security trustee and the other parties thereto (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on September 4, 2019).

10.13† Amendment Letter, dated June 18, 2020, with respect to the facility agreement, originally dated as
of June 25, 2012 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemented and otherwise
modified) among Marina Bay Sands Pte. Ltd., the lenders party thereto, DBS Bank Ltd., as the
agent, and the other parties thereto (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on June 19, 2020).

10.14† Amendment Letter, dated September 7, 2021, with respect to the facility agreement, originally
dated as of June 25, 2012 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemented and
otherwise modified) among Marina Bay Sands Pte. Ltd., the lenders party thereto, DBS Bank
Ltd., as the agent, and the other parties thereto (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on September 7, 2021).

10.15 Addendum to Sands Resort Hotel and Casino Agreement, dated as of September 16, 1997, by and
between Clark County and Las Vegas Sands, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.20
to the Company's Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-118827) dated October 25, 2004).

10.16 Concession Contract for Operating Casino Games of Chance or Games of Other Forms in the
Macao Special Administrative Region, June 26, 2002, among the Macao Special Administrative
Region and Galaxy Casino Company Limited (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.40 to
Las Vegas Sands, Inc.'s Form 10-K (File No. 333-42147) for the year ended December 31, 2002
and filed on March 31, 2003).

10.17 Amendment to Concession Contract for Operating Casino Games of Chance or Games of Other
Forms in the Macau Special Administrative Region, dated as of December 19, 2002, among the
Macao Special Administrative Region and Galaxy Casino Company, Limited (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.16 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No.
001-32373) for the year ended December 31, 2018 and filed on February 22, 2019).

10.18 Subconcession Contract for Operating Casino Games of Chance or Games of Other Forms in the
Macau Special Administrative Region, dated December 19, 2002, between Galaxy Casino
Company Limited, as concessionaire, and Venetian Macau S.A., as subconcessionaire
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.65 to the Company's Amendment No. 5 to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-118827) dated December 10, 2004).

10.19 Land Concession Agreement, dated as of December 10, 2003, relating to the Sands Macao
between the Macao Special Administrative Region and Venetian Macau Limited (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.39 to the Company's Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-118827) dated October 25, 2004).

10.20 Amendment, published on April 23, 2008, to Land Concession Agreement, dated as of
December 10, 2003, relating to the Sands Macao between the Macau Special Administrative
Region and Venetian Macau Limited (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31,
2008 and filed on May 9, 2008).

10.21 Land Concession Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2007, relating to the Venetian Macao, Four
Seasons Macao and Site 3 among the Macau Special Administrative Region, Venetian Cotai
Limited and Venetian Macau Limited (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31,
2007 and filed on May 10, 2007).

10.22 Amendment published on October 29, 2008, to Land Concession Agreement between Macau
Special Administrative Region and Venetian Cotai Limited (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the
quarter ended September 30, 2008 and filed on November 10, 2008).

10.23 Amendment, published on June 5, 2013, to Land Concession Agreement between Macau Special
Administrative Region and Venetian Cotai Limited (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.22
to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-32373) for the year ended
December 31, 2018 and filed on February 22, 2019).
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10.24 Amendment, published on October 22, 2014, to Land Concession Agreement between Macau
Special Administrative Region and Venetian Cotai Limited (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.23 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-32373) for the year
ended December 31, 2018 and filed on February 22, 2019).

10.25 Land Concession Agreement, dated as of May 5, 2010, relating to The Londoner Macao among
the Macau Special Administrative Region, Venetian Orient Limited and Venetian Macau Limited
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.24 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
(File No. 001-32373) for the year ended December 31, 2018 and filed on February 22, 2019).

10.26 Development Agreement, dated August 23, 2006, between the Singapore Tourism Board and
Marina Bay Sands Pte. Ltd. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended September 30, 2006
and filed on November 9, 2006).

10.27 Supplement to Development Agreement, dated December 11, 2009, by and between Singapore
Tourism Board and Marina Bay Sands PTE. LTD (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.76
to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-32373) for the year ended
December 31, 2009 and filed on March 1, 2010).

10.28† Development Agreement, dated April 3, 2019, between the Singapore Tourism Board and Marina
Bay Sands Pte. Ltd. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 and
filed on July 24, 2019).

10.29 Amended and Restated Services Agreement, dated as of November 14, 1997, by and among Las
Vegas Sands, Inc., Venetian Casino Resort, LLC, Interface Group Holding Company, Inc.,
Interface Group-Nevada, Inc., Lido Casino Resort MM, Inc., Grand Canal Shops Mall MM
Subsidiary, Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Venetian Casino Resort, LLC named therein
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 1 to Las Vegas Sands, Inc.'s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-42147) dated February 12, 1998).

10.30 Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated as of November 8, 2004, by and among Las Vegas
Sands, Inc., Venetian Casino Resort, LLC, Interface Group Holding Company, Inc., Interface
Group-Nevada, Inc., Interface Operations LLC, Lido Casino Resort MM, Inc., Grand Canal Shops
Mall MM Subsidiary, Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Venetian Casino Resort, LLC named therein
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.52 to the Company's Amendment No. 2 to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-118827) dated November 22, 2004).

10.31 Fourth Amended and Restated Reciprocal Easement, Use and Operating Agreement, dated as of
February 29, 2008, by and among Interface Group-Nevada, Inc., Grand Canal Shops II, LLC,
Phase II Mall Subsidiary, LLC, Venetian Casino Resort, LLC, and Palazzo Condo Tower, LLC
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 and filed on May 9, 2008).

10.32+ Las Vegas Sands Corp. 2004 Equity Award Plan (Amended and Restated) (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No.
001-32373) for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 and filed on August 7, 2014).

10.33+ Las Vegas Sands Corp. Amended and Restated 2004 Equity Award Plan (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373)
filed on May 20, 2019).

10.34+ Form of Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2004 Equity Award Plan
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and filed on April 27, 2018).

10.35+ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2004 Equity Award Plan (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No.
001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and filed on April 27, 2018).

10.36+ Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2004 Equity Award Plan (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.51 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No.
001-32373) for the year ended December 31, 2010 and filed on March 1, 2011).

10.37+ Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2004 Equity Award Plan (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No.
001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and filed on April 27, 2018).
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10.38+ Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2004 Equity Award Plan
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and filed on April 27, 2018).

10.39+ Form of Director Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement under the 2004 Equity Award Plan
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and filed on April 27, 2018).

10.40+ Form of Director Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement under the 2004 Equity Award Plan
(with deferred settlement) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and
filed on April 27, 2018).

10.41+ Form of Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement under the 2004 Equity Award Plan
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and filed on April 27, 2018).

10.42+ Las Vegas Sands Corp. Amended and Restated Executive Cash Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No.
001-32373 for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 and filed on July 25, 2018).

10.43 Settlement Agreement, date as of June 24, 2011, by and among Venetian Casino Resort, LLC,
Phase II Mall Holding, LLC, GGP Limited Partnership, The Shoppes at the Palazzo, LLC (f/k/a
Phase II Mall Subsidiary, LLC) and Grand Canal Shops II, LLC (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.63 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-32373) for the year
ended December 31, 2011 and filed on February 29, 2012).

10.44 Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated April 12, 2004, by and among Grand Canal Shops Mall
Subsidiary, LLC, Grand Canal Shops Mall MM Subsidiary, Inc. and GGP Limited Partnership
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Las Vegas Sands, Inc.'s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 333-42147) filed on April 16, 2004).

10.45 Agreement, made as of April 12, 2004, by and between Lido Casino Resort, LLC and GGP
Limited Partnership (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Las Vegas Sands, Inc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 333-42147) filed on April 16, 2004).

10.46 Assignment and Assumption of Agreement and First Amendment to Agreement, dated
September 30, 2004, made by Lido Casino Resort, LLC, as assignor, to Phase II Mall Holding,
LLC, as assignee, and to GGP Limited Partnership, as buyer (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.60 to the Company's Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S- 1 (File
No. 333-118827) dated October 25, 2004).

10.47 Second Amendment, dated as of January 31, 2008, to Agreement dated as of April 12, 2004 and
amended as of September 30, 2004, by and among Venetian Casino Resort, LLC, as successor-by-
merger to Lido Casino Resort, LLC, Phase II Mall Holding, LLC, as successor-in-interest to Lido
Casino Resort, LLC, and GGP Limited Partnership (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2
to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended
March 31, 2008 and filed on May 9, 2008).

10.48 Second Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2008,
by and among Las Vegas Sands Corp., Dr. Miriam Adelson and the other Adelson Holders (as
defined therein) that are party to the agreement from time to time (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on
November 14, 2008).

10.49 Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2008, by and between Las Vegas Sands
Corp. and the Investor named therein (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended
September 30, 2008 and filed on November 10, 2008).

10.50 Venetian Hotel Service Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2001, by and between Venetian Casino
Resort, LLC and Interface Group-Nevada, Inc. d/b/a Sands Expo and Convention Center
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.49 to the Company's Amendment No. 2 to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-118827) dated November 22, 2004).

10.51 First Amendment to Venetian Hotel Service Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2004, by and
between Venetian Casino Resort, LLC and Interface Group-Nevada, Inc. d/b/a Sands Expo and
Convention Center (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.50 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-118827) dated September 3, 2004).
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10.52+ Las Vegas Sands Corp. Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.88 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No.
001-32373) for the year ended December 31, 2011 and filed on February 29, 2012).

10.53+ Amendment to Non-Employee Director Compensation Program — Increase to Annual Cash
Retainer (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2019 and
filed on October 25, 2019).

10.54+ Employment Agreement, dated August 19, 2019, among Las Vegas Sands Corp., Las Vegas
Sands, LLC and D. Zachary Hudson (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32373) for the quarter ended June 30,
2020 and filed on July 24, 2020).

10.55+ Terms of Continued Employment, dated March 24, 2021, among Las Vegas Sands Corp., Las
Vegas Sands, LLC and Robert G. Goldstein (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on March 24, 2021).

10.56+ Terms of Continued Employment, dated March 24, 2021, among Las Vegas Sands Corp., Las
Vegas Sands, LLC and Patrick Dumont (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on March 24, 2021).

10.57+ Terms of Continued Employment, dated March 24, 2021, among Las Vegas Sands Corp., Las
Vegas Sands, LLC and Randy A. Hyzak (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on March 24, 2021).

10.58+ First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated March 24, 2021, among Las Vegas Sands
Corp., Las Vegas Sands, LLC and D. Zachary Hudson (incorporated by reference from Exhibit
10.4 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on March 24,
2021).

10.59† Form of Post-Closing Contingent Lease Support Agreement, by and among Las Vegas Sands
Corp., Pioneer OpCo, LLC and VICI Properties L.P. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373) filed on March 3, 2021).

10.60† Form of Term Loan Credit and Security Agreement, by and among Las Vegas Sands Corp.,
Pioneer OpCo, LLC, Pioneer HoldCo, LLC and the Guarantors party thereto (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32373)
filed on March 3, 2021).

21.1* Subsidiaries of Las Vegas Sands Corp.
23.1* Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002.
31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002.
32.1++ Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Las Vegas Sands Corp. pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2++ Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Las Vegas Sands Corp. pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101* The following financial information from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31, 2021, formatted in Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language
("iXBRL"): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, (iii)
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020
and 2019, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020
and 2019, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline
XBRL document.
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* Filed herewith.

† Certain identified information has been redacted from the exhibit in accordance with Item 601(b)(2)(ii) or
601(b)(10)(iv) of Regulation S-K, as applicable

†† Certain schedules to this exhibit have been omitted in accordance with Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K.

+ Denotes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

++ This exhibit will not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section. Such exhibit shall not be deemed
incorporated into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended.

None.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP.

February 4, 2022 /S/ ROBERT G. GOLDSTEIN
Robert G. Goldstein,

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has
been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

/S/ ROBERT G. GOLDSTEIN
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive

Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

February 4, 2022
Robert G. Goldstein

/S/ PATRICK DUMONT President,
Chief Operating Officer and Director

February 4, 2022
Patrick Dumont

/S/ IRWIN CHAFETZ Director February 4, 2022
Irwin Chafetz

/S/ MICHELINE CHAU Director February 4, 2022
Micheline Chau

/S/ CHARLES D. FORMAN Director February 4, 2022
Charles D. Forman

/S/ GEORGE JAMIESON Director February 4, 2022
George Jamieson

/S/ NORA M. JORDAN Director February 4, 2022
Nora M. Jordan

/S/ CHARLES A. KOPPELMAN Director February 4, 2022
Charles A. Koppelman

/S/ LEWIS KRAMER Director February 4, 2022
Lewis Kramer

/S/ DAVID F. LEVI Director February 4, 2022
David F. Levi

/S/ IBING MAO Director February 4, 2022
ibing Mao

/S/ RAND H ZAK

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

February 4, 2022
Randy Hyzak
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STOCK TRANSFER 
INFORMATION
American Stock Transfer 
& Trust Company 

6201 15th Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11219

TRADING SYMBOL
Traded on the New York Stock  
Exchange under the symbol: LVS

ANNUAL REPORTS
Copies of this Annual Report and the  
Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K may be obtained at no charge
by writing:

Las Vegas Sands Corp.
c/o Investor Relations
3883 Howard Hughes Pkwy., #550 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

(1) FOUR SEASONS, CONRAD, SHERATON, 

and ST. REGIS are registered trademarks of 

their respective owners and are used under 

license.

The remaining marks are owned by Las Vegas 
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jurisdictions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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Micheline Chau
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Lucasfilm Ltd.
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Officer,
Centric Events Group, LLC

George Jamieson
Retired Partner,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP

Nora M. Jordan
Senior Counsel,
Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP

Charles A. Koppelman
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer,
CAK Entertainment, Inc.

Lewis Kramer
Retired Partner,
Ernst & Young LLPYY

David F. FF Levi
Levi Family Professor of Law & Director,
Bolch Judicial Institute, Duke Law 
School

Yibing Mao
Retired, Global Senior Vice President &
Chief Legal Counsel, Asia Pacific, 
Mar iott International

SENIOR CORPORATE OFFICERS

Robert G. Goldstein
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer & Director

Patrick Dumont
President,
Chief Operating Officer & Director

Randy Hyzak
Executive Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer

D. Zachary Hudson
Executive Vice President,
Global General Counsel &
Secretary

PROPERTY LOCATIONS 

Macao (SAR), China
      Sands® Macao
      The Venetian® Macao Resort Hotel
      The Plaza® Macao, Cotai Strip
            Four Seasons® Hotel Macao, Cotai Strip(1)

            The Grand Suites at Four Seasons® (1)
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